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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
however arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Shen You Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Corporate Information (Continued)

NAElE R (E)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel (Chairman)
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (Chairman)
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL BANK
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

FHEES

AREXE (F/E)
RILE K4
BR#E B £ &

REEEE
BEGEE (TF)
RIS
ARELE
R 3 Bf 55 &£

B

EE(FB) @t EBKMER A A

X G RTED
A 2R i K A A B

FEERRT
ERELBEERITERAA
AMREE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HEERERAR /20214 3K

3



4

Corporate Information (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement
T [ By

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’'s revenue
increases to approximately HK$73.4 million, representing
an increase of approximately 63.1%, as compared to
revenue of approximately HK$45.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Group’'s net loss increases
to approximately HK$27.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 from approximately HK$15.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 74.7%. Such increase in net loss was mainly
due to the increase in impairment losses on goodwill of
approximately HK$12.1 million and increase in administrative
expenses of approximately HK$9.4 million during the year
ended 31 December 2021 as compared to that for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
selling of sewing threads and board categories of garment
accessories, provision of interior design, interior decoration
and furnishing services, and provision of equine related
services business.

The Group currently manufactures polyester sewing threads,
which are mainly used for garments. The major product of the
Group is 100% spun polyester sewing threads. Other types of
sewing threads are also offered, including textured polyester
series, elastic filament sewing threads and weft yarn. The
Group’s customers are located in the People’'s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), Hong Kong as well as overseas countries,
including but not limited to the Middle East and Mauritius.
While the Group's customers in the PRC and Hong Kong
are mainly garment manufacturers, its overseas customers
are mainly wholesalers. The production facilities of the
Group, where the sewing threads manufacturing process is
conducted, are located in Liwan, Guangzhou (the “Guangzhou
Production Facilities”).
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

=+ JF B (8)

To diversify our business focus, the Group has completed
an acquisition for the acquisition of 100% of equity interest
of Diamond Motto Limited ("“DML") and its subsidiary, LMP
International Limited (collectively, the “"DML Group”) on
9 February 2021. DML Group is principally engaged in the
provision of interior design, fitting out and decoration services.
The Group consider that there is a growing popularity of
interior design, fitting-out and decoration in commercial,
residential and public sectors in Hong Kong and the Greater
Bay Area to seek individuality and style. Hence, the Group
expected the new line of business can diversify its existing
business portfolio and to increase source of income.

Moreover, the Group has acquired quality broodmares and
share of the stallions to enter into horse trading and breeding
business in Australia. As part of the Group’s expanding stallion
portfolio we have acquired shareholding in Australia’s most
exciting young sire in Extreme Choice, the son of champion
sire Not A Single Doubt, stands at the famed Hunter Valley
Stallion farm Newgate which are rapidly becoming a dominant
force in the Australian market. We have also acquired shares
in last year's 2 year old champion Farnan when he retired to
Kia Ora Stud, along with the likes of Denman, who is highly
regarded in the Hong Kong racing scene. Our broodmare
portfolio reside at some of Australia’s leading nurseries
including Segenhoe Stud, Newhaven park, Rosemont stud and
Twin Hills. The management team have been actively pursuing
strategic partnerships with key industry participants to enable
the bloodstock arm of the company to take advantage of the
booming industry in Australia. With prize money, industry
participation and market trends at an all time high in the
Australian bloodstock industry we are purposely positioned to
benefit from this lucrative market boom.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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APPRECIATION

| wish to take this opportunity to extend my sincere thanks to
our shareholders, business partners, customers and suppliers
for their continuous support. | would also like to express
my deep gratitude to my fellow Directors and the Group's
management team and staff for their efforts and dedication to
the Group during the past year.

Shen You Holdings Limited
Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
Chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

T

B I E & W

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of sewing threads and board categories of garment
accessories, the provision of interior design, fitting out
and decoration services and equine services business.
The business review are set out in the above Chairman’s
Statement.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue was generated from the segment of
manufacturing and trading of threads product, interior design
and decoration, and equine services. The following table sets
out a breakdown of the Group's revenue attributable to three
segments of the Group of the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020:

##

AEBETERETRIGNSERESH
TERES RHEAR  RERKH
REEFERY - FHEEBEHN EXER

il

g deE) ]
e #8

ZWE T RBOBREERED  FTAR
AREBUREERBESIEE - TRE
NAEEREBEE-_ZTE-_—FR-_ZT-_ZF
+- A=+ HLEFEAREE=ES PR
1 Ug 5 RA AR

Year ended 31 December

BEE+t-A=t-HLHEE

Rate of
2021 2020 change
—E-—-F —E_TF BEt X
% of total % of total
HK$'000 revenue HK$'000 revenue %
TR HAKZE% FTET HHBRE%
Manufacturing and BABEER
trading of threads g5 54,517 44,984 100 21.2
Interior design and ENRETRES
decoration 18,057 — — —
Equine services BICRBE 791 == £ =
73,365 44,984 100.0 63.1
Manufacturing and trading of threads BAGEERES

The revenue attributable to the manufacturing and trading of
threads increased to approximately HK$54.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately HK$45.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing an
increase of approximately 21.2%. The revenue increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in sales in PRC market and
the oversea market due to the tension of COVID-19 seemed to
be abating.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB wm N AT (B

Interior design and decoration

The Group completed the acquisition of Diamond Motto
Limited on 9 February 2021. No revenue recorded for the
segment of interior design and decoration was recorded for
the year ended 2020 and the revenue for year ended 2021
is covered the period from 9 February 2021 to 31 December
2021. The revenue attributable to the interior design decoration
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$18.1 million.

Equine Services

The equines services were new setup during the year. The
Company providing a wide range of equines services which
included but not limit to horse breeding services and horse
retirement services and horse consulting services. The
revenue attributable to the equines services for the year
ended 31 December was HK$0.8 million.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of director material
costs, processing fees, direct labour costs and welfare and
social insurance. The following table sets out a breakdown of
the Group's cost of sales attributable to three segments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Manufacturing and trading of BUOBEER
threads g5

Interior design and decoration EARFTRERE

Equine services BT AR 7%

EARFTREE

AEBR-_ZE-Z—F-_ANLABEKKE
Diamond Motto Limited e i E T - &
FIEFE ZEARTAREES AR EESE
W BEZE-_—FIHEFENKRZRE

B FZANBEZE=Z—F+=
A=+—HHHE #EZ=-Z=_—F+=A
—+—HLEFENERNRTREEESR
%% 418,100,000/ 7T °

B R#%

BFERBRFAFRL - ARAEMHERZ
MEERYE  BEETERTTCEERS
REBEEERREARFLEHEARYE - HE
T_A=+—BLFENFTRBEEEK
% £800,0007 T °

HERS

REBNEERAETEZVREEEMBAR -
MIBREESTKANEREFR RESR
B2 e TREIAEBERBE_ZT_—F R
—EEFF A=+ —HLEFEALREE
= {85 EBFE 1k 4 S A AN B 4B -

Year ended 31 December

BEZ+-A=1t—-RHLEE

Rate of
2021 2020 change
—E-—-F ZT-EF gEtx
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FHT TR
46,756 34,537 35.4
10,564 — —
1,253 — —
58,573 34,537 69.6
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE s wm M T ()

Manufacturing and trading of threads

The cost of sales attributable to the manufacturing and trading
of threads increase to approximately HK$46.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately HK$34.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing
an increase of 35.4%. The cost of sales for the manufacturing
and trading of threads increased is in line with the increase in
sale for the year.

Interior design and decoration

The cost of sales attributable to the interior design decoration
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$10.6 million.
It is the segment newly acquired and no revenue recorded for
the year ended 31 December 2020 due to Group completed
the acquisition of Diamond Motto Limited during this year.

Equine services

The cost of sales attributable to the equine services for the
year ended was HK$1.3 million. It is the segment newly setup
and no revenue recorded for the year ended 2020 and the
management expected the revenue will increase significantly
in the year 2022.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’'s gross profit increased to approximately
HK$14.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately HK$10.4 million for the year 31 December
2020, representing an increase of approximately 41.6%.
The increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the
significant increase in sales for the segment of manufacturing
and trading of threads and the new segment of interior design
and decoration segment acquired by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The gross profit margin decrease
to approximately 20.2% for the year ended 31 December 2021
from approximately 23.2% for the year ended 31 December
2020 was mainly attributable to the cost of sales for initial
equine services generated for the year ended 31 December
2021 which diluted the gross profit margin for the Group.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE s wm M T ()

Other income and gain/(losses and expenses), net

The Group recorded other net gain and other expenses, net of
approximately HK$2.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 as compared with other net losses and expenses of
approximately HK$4.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such change was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the exchange loss and the fair value gain on the biological
assets during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of staff costs
and transportation expenses. Selling expenses increased to
approximately HK$7.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 from approximately HK$5.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in transportation expenses and labour cost as a result
of the aforementioned increase in revenue.

Administrative expenses

Administrative losses primarily consist of staff costs,
Directors’ remuneration and legal and professional fees.
Administrative expenses increased to approximately
HK$23.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
from approximately HK$13.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing an increase of approximately
67.5%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in staff costs for the new business segment and increase
in legal and professional fee of the acquisition of the new
business segment during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB M oA ()

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs increased to approximately
HK$0.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing an increase of approximately 82.5%. Such
increase was mainly due to the new banking facilities from the
acquisition of the interior design and decoration segment.

Loss before income tax

As a result of the aforesaid, the Group recorded a loss
before income tax of approximately HK$27.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately HK$15.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing an
increase of approximately 74.7%.

Income tax expense

No income tax expense was recorded both for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Total comprehensive expenses attributable to the
owners of the parent

The total comprehensive expenses attributable to the owners
of the parent increased to approximately HK$25.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 from approximately
HK$11.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing an increase of approximately 123.7%. Such
increase was mainly due to the combined effect of the
increase in the Group's loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 due to the reasons mentioned above and the increase in
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB Mo AT ()

Basic and diluted loss per share

The Company’'s basic and diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately HK7.43 cents
(2020: HK6.22 cents (restated)), representing an increase of
approximately 19.5%, which was mainly due to the increase in
loss attributable to the owners of the parent.

Final dividend

The board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s operations
were primarily financed through its operating and financing
activities. The Directors believe that in the long term, the
Group's operations will continue to be funded by a combination
of cash generated from the Group’s operating activities and
financing activities.

The Group’'s cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$27.3 million and approximately HK$11.9
million as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
functional currency of the Group is the Hong Kong dollar.
As at 31 December 2021, 94.9% of the Group’s cash and
bank balances were denominated in the Group's functional
currency (31 December 2020: 96.9%) and the remaining 5.1%
(31 December 2020: 3.1%) in other currencies, mainly the
Renminbi and Australian Dollars.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$58.4 million and approximately
HK$35.5 million, respectively, which included trade
receivables, contract assets, deposit and other receivables,
inventories and cash and cash equivalents. The Group's
current ratio slightly decreased from approximately 3.8 as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 3.1 as at 31 December
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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GEARING RATIO

The Group's gearing ratio is calculated based on net debt
(including interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, and lease liabilities, less cash
and cash equivalents) divided by the total equity plus net
debt at the respective reporting date. The gearing ratio
is approximately 0.9% and approximately 4.9% as at 31
December 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Group believes
that the cash at banks provide adequate liquidity to satisfy the
Group's funding requirements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2020: nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 9 February 2021, the Group has completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Diamond Motto Limited by the
allotment and issuance of an aggregate of 67,441,860
consideration shares and the closing price of the Company’s
share on the acquisition date was HK$0.38. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Company's circular dated 12
January 2021 and the announcement dated 9 February 2021.

On 19 January 2021, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the subscriber, pursuant to
which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 24,000,000 new Shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.30 per subscription share. Also, the placing agent and
the Company entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place through
the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to 24,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.30 per placing
share to not less than six placees who and whose beneficial
owners shall be Independent Third Parties. The subscription
and placing of the new shares has been completed on 11
February 2021. Details of the subscription and placing of the
new shares are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 January 2021, 2 February 2021 and 11 February
2021.
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On 29 June 2021, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with two subscribers, pursuant to which the
subscribers has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
3,300,000 and 3,400,000 new Shares for two subscribers at
the subscription price of HK$0.60 per subscription share. Also,
the placing agent and the Company entered into the placing
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best effort
basis, up to 47,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.60 per placing share to not less than six placees
who and whose beneficial owners shall be Independent
of the Company. The subscriptions and placing of the new
shares has been completed on 22 July 2021. Details of the
subscription and placing of the new shares are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 June 2021, 8 July
2021 and 22 July 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's issued share capital
amounted to approximately HK$20.5 million, divided by
409,141,860 Shares of HK$0.05 each.

Details of changes in the Company's share capital for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 31
May 2021 and 11 June 2021, the Group won several bids to
acquire of horses at the 2021 Gold Coast National Broodmare
Sale for the horse breeding business. Save as these disclosed
above, as at 31 December 2021 the Group did not hold any
significant investments (as at 31 December 2020: Nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

On 9 February 2021, the Group has completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Diamond Motto Limited by the
allotment and issuance of an aggregate of 67,441,860
consideration shares and the closing price of the Company’s
share on the acquisition date was HK$0.38. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the Company's circular dated 12
January 2021 and the announcement dated 9 February 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
30 November 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the Group currently
has no other plans for material investments and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have material
contingent liabilities (as at 31 December 2020: Nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluation of the
financial conditions of its clients and credit review of the
Group’s loan portfolio. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments can meet its funding requirements.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk when it enters
into transactions which are not denominated in the Group's
functional currency. Such exposure mainly relates to the
distribution and sale of the Group's products and purchases
of raw materials in the PRC and the acquisition of broodmares
and stallions and the equine services income in Australia.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. Yet, the Group’s management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The sensitivity analysis of the Group’'s exposure to foreign
exchange risk and other financial risks are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the following assets were
pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to
the Group:

ME - BERZE
BEME

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of
161 employees (as at 31 December 2020: 157), of whom
139 were located in the PRC and 22 were located in Hong
Kong. The Group’s staff costs mainly comprised wages
and salaries, social insurance, housing provident fund and
severance payments. For the two years ended 31 December
2021, the Group’'s total staff costs (excluding Directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$19.3 million and
HK$14.5 million, respectively. The Group offers remuneration
packages comprising basic salaries, discretionary bonuses
and allowances to its management and office staff. For the
workers at the Guangzhou Production Facilities, the Group
offers them salaries above the minimum wage, promotion
opportunities and budgets for social events.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

Pursuant to the relevant labour laws, rules and regulations
in the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “"Retirement Benefit
Scheme”) organised by the relevant local government
authorities in the PRC whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Retirement Benefit Scheme at a
certain rate of the standard wages determined by the relevant
authorities in the PRC during the year. Contributions to the
Retirement Benefit Scheme vest immediately.
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There was no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme
and Retirement Benefit Scheme which may be used by the
Group to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The remuneration committee of the Company is responsible
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management members with
reference to the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration. Any discretionary bonus
and other merit payments are linked to the profit performance
of the Group and the individual performance of the Directors
and senior management members. The Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 24
November 2017, under which the Company may grant options
to, among others, any employees (full-time or part-time) or
Directors with a view to rewarding them for their contributions
to the Group, giving incentive to them for optimising their
performance and efficiency and attracting as well as retaining
those whose future contributions are important to the
long-term growth and profitability of the Group. Since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this annual report, no share options have been granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Shareholder’s loan agreement between Mr. Wong
and Tseyu International

On 31 March 2020, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and an executive Director (“Mr.
Wong"”), and Tseyu International Trading Company Limited
(“Tseyu International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a shareholder’'s loan agreement in
respect of the shareholder’s loans provided by Mr. Wong to
Tseyu International. The shareholder’s loans, amounting to
HK$19,171,000, are interest-free, unsecured and repayable in
cash on demand. As the shareholder’s loans were provided
on normal commercial terms or better and were not secured
by the assets of the Group, the shareholder’'s loans are fully
exempt under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details
of the shareholder’s loan agreement are set out in the circular
dated 16 February 2021.
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Loan agreement between Mr. Wong and Guangzhou
Xinhua

On 31 March 2020, Mr. Wong and Guangzhou Xinhua Thread
Company (EM#ELEAFRAE) ("Guangzhou Xinhua"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement in relation to the intra-group current
accounts balance in a sum of RMB16,760,277 (equivalent to
HK$18,603,907) due from Mr. Wong to Guangzhou Xinhua. It
was agreed that, among other things, interest shall be payable
by Mr. Wong to Guangzhou Xinhua to be accrued at a rate of
2% per annum on the outstanding current accounts balance
from the date of the loan agreement and the current accounts
balance shall be repaid by Mr. Wong within three years from
the date of the loan agreement. Such loan agreement has
been approved by the independent shareholders based on
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the loan
agreement are set out in the circular dated 16 February 2021
and announcements of the Company dated 8 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions
during the year under the definition of connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it
has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Save for the matter in relation to the above paragraph of
“Major and Connected Transactions” and the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group has in all material respects
complied with all relevant laws, rules and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group and its operations in Hong
Kong and the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

In order to better integrate the concept of social responsibility
into the Group’s strategy and decision-making and to further
guide the Group to develop a socially responsible practice,
the Group has established an environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report preparation team. While preparing
the report, the Group strives to incorporate the notion of
sustainable development into its daily operations.

Meanwhile, the Group has established a systematic
stakeholder communication channel with the aim to facilitate
positive interactions with the Group’s stakeholders, actively
respond to relevant litigation issues and promote quality,
effective and sustainable growth. Throughout the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group has maintained its business
integrity and dedication to environmental protection, while
continuously striving to improve quality management and
employee care.

For further information in relation to the Group's ESG
practices, please refer to the Group's separate ESG report,
which is expected to be published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company within three months after
the publication of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Employees are considered to be one of the most important
factors that contribute to the productivity of the Group.
Employees of the Group are mainly provided with on-the-job
training as well as remuneration packages and allowances.

The Group also communicates closely with its customers to
obtain valuable feedback and provides them with information
about the Group’s products and trends in the sewing threads
market. The Group has maintained business relationships
with its five largest customers for a period ranging from
approximately five to twenty years, respectively. Likewise,
the Group has also established stable relationships with its
suppliers. As such, the Directors believe that the Group has
developed a trustworthy and reliable reputation as well as a
strong partnership with its customers and suppliers.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Use of proceeds of the Company’s Initial Public
Offering

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the net proceeds from
the Share Offer were approximately HK$40.7 million, after
deducting commission and expenses borne by the Company in
connection with the Share Offer (the "Net Proceeds"”). As at
31 December 2021, the unutilised Net Proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$8.7 million.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Net Proceeds had been applied WZ-ZZE-Z—F+-A=+—8 "  FEXRAE
and utilised as follows: FHEOECEARSAHALOT:

Utilised Utilised during Expected timeline

in previous  Unutilised as  the yearended ~ Unutilised as  for utilising the

Net Proceeds financial at31December  31December at 31 December unutilised amount
from available year 2020 2021 2021 otz )
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FamErg EEA A8 LEEDHA *8R RER
HKS million HKS million HK$ milion HKS$ million HKS milion HKS milion
BEER BEAT BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT
Ungrading the Group's ARASEIZA 203 31 172 - 172 on or before
machinery for the 100% k&5 £ 31 December
production of 100% spun ERA \ 2022
polyester sewing threads for o St |
industrial use Zt-H%ZH
Upgrading the Group's FRAEERE100% 77 2.2 55 = 55 on or before
machinery for the HaBEERS 31 December
production of 100% spun 2022
polyester sewing threads for RZE-ZE+2f
domestic use X St-RAZA
Acquiring new cone winding ~ BEME T4 # 41 05 36 - 36 on or before
machines 31 December
2022
BB
=t-B%2H
Acouiring new machinery for the EEHERREE K 37 13 24 = 24 on or before
production of nylon threads # 31 Decer;gzezr
RZBZZF+2F
, " +-BAZA
Setting up a sales office in ERIERUBER 12 12 = = =
Zhejiang province B
Working capital and other AEEMEEESR 37 37 = = =
general corporate purposes Ep-RLER
of the Group i
3 40.7 12.0 28.7 — 28.7
Repayment of bank EEETRAM - 200 200 - 200
facilities Mo 2
407 320 8.7 - 8.7

Note 1: The expected timetable for fully utilising the unutilised Net Proceeds  ff:27: BREFER RS AMESRB I BHEAEH IR
is determined based on the Group’s best estimate of future market *ETFZFE@%T?FW TR REMGBALRIER
conditions, and is subject to change depending on current market MARKKTEERMESHET -
conditions and future market developments.

Note 2: The Group made use of approximately HK$20 million out of the /22 EARAHEFAESRBEFEFT AEFHHEY

unutilised Net Proceeds for the repayment of the banking facilities. 20 000,000 T AEEIBITRME - Ll &8
Details of the aforesaid repayment are set out in the Company's RABIEARLARRABHA-_ZT=-—F=A
announcement dated 31 March 2021. 7+ =Rzl

All the banking facilities have been cancelled by the bank with effect from 29 BT EE-_ZE-_TFMNA-+HLARBEMERITR
April 2020. The Group is making its best efforts to obtain new banking facilites & - A& BEERHESHORITRENUH L E Y #
for its operation and to continue with the implementation of the planned use of EH TS RIEFEN R TR S -

the Net Proceeds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIEEN@m LT (E)

Below is an analysis comparing the future plans and use of B FrTHHE£EZ _-_ZT - —F+ - A
proceeds contained in the Prospectus from the Listing Date =+—H BERERASH KK ENLTE
up to 31 December 2021: RIERZERSTWOT:

Actual progress as at

Business strategy Implementation plan 31 December 2020
R-ZB-2F+-A=+—-8BW
EF S B it &t 8l BEREE
Upgrading the Group’s machinery — Purchase eight waxing and The Group has purchased and
for the production of 100% spun winding machines for the is operating two waxing and
polyester sewing threads for production of 100% spun winding machines for the
industrial use polyester sewing threads for production of 100% spun
industrial use polyester sewing threads for

industrial use.
AJRAEBTEAI100% Kt —RBNGLENEYH AR AEEEHEBYEIFARS LE
EE M 2R A ETERI00% MKk 4R Mg AREETIXR
100% & 4 43 ©

Upgrading the Group’s machinery — Purchase two machines for the The Group has purchased and
for the production of 100% spun production of 100% spun is operating one machine for
polyester sewing threads for polyester sewing threads for the production of 100% spun
domestic use domestic use polyester sewing threads for

domestic use.
ABRAEBERABI00% KigREE —REMAKSE  BREERA A5ECHEBUEFER —&#s:E

28 100% & 4 4% AREERBI100% KR o
Acquiring new machinery for the ~ — Purchase five machines for the The Group has purchased and is
production of nylon threads production of nylon threads operating three machines for
the production of nylon threads.
FEEMEEREEKS —RETAKSE AR4AERE ASEERBIEEA=Z6#: -
iR AREERER -
Setting up a sales office in — Lease suitable premises for the The Group has set up a sales office
Zhejiang province Group's sales office in Zhejiang Province, which is
— Renovate the sales office currently in full operation.
— Purchase office equipment
EHMTIARTHERER —THAGEGHN BERASEE ASEERMIERIEENSE
EMER B BRAEZ2EEAEE-
— RKEHEMFR
— RRERNERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Business strategy Implementation plan

EX R Bt

Actual progress as at

31 December 2020
R-B-BE+=A=+-AW
EREE

Acquiring new cone winding
machines

balance for two cone
winding machines

BENBTRYOK

— Order two cone winding
machines to facilitate the
production lines for 100%
spun polyester sewing
threads and paying the

—FIEMAEE THEYEIARE
100% Wk im 4R £ E R ETT R

The Group has purchased and is
operating one cone winding
machine.

ARBERBYEEA—AHT
BT -

XNMERE TR ENSRE

Use of net proceeds of the Rights Issue

On 12 June 2020, the Company completed a rights issue
and issued 400,000,000 new shares with par value HK$0.01
each at a subscription price of HK$0.043 per rights share on
the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares
held (the “Rights Issue”), and the net proceeds of the
Rights Issue, after deducting the related expenses, were
approximately HK$14.6 million, which were mainly used for
the partial payments of the Group’s general and administrative
expenses, professional fees and acquisition of raw materials.
Detailed terms of the Rights Issue and its results were set out
in the Company's prospectus dated 20 May 2020 (the “Rights
Issue Prospectus”) and the announcement dated 11 June
2020, respectively.

In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 21
August 2020, it was approved that a share consolidation on
the basis that every five (5) issued and unissued Shares of
HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one (1) Share of HK$0.05
each on 25 August 2020 (“Share Consolidation”). Details of
the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 5 August 2020 and the announcement dated 21 August
2020.

HRAEREFREAR

RZBEZZTFXNA+=H AQF TR HE
f% - % 77400,000,0004% & A% ™ {E0.01/8
TR R - REEAETRMERMRK70.043
B HELSEERBRRBRMDERE —
et iz i ([ - HlRMBREBEER
BH TS R IEF R4 A14,600,00008 7T -
FEARINAEEN —REITHRAS -
BEXEALNBERMBNIEDRIE - 56
HENFAGRRELERS2NHERER
AEMA-_TZ-_ZFRA-_THHHKE
BI#RERDEABHA-_Z -4 A
+—HBZRE -

RZE-_EFENA-+—HETHNERQT
BEEAKEeE AER-ZTE_ZFTFNA
“+RBARQRFIZR SR (G) KT EEO0.01
BILTHEBTRRBETRODEHAE MK
SREMEE T(RMES]) - K
DEHEBIENARTERA T _ZTF
NARAEMBHEBBHA-_ZS_FFNA
e =1 /A=
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds of the Rights Issue W _-_Z-—F+ - A= + —H - #HERFAE
had been utilised as follows: KRIBFREENTAE
Actual net Utilised as at
proceeds Utilised in -~ Utilised as at 31 Utilised during IR 1§
allocated previous year  December 2020 the year 2021
RZE_%% R=B=-%
ERENE % +-A=1-H t-ZA=1-H
FEREFE EBA EBA EREEHA 28R
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
gagn  AERR AR AEEn LR
General and administrative —-RRABAY
expenses 74 5.0 2.4 2.4 -
Professional fees EXEBA 3.0 3.0 2 s -
Acquisition of raw materials RERMH 42 4.2 £y =3 =
14.6 12.2 2.4 2.4 -

Use of net proceeds of the subscription and placing
of the new shares on February 2021

On 19 January 2021, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the subscriber, pursuant to
which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 24,000,000 new Shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.30 per subscription share. Also, the placing agent and
the Company entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place through
the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to 24,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.30 per placing
share to not less than six placees who and whose beneficial
owners shall be Independent Third Parties. The subscription
and placing of the new shares has been completed on 11
February 2021. Details of the subscription and placing of the
new shares are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 January 2021, 2 February 2021 and 11 February
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds of the subscripton R-_Z - —H&+ - AF=+—H R - =Z
and placing of the new shares on February 2021 had been ——%F— ﬂ E%&@E%%ﬁﬂxfﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ KIE
utilised as follows: FREEELOTAE
Utilised
Actual net Utilised as at
proceeds during 31 December
allocated the year 2021
R-ZBZ--%
27 Bt +=—H=1+-—H
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ FREHA 28 A
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATL BEATL BEBT
General working capital of the Group HRNEBEZz—REEELE S 2.8 2.8
Possible investment BERE 111 111
13.9 13.9
Use of net proceeds of the subscription and placing R-ZE-—F+ARBREEFRONFT
of the new shares on July 2021 BRIEFEAR
On 29 June 2021, the Company entered into the subscripton RZ-ZZTZ—F XA+ LB KA G HE
agreements with two subscribers, pursuant to which the ®™W &R ﬁ%)\ AVRERE Bt RE

subscribers has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
3,300,000 and 3,400,000 new Shares for two subscribers at
the subscription price of HK$0.60 per subscription share. Also,
the placing agent and the Company entered into the placing
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, on a best effort
basis, up to 47,000,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.60 per placing share to not less than six placees
who and whose beneficial owners shall be Independent
of the Company. The subscriptions and placing of the new
shares has been completed on 22 July 2021. Details of the
subscription and placing of the new shares are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 June 2021, 8 July
2021 and 22 July 2021.

AEKRHERERBEMARREEHGERE
R R E AR K&E 173,300,000 &
3,400,000 #T 1 - RIEEARBRRE
IR 7060 T o tboh  EEREBHARD

RIFTEEEHE Bt - "AFIE B KNG
REERREREREERRHNEERERS
47,000,000/% B2 & i& 10 T T D R N B &L
ANEERBEZ2ETEBAABILRNAE
RA)) BREEAERMEERN060EB T °
puﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’i%ﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’\ fi*ﬁ’tﬂ
T+ ZHTEK REBRESHRONEFS
HERARRBBHAE-_ZTE=-—FA=-1TAN
H —ZE-_— &+ ANHEZE-_—F+
AZ+ZB®8A%E -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds of the subscription %
and placing of the new shares on February 2021 had been =
utilised as follows: FHEEELNTAR:
Utilised
Actual net Utilised as at
proceeds s[Viflil'l 31 December
allocated the year 2021
R-ZE--F
t=A
ERESE FA =+-—H
PSR IE 358 EHHA 28 A
HK$ Million HK$ Million B LER AT
BEEAT BEAT BEETR
General working capital of the KERZ—HKE
Group BES 6.2 6.2
Development Horse breeding HRErEEE 5.7 4.0
business %
Development of existing business % EH & ¥ 7% 19.3 35
and/or acquisition of and/or % /5 4 F
investment in business(es) A& B
which leverage on the FEENE
competitive advantage of the BHWER
Group g E
31.2 13.7
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

For the existing principal business of manufacturing and
selling of sewing threads, the Group has experienced
some difficulties owing to the outbreak of the coronavirus
("COVID-19") pandemic and uncertainties due to the ongoing
trade conflict between the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and the United States of America (“U.S.”) as well as
the gradual slowdown of the PRC economy. In coming year,
although the tension of COVID-19 seemed to be abating, we
expect that the trade conflict between the PRC and the US
and the COVID-19 will still continue impacting our business.
The Group will continue to pay close attention to the trade
conflict and COVID-19 and to evaluate its impact on the
financial position, cashflows and operating result of this
business line.

On the other hand, the Group has completed the acquisition
for the DML Group which engaged in the provision of interior
design, fitting out and decoration services on February
2021. The Group consider that there is a growing popularity
of interior design, fitting-out and decoration in commercial,
residential and public sectors in Hong Kong and the Greater
Bay Area to seek individuality and style. Hence, the Group
expected the new line of business can diversify its existing
business portfolio and to increase source of income.

In additions, as part of the Group's expanding stallion portfolio
we have acquired shareholding in Australia’s most exciting
young sire in Extreme Choice, the son of champion sire Not
A Single Doubt, stands at the famed Hunter Valley Stallion
farm Newgate which are rapidly becoming a dominant force
in the Australian market. We have also acquired shares in last
year's 2 year old champion Farnan when he retired to Kia Ora
Stud, along with the likes of Denman, who is highly regarded
in the Hong Kong racing scene. Our broodmare portfolio
reside at some of Australia’s leading nurseries including
Segenhoe Stud, Newhaven park, Rosemont stud and Twin
Hills. The management team have been actively pursuing
strategic partnerships with key industry participants to enable
the bloodstock arm of the company to take advantage of the
booming industry in Australia. With prize money, industry
participation and market trends at an all time high in the
Australian bloodstock industry we are purposely positioned to
benefit from this lucrative market boom.

RARFTEIREE

IERBUNBONERENHETRRBEME
HERHFUETRAEERBE(HEBRES])
BE - hEARAME(HE]) E XN R
ERB(XRENDZESENES TR LT
BAREZOMEERHATRERE A
SENEBEMB L - LR - KF - &
EHREREENRERBBUFEHEEM
BHEMTXEZERLRHUTARS
HEBYERMOER AKEKFE
TUBRIEZEREFEERBSTE -
W EASEEHFHRETHROB BN -
RenRhEEXRBEZTE -

B HH AEBEER-_ZTE-—F-A%
BOMLE BB EH  DMLEBE R F 12
HEARNRE  KEREMERBER - A%
ERA BEARKERBRKEAHHERKE
N HEREHNEE BEREAHK
EFIEz=EM - At - "EBETERHED
BGREENEBASLZHEE  ZMKA

N ERASEEBERBESEHEEGN
— WD HMAECRBRRMNGEUBEXE

B 8 4 & & S Extreme Choice®y & n » &
A8 E T 5 [Not A Single Doubt] 2 F » &
# H)Hunter Valley Stallion £ 5 Newgate #)
B ELBEBSARKABRANFEMS
FEHE - HMITMREESEFarnan (&
F A2 ) E® FIKia Ora Studf U 38 H %
H BRBTEAEAESESHEERS
BEDenmanKI il Hh c AMEBEBES
ERAFMGEETELDDEESTHE -
#1 ¥& Segenhoe Stud * Newhaven park
Rosemont stud X Twin Hills o & ¥2 & B IE
ERERBEAIETELAEAEHKS
B BARAIMESER D7D F AR
AFGERERITENEY BEESFES -
TE2HEE MHEBLENNRBRARMNTE
ESTEELEs  ZRMALEILESTE
il  REFTHERPESE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Directors would continue to review the existing
businesses of the Group from time to time with a view to
improving the business operation and financial position of
the Group. The Board considers that it is beneficial for the
Group to seek suitable investment opportunities with a view
to increasing the value of the Group and maximising returns to
the Shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EENMS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (Z Bl &), aged 62, was appointed
as a Director and the chairman of the Board on 18 August
2016 and re-designated as an executive Director on 23 June
2017. He is also the chief executive officer, the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company, one of the Group’s
controlling shareholders. Mr. Wong is primarily responsible
for the management and overall strategic planning and
development of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and assurances.

Mr. Wong obtained his higher diploma in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1982. Mr. Wong was
admitted as a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and as an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in November
1992 and February 2008, respectively. From April 2019 to
May 2020, Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive director
of JBB Builders International Limited (stock code: 1903), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
From May 2019 to January 2020, Mr. Wong served as an
independent non-executive director of Yi Hua Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2213), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.

BITES

EERAEE 6258 R-F—-A"F/\A
TNREZERESFREFEXIRF IR
“E—LFRAZT=ERAERATES -
BARARANITRAER REZBEET
FBAEEZERERZz - -BELETER
EAREMNEEMEBRBRENRER -
BEREBANFEALEZTLR

FEEER—NWNZF+—AESEEETL
ERCRBEARBIRB)ZHR AR -
FEEER—NMNZF+—ARZZEZENE
TAABERTAEASHANAEERS
BERREERBER TR STMAEEE o
BE-E-NFHRAE-_ZE-_ZTFHAFL
4 /& JBB Builders International Limited (A%
MR 1903 MR ATER L AAD) B
VT EE R NFRAE=Z
—EF—A EEALEEESEERERA
A (MR 2213 » BERATER ETTAF])
BUFENTES -

E

BREXBEEI BLEERBE=ZFHE
REFREAXBICEMNESM B LT
MEMEM ETHARAREETEBES
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEkEREEEBNEREFE

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch (PR ¥ 3 ), aged 55, was appointed
as the company secretary, compliance officer and an executive
Director of the Company on 18 August 2016, 23 June 2017
and 19 February 2020, respectively. Mr. Chan obtained his
bachelor’'s degree of art in accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong (formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong)
in November 1992 and was admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1997 and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in April 2001, respectively. From June 2006 to
December 2011, Mr. Chan served as an executive director
of the tax department of Ernst & Young, an international
accounting firm, where he was primarily responsible for
providing tax and business advisory services to both
international and domestic companies operating in the PRC.
Further, Mr. Chan served as a partner in the tax department
of the Guangzhou Branch of Grant Thornton, an international
accounting firm, from October 2012 to October 2015 where
he was primarily responsible for developing the tax practice in
Guangzhou. Mr. Chan has also been serving as an independent
director of Natural Health Trends Corp. (stock code: NHTC), an
international direct-selling and e-commerce company listed on
the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, since December 2015, and is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice
to the board of the company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex (R = #), aged 44, obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in commerce specialising in economics
and finance from the University of Melbourne in Australia in
1999. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in financial
services sector, mainly in compliance and asset management.
From July 2014 to December 2020, Mr. Leung served as an
executive director of DT Capital Limited, whose shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 356).
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Leung was a responsible
officer of an asset management company, namely JK Capital
Management Limited. Mr. Leung was a Chartered Financial
Analyst. He was licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO") as a responsible officer to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Leung did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.

RERVEE(REE]D 445 RN
FRENZERAXBEE FERHELE
U - FEREReRE RELESRE
BEH(FTERaRREEERBITEIESR
BAOFLH RN E—OFLAE_FT =
ZFE+H REEEERBIERBRA
ANRITES HRMREBBEISM
BRAF([HRA]) ER i (RMH KR :
356) c MAKRRAR  RAEEREEERE
7~ 8]+ Bl JK Capital Management Limited
MEBEAB RELERETERMONAD
RIRBEZ R BERO(FERAENFETE)
((BERBERGDEZRR - EREE
AB AIREBIHEFESFRD) F4EG
BHIEHRER) FoHE(HEREIREHS
BERIRFH(BEEER)XHEETH -

BREXHEZEN RAELBEERRERA
TEHMM=FRLEBEREZREBLEIH
EAEEFMS LM 2ERMEMS ETRIR
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. Ma Pok Man Josiah (5 X), aged 42, has over 15 years
of experience in the horse racing and breeding industry in
Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Ma set foot in the horse racing
industry as a horse owner in Hong Kong in 2005. Since 2009,
he has also been involved in the horse breeding industry and
is a shareholder of various stallions in Australia and manages
various syndicates which own broodmares, yearlings and
racehorses in Australia. Mr. Ma is also the Hon Secretary
(Racing) of the Hong Kong Racehorse Owners Association.
Apart from his experience in the horse racing and breeding
industry, Mr. Ma has over 20 years of experience as an
engineer in the construction industry. Mr. Ma is currently a
director and shareholder of JM & Associates Limited (X #E &
515 R A &), a company principally engaged in the provision of
architectural and engineering consultancy services in respect
of property development in Hong Kong, which he acted as the
Authorised Person, Registered Structural Engineer and design
engineer for various construction projects. Mr. Ma obtained
his bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from the University
of New South Wales, Australia in May 2002 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in September 2011. He was admitted as a
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE") in
2007, a Registered Professional Engineer in 2008, a Registered
Structural Engineer in 2009 and an Authorised Person (List of
Engineers) in 2010. Mr. Ma is also a board member of Zero
Carbon Building, a company limited by guarantee, developed
by the Construction Industry Council in collaboration with the
Hong Kong Government, a member of Wai Ji Christian Service
and a Professional Assessment Assessor to the HKIE.

Mr. Ma did not hold other directorship in any other listed
or public companies, of which the securities are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the three
preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. Shane McGrath, aged 44, has over 20 years of
experience in the horse racing and breeding industry in
Australia. Mr. McGrath has been the chief executive officer
of Aquis Farm since May 2017 and will resign from such
position with effect from 31 December 2021.
bloodstock sales manager at Coolmore Australia from
November 2009 to May 2017 and a general manager at Eliza
Park Stud from March 2000 to March 2009. At Eliza Park
Stud, in addition to the development of a successful pre-
training and racing division, Mr. McGrath oversaw the stallion
operation from a three-stallion roster to 12 during his tenure.
Under his leadership, Eliza Park Stud became one of the most
recognized stud farms in Victoria, Australia with participation
from local and international partners Mr. McGrath introduced.
At Coolmore Australia, Mr. McGrath promoted successfully
the syndication concept with an aim to achieve risk sharing
and capital participation in its stallion portfolio and assisted in
raising fresh capital for expansion. Two of the most famous
stallion syndicates promoted by Mr. McGrath were retired
champion racehorses “Pierro” and “So You Think". During his
tenure at Aquis Farm, Mr. McGrath was the chief executive
officer and oversaw a team of approximately 150 staff. He
led the team and established stud bases in different states
across eastern Australia, most notably a Hunter Valley base in
the state of New South Wales, in partnership with Emirates
Park in which the stallion careers of Invader and Spieth were
launched. In addition, at the Canungra headquarters in the
state of Queensland, inaugural stallion “Spill The Beans”
served a record number of mares in his first season and
also subsequently became the champion first season sire in
Queensland. Mr. McGrath was also instrumental in selecting
high calibre racehorses for Aquis Farm including Farnan,
Anders, Prague, Sunlight, Fundamentalist, Houtzen, Away
Game, Osamu and Holyfield. Under Mr. McGrath’s leadership,
Invader, The Mission, Divine Prophet, Spieth have commenced
their stallion careers.

He was a

Mr. McGrath did not hold other directorship in any other listed
or public companies, of which the securities are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the three
preceding years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming (R 2 8), aged 64, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 24 November
2017. Mr. Sung is also the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of each of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Group. Mr. Sung has over
30 years of experience in accounting and assurances. Mr.
Sung graduated from La Trobe University in Australia in March
1984 with a bachelor’'s degree in economics. Mr. Sung was
admitted as a fellow of the Taxation Institute of Australia and
a member and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in November 1987, December 1987
and February 1995, respectively. He was also admitted as
an associate of CPA Australia and Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand in March 1986 and April 1989,
respectively. Mr. Sung has been the sole proprietor of Alfred
Sung & Co. since 1999 and he is primarily responsible for
overseeing audit and taxation works. Currently, Mr. Sung
serves as an executive director and chief financial officer of
Modern Living Investments Holdings Limited (stock code:
8426), a company listed on GEM.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Sung did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold (Ff # 8%), aged 62, obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1986, a postgraduate diploma in
banking and finance from the City University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1990
and a master's degree in finance from City University of Hong
Kong in 1995. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, UK Chartered Management Institute,
Certified Practising Accountants, Australia, a member of
International Institute of Management and a Chartered
Financial Analyst charterholder. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of JBB Builders International Limited,
whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1903). Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in project finance and fund-raising activities for
construction projects in Hong Kong and Asia Pacific

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel (A R 1E), aged 39, obtained
his bachelor of science degree in mathematics, economics
and finance from The University of Hong Kong in 2004. Mr.
Chow is a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Chow has over 15
years of experience in managing investment funds. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chow served at Dah Sing Bank from
October 2004 to July 2005 as a risk control assistant and he
served at JK Capital Management Limited from July 2005 to
December 2017 with his last position as an assistant portfolio
manager. From May 2018 to May 2019, Mr. Chow served as an
assistant portfolio manager at Step Capital Management (HK)
Limited. From May 2019 to August 2020, Mr. Chow served as
a portfolio manager at Reliance International Financial Planners
Limited. Since September 2020, Mr. Chow has served as a
portfolio manager at Perpetuum Wealth Management Limited
and since October 2020, he has served as a responsible
officer to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chow did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. She Siu Ming (R4 83), aged 63,
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Xinhua Thread Co.,
Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(“Guangzhou Xinhua"). Mr. She is primarily responsible
for the management of business operations of Guangzhou
Xinhua as well as the internal control of the Group. Mr. She
joined the Group in March 2002. Mr. She graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1983 with a
bachelor's degree in business administration. Mr. She was
admitted as a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) in February 1997.

is the director and

Ms. Liu Jinghui (218 £), aged 48, is the financial controller
of Guangzhou Xinhua. Ms. Liu is primarily responsible for the
financial control of Guangzhou Xinhua. Ms. Liu joined the
Group in August 1994. Ms. Liu received her associate degree
in polymer chemical engineering from the South China
University of Technology (32 T K2) in the PRC in July
1994. She also obtained qualifications as a registered tax
adviser from the Department of Personnel of the Guangdong
Province (E® & AZEE) in October 2004.

Mr. Lui Hak Kong ( & %= | ), aged 57, is the production
manager of Guangzhou Xinhua. Mr. Lui is primarily responsible
for the production management as well as quality control of
Guangzhou Xinhua. Mr. Lui joined the Group in June 1996.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lui worked for Dik Sun Dyeing
Factory Ltd. as a person-in-charge for its laboratory and
quality control from June 1990 to April 1996. From June 1983
to March 1990, Mr. Lui worked as a merchandiser and site
leader of Fang Brothers Knitting Limited, which was a knitting
company.
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Mr. Wong Pak Yip (& & %), aged 55, is the sales manager of
Guangzhou Xinhua. Mr. Wong is primarily responsible for the
sales and marketing of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group
in July 1990. Mr. Wong completed a post-secondary five
course at Sha Tin Technical Institute (now known as Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Sha Tin)), majoring in
retail supervision, in July 1997. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wong worked for Unimix Limited, a garment manufacturing
and trading company, as a sales assistant from August 1988 to
May 1990. From August 1986 to July 1988, Mr. Wong worked
for Sun Hop Kee Garment Factory, a garment production
company, as a merchandiser.

None of the members of the senior management of the Group
has been a director of any listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that cultivating and maintaining a culture
focused on good corporate governance is essential to
effect strong business growth and continue the efficient
management of the Company. The Directors are of the view
that strong corporate governance practices can safeguard the
interests of and ensure accountability to the Shareholders as a
whole.

The corporate governance code (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted
by the Board. Nevertheless, the Directors are committed
to regularly reviewing its corporate governance practices to
ensure conformity with the standard set out in the CG Code,
as well as meeting the rising expectation of the Shareholders
and other stakeholders of the Company.

Except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in this corporate
governance report, the Board is of the view that the Company
has complied with the code provisions for the year ended 31
December 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by the Directors equivalent to the
required standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors have all confirmed,
having been made specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and the
required standard concerning securities transactions by the
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Corporate Governance
rEERHE(E)

Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEExw
Composition of the Board EEgrAERK
The Board currently comprises: EEeERNERE:
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
(Chairman and chief executive officer)
BRRBEE(FEFTHAEE)
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch
PR 1B 3R % A
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex
Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah (appointed as a Director on 13 May 2021)
BEXEE (R=F=——FHRA+=HEZF)
Mr. Shane McGrath (appointed as a Director on 3 January 2022)
Shane McGrath % 4 (RZFE-Z—F—HA=HAEZT)

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming

NIEBA O A

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold
PR BF 5E A

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel
AREEBXE

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the EZEFEFEBEHAAEEREZEELS
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior HREBRENEFEEIE]I—

Management” of this annual report.

Except as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical KIEELSPNEEENBESIS] —®AM
Details of Directors and Senior Management”, there has been HEEN  EEF7RHMEG K - 2% &
no financial, business, family or other material relationship Bt E b & KB 1% o

among the Directors.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has provided
a written confirmation of his independence and the Company
regards them as independent pursuant to rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board will hold regular board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such meetings are
expected to involve active participation, either in person or
through electronic means of communication, of a majority of
the Directors entitled to be present.

Below is the attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2021:

ﬁ%%'ﬁ$ﬁTﬁE%thﬁW%
509K ER BB -

Exe N EBFOREINAEHESS
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EEREERIKNEBETBRASTRA
%Eﬁiﬁfﬁ% & °

NTREZREERBE_T_—F+_-A
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A0 8%

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HERE

Name of Directors BEEHSR BITEERE
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert =R ESLAE 15/15
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch PR 2 3R 5T A& 15/15
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex REWEE 15/15
Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah BEXEE 8/8
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming NI E A 15/15
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR #E BF %2 4 15/15
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel ARELE 15/15
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Below is the attendance record of each Director at the general
meeting of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021:

ATREREENBE_FT_—F1+-H
ST -BALEFERETNARAKRRBEFA
G HHF R

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HEXRE

Name of Directors EEHA BITEREARH
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert FEREEE 2/3
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch PR B 2R ST A 3/3
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex REWMEE 3/3
Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah BEXEE -/~
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming NIBAALE A 3/3
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR i B % A 3/3
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BAEELE 3/3

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is primarily responsible for the overall management
and strategic planning and development of the Group, which
may involve convening general meetings and reporting the
Board's work at a shareholders’ meeting, determining business
and investment plans, preparing annual financial budgets and
final reports and formulating proposals for profit distributions.
Day-to-day management is alternatively delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management. The functions
delegated to senior management are regularly reviewed by the
Board to ensure that they are appropriately aligned with the
Group's needs.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had
three independent non-executive Directors and was at all
times in compliance with the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, which specifies that the independent non-executive
Directors must represent at least one third of the Board
members with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance policies to
cover the Directors’ risk exposure/liabilities with respect to
any legal actions against the Directors arising from corporate
activities of the Company. Such insurance coverage was
reviewed by the Board and shall continue to be reviewed
annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no committee for
corporate governance was established and the Board is thus
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
outlined in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Directors may hold Board meetings when necessary and
include any relevant matters for discussion in the agenda as
they see fit. A minimum of 14 days’ notice of such Board
meetings is given to all Directors. A draft agenda for each
Board meeting typically accompanies the notice to give the
Directors an opportunity to raise any other relevant issues for
discussion in the meeting. Board papers and related materials
to the meeting are circulated to each Director before each
meeting for their perusal to ensure that they can make an
informed decision to discharge their duty as a Director.

Draft minutes are also circulated to the Directors for their
comment and review after each Board meeting is held, and
the minutes of the Board and the Company’s committees are
kept by the company secretary of the Company. Each Board
member and Director has access to the advice and service
of the company secretary of the Company in order to comply
with relevant procedures and applicable rules and regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in management
structures and internal control procedures in order to achieve
effective accountability.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, except for the deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
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Mr. Wong, who is the chairman of the Board as well as the
chief executive officer of the Company, has been involved
in the daily operations and management of the Group since
2008. The Directors consider that vesting the roles of the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company in Mr. Wong will ensure strong and consistent
leadership, facilitate the Group’s business strategies and boost
the effectiveness of the Company’s operation. The Board will
continue to review this arrangement and consider splitting
the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company when such role splitting is beneficial
to the Group as a whole.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
state that at each annual general meeting (the "AGM"), one
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
Director retiring by rotation shall be eligible for re-election.

While each of the non-executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company to act as a non-executive
Director or independent non-executive Director for a fixed
term of three years, the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors appointed are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election according to
the Articles. Independent non-executive Directors are required
to notify the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect their independence and each of them
must provide a written confirmation of his independence every
year.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
relevant and informed, the Directors are to participate in
continuous professional development through which their
knowledge and skills can be refreshed and strengthened. As
part of the Directors’ continuous professional development
programme, newly appointed Directors are to receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction upon their
appointment as a Director while existing Directors receive
additional training when appropriate to ensure that they
are aware of and are able to comply with the obligations
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and any other statutory
requirements. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for maintaining and updating records for the
Directors’ training sessions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, Mr. Chan Yiu Tung,
Enoch, Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex, Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah,
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming, Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr.
Chow Chin Hang, Joel, comprising the Board during the year
ended 31 December 2021, participated in a training session
and each Director was provided with relevant guidance
materials with respect to the laws applicable to Directors, the
roles and responsibilities of Directors and the Directors’ duty
to disclose their interest.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) on 24 November 2017 in
order to oversee particular functions of the Company. These
committees of the Board have been established with written
terms of reference that clearly outline their authorities, powers
and duties. These terms of reference can be found on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established pursuant to rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3
of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing financial information, monitoring the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures and
maintaining the relationship with the Company’s auditors.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming
(the chairman), Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr. Chow Chin
Hang, Joel. No member of the current Audit Committee is a
member of the previous independent auditor of the Company.
The Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report as well
as the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The current terms of reference state that the Audit Committee
shall have at least four meetings annually. The Audit
Committee held a meeting on 25 March 2022 to (i) review
and approve the annual financial results in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021; (ii) discuss and consider issues
significant to financial reporting, controls on operations and
compliance, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems; and (iii) review the appointment of
the auditor and its relevant scope of work.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee held five meetings, where the Audit Committee
reviewed and discussed, amongst other matters, (i) the
Group's consolidated results for the year ended 31 December
2020; (ii) the Group’s consolidated results for the three months
ended 31 March 2021; (iii) the Group’s consolidated results
for the six months ended 30 June 2021; (iv) the Group’s
consolidated results for the nine months ended 30 September
2021; (v) the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group; and (vi) appointment of auditor of the
Group.

BEREES

ARNFERIEGEM FH MR BIFE5.28%5.33
i & 1 & <F B B9 57 B & 3CC.3.31& Bk 3 28
RZEg ERZESTIZEBEENUE
ERCERAQRTNTBRERSE KA
THIFRF A REREARQ R XA
& o

EREBEQRRB-RBIUNNTES A
AERAEE(ER) REMEERBRE
XLk -REBERZEEKETHEALR
ARRBEBLIZBENKE - BERZ
EEEEMAFERERAKEHEE_F
T—FFT A=t HULEFENGEFRE -

RERREEIR BERZBEEEFA
BRELNRER BERZRBEGER_-F
T ZHFZA-thHAHRAEgHE KOHEH

ritEHEE_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIL
FECFEMBER: (IHRLERHY
BHE KERGHED  RREREBEAEX
MR A B R A E A RE R (Gil) 2 6
BHMMNEZEREHEBIESHE -

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—B1-EE"
EBEREZECERITANEH MEBEXRZSE
gERELER R (EFEE) Ix&%
Rz -_ZTF+-_A=+T—HLFE
MGEEEBE (IAEEHE-ZE - —F =
A=+ —HUE=ZFHANKEAEELE  (IIAE
EHE_T-_—FXA=Z+HLANEAH
HRAEXBR (VVAEBEZE-_Z=_—FNA
“THRIENABEANGEER: VIAEE®
MR ERZERADBESEF: RVIEHE
& B AZ BAm o

HEERERAR /20214 3K

47



48

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TERER®RSE (E)

Below is the attendance record of each member of the Audit U TFTABE_ZT-_—S+_-_A=+—H1
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2021: FTEEZZESSKELFEEZMNL
Attendance/
number of
meetings held
HERE
Name of Directors EEHR BITEREARH
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming (chairman) RIEBBEE(EE) 5/5
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR i B % A 5/5
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BAEELE 5/5

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chow Chin
Hang, Joel (the chairman), Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming and Mr.
Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making regular recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
Directors and senior management of the Company and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy.

The current terms of reference state that the remuneration
Committee shall have at least one meeting annually. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings, where they reviewed
the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior
management of the Company and made recommendations to
the Board.
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Below is the attendance record of each member of the WUTNABZE-_ZET-_—F+-A=+—HIt
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December FEHFMEZEeSKEEESZ ML
2021:

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HERE

Name of Directors EEN®SA BITERERH
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel (chairman) BRIE & E(EE) 3/3
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming RIZRF &4 3/3
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold BeR 3 B o A 3/3

Details regarding emoluments of the Directors for the year BB EERHE-_T-_—F+_-_A=+—
ended 31 December 2021 are outlined in note 12 to the BIEFEMNBMESHF B NANEEREL
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. BRI EI2 -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the number of HE-_Z-_—#®+_-_A=+—HLEFE -
senior management members whose remuneration fell within Bl & T F T3 &S BN REEBKE A

the following band is as follows: s
Number of
individuals
Remuneration band N E A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/5 7T 4
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEE®

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive RELZZECRABE—ZHTES A=
Director, namely, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (the chairman) BE&X4E(XFFE IR ="EBBIEHTES
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. BIRIEBREEANER B L L RER KL
Sung Alfred Lee Ming, Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr. K RERIE L4 -

Chow Chin Hang, Joel.
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The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
regularly reviewing the structure of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change
to the structure of the Board. Following the establishment of
the Nomination Committee, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy in order to achieve diversity on the Board.
As such, Board members are selected based on a range of
diverse perspectives, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

The current terms of reference state that the Nomination
Committee shall have at least one meeting annually. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
held three meetings, where they assessed the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and recommended
to the Board for the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors
at the annual general meeting.

Below is the attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December
2021:

RAZBEGTIZATTHEHNESTSRE
THEMNEREFTERBEEINESS
FHEZR - NRIURBZERR  AQF
EXMEZEZHREBR UERESES
ZRL-BAit EFEXENREZEST
RBHEFBEETRRMER - Fik X1t
EHEES FHELR R HIRR
BER)EE -

i

RAEBELEN REEZE28FAA
MEL—REFZ -BE_T_—F+_H
=+-RLEFEE REZBEEERMT=ZX
% MEFERELTEBIFERTE
ENBILM YRRNBRBEAGLEN
REMBREEZAEZTGREES -

WTEEE-f—_—F+_H=4+—Ait
FERZZEBSSHNELEFESHMNLE:

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HERE

Name of Directors EEHA BITERERHY
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (chairman) — &= B{& &4 (£ &) 3/3
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming N IR RA OE A 3/3
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR i B % A 3/3
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BREELE 3/3
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors understand and recognise their responsibility to
(i) prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group;
and (ii) ensure that such financial statements are prepared to
give a true and accurate view of the state of affairs, results
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as well
as any internal standards deemed appropriate and necessary
by the Directors in order to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Further, the Directors also strive to offer
a fair and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s financial
position and prospects and ensure timely publication of the
financial statements of the Group. The Directors confirm that
as at 31 December 2021, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibility of the independent auditor of the Company
is to form its independent opinion based on its audit on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board, and
to report its opinion to the Shareholders. Further details of
their reporting responsibility are set out in the independent
auditor’s report of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. As such, the Directors are committed to
reviewing such systems regularly. The Board, the Company’s
internal audit division and the Audit Committee conducted a
review of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems during the year ended 31 December 2021 and were
satisfied with their adequacy and effectiveness. Similarly, the
Board also examined the Group's internal control systems in
terms of financial, operational, compliance, procedural and risk
management functions and were generally satisfied with the
effectiveness of the current systems in place.
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The Directors understand that the enforcement of risk
management and internal control systems is essential to the
Group's ability to manage and minimise risks that may affect
the Group’s efficiency and effectiveness, or inhibit it from
achieving the business objectives.

In relation to the undertakings provided by the controlling
Shareholders in respect of the deed of non-competition,
the details of which are outlined in the Prospectus, the
independent non-executive Directors confirm that they
have reviewed the enforcement of such undertakings and
conclude that there are no outstanding issues regarding the
undertakings that need to be raised with the Shareholders and
the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid or
payable to the Company’'s independent external auditor, Asian
Alliance, for the audit services for the Group are approximately
as follows:

B REIRTERE R &AL E
ES LQZSEIEEE&/WQ—I@E?Q’%ZKE
EREREN TS EEEEREBKEED
RENEBEEE -

FhPE AR B SR AT S 22 iR (FF B L A 4R
RER)RENARMNS  BUFNTE
EHR A EHZSTARNBRHE HIT
W 3B 7 B R GE B B Y R R OR [H RE R
RBEBRRRARFEE -

o B8 B 2 A

BHE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE-
HIEETFTAEENETZRE M2 BN
RARBINBZBMERNE BB LN
T

Amount

&4

HK$'000

Type of service BR 7% 38 Bl FAETT
Audit services EZR% 1,111

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 18
August 2016. The biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report. Pursuant to rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Chan has undertaken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In order to protect their own rights and interests, Shareholders
may propose separate resolutions in regard to substantial
issues at Shareholders’ meetings for consideration and voting.
According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions presented
at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll, and after
the relevant Shareholders’ meeting, the results of such a
poll will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. Pursuant to the Articles, an AGM will be
held annually in the relevant territory where the Shares are
listed, or elsewhere as may be determined by the Board.
Any meeting other than an AGM is deemed an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM").

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETINGS

Extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of the deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at the general meetings. Such requisition must be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Shareholders must send their written resolutions, together
with their full name, contact details and identification, by post
to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email for the attention of the company secretary of
the Company, details of which are set out below:

. 10/F., Aubin House
171-172 Gloucester Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Principal place of
business of the
Company in Hong
Kong

Email address . info@shenyouholdings.com
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An extraordinary general meeting must be within two months
after the deposit of the requisition. If, within 21 days after
the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

RIGHT OF RAISING ENQUIRIES

For queries about shareholdings, share transfers, registrations
and dividend payments, Shareholders should contact the
Company’'s Hong Kong branch share registrar, whose details
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS'’
MEETINGS

The Articles provide that Shareholders who wish to put
a resolution to a vote may convene an EGM by means of
requisition using the procedure set out above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company utilises various channels to communicate with
its shareholders and investors, including (i) the AGM or EGM,
which allows Shareholders to comment and exchange views
with the Board; (ii) the publication of interim, quarterly and
annual reports; (iii) notices, announcements and circulars; and
(iv) the Company's website at www.shenyouholdings.com.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWmE

The Directors are pleased to present this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 18 August 2016.
On 22 June 2017, the Group completed a group reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”), details of which are set out in the
section headed "History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” in the Prospectus. Through various reorganisation
procedures, the Company became the holding company of the
Group upon completion of the Reorganisation.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the
primary activities of its principal subsidiaries are the sale
and manufacture and selling of sewing threads and board
categories of garment accessories, provision of interior design,
interior decoration and furnishing services, and provision
of equine related services business. Details of the Group’s
principal activities are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of this
annual report. The Board does not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group's performance for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the main issues impacting its
results and financial position are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
In addition, a discussion of the likely future development of the
Group's business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's profitability, financial position, results of
operations, business operations and prospects may be
affected by a variety of risks including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk
management system and policies are shown in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further, the Group may also be exposed to other risks that may
be beyond its control. In particular, the Group may experience
material price fluctuations of fibre and yarn, both being raw
materials principally used in the manufacturing process of
sewing threads. The Group also faces business risks, including
(i) failure to secure a supply as the Group does not enter
into long-term supply contracts with its suppliers; (ii) any
unexpected disruption in the Guangzhou Production Facilities;
and (iii) any labour shortage, increase in labour costs or other
factors affecting labour supply in the PRC, each of which
may materially and adversely affect the Group's operations,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five years ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the
section headed “Five Year Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements of the issued share capital of the

Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights pursuant to
the Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to Shareholders, calculated according to
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
HK$70.3 million (2020: HK$29.7 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers represented
approximately 21.0% (2020: approximately 28.2%) and 41.8%
(2020: approximately 42.1%) of the Group’s total revenue,
respectively. The Group's suppliers include suppliers of
raw materials and processing works. For the year ended
31 December 2021, supplies attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and five largest suppliers represented
approximately 15.1% (2020: approximately 32.6%) and 40.0%
(2020: approximately 80.0%) of the Group’s total supplies,
respectively.
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To the Directors’ best knowledge, none of the Directors or
any of close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder who or which own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interest in
any of the five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers
of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
(Chairman and chief executive officer)
HREBEE(FEFTHAEE)
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch

BEEMAN EFRTANETHEACE
EZRGEMLEMRA K HEHL% A LR F
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Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex

REWESE

Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah (appointed as a Director on 13 May 2021)
BIEXEE (R=ZF=——FARA+=HEZF)

Mr. Shane McGrath (appointed as a Director on 3 January 2022)
Shane McGrath %t 4 (R=ZFZZF—H=HEZF)

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming

RIBHESE

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold

PR BY 5t &£

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel

ARELE
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, the Directors shall
have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director but the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the Shareholders in a general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, notwithstanding
any other provisions in the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

For the biographical details of the Directors, please refer to
the section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company pursuant to which he has agreed
to act as an executive Director for an initial term of three
years, which shall be renewed as determined by the Board or
the Shareholders. Either party is entitled to give not less than
one month’s notice to terminate the service agreement.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company to which he has agreed to act
as a non-executive Director or an independent non-executive
Director for a fixed term of three years, which shall be
renewed as determined by the Board or the Shareholders.
Except for the Director’s fees, no independent non-executive
Director is to receive any other emolument for acting as an
independent non-executive Director.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has proposed
or entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than the statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCY OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has provided
the Company with a confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As such, the Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent as at the date of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, a Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
has been arranged for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors receive compensation in the form of an annual
director’'s fee while members of the senior management
receive compensation in the form of salaries, discretionary
bonuses and other allowances. The Group also reimburses
the Directors and senior management for expenses which are
necessarily and reasonably incurred in relation to the Group's
operations or in the course of discharging their duties to the
Group. The Remuneration Committee regularly reviews and
determines the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management, taking into account factors including,
salaries payable by comparable companies, employment
conditions, responsibilities and the individual performance of
the Directors and senior management.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions
of each of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), which
were (a) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares REGREBERGZFE
(a) Ordinary shares of the Company (a) ARE]EER

Percentage of issued

Nature of interest/ Number of share capital of the
Name of Director Holding capacity ordinary shares held Company (Note 1)
N
ERITREN
BEEps EEME BRIG MEEEREE BAL (A1)
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert Interest of a controlled corporation 120,000,000 (L) 29.33%
(Notes 2)
HEELE XEGEERE RS 120,000,0000% A% 17 (L)
(Hti2)
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex Beneficial owner 10,000,000 (L) 2.44%
REWEE EnBEAA 10,000,000 % 17 (L)
(b) Share options of the Company (b) AR
Number of share options
BREHE

Approximate
Outstanding % of total

Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed at issued
at1January  duringthe  duringthe  during the 31December ordinary Date of ~ Exercisable Exercise
Name of director 2020 year year year 2021 shares grant period price
R-B=-%
it gt 2 t=B  HERf
-A-A EhE Eng Zt-B EERAEN
Ezfg WA B ff EA%R HAGE  BHESE REEE  UOEH (il
HKS
i

Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah — 3,500,000 = — 3,500,000 0.86% 13 May 2021 13 May 2021- 057
12 May 2024

SEXEE — 3,500,000 = — 3,500,000 086% —-E--F Z-ZT-_-% 0.57
LAT=H TAt=RHZE
-l 2
iz =
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Notes:

1. As at the date of this annual report, the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital was HK$20,457,093 divided into 409,141,860 Shares of
HK$0.05 each.

2 Three Gates Investment Limited ("Three Gates Investment”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 15 August 2016
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (“Mr.
Wong"), who is the chairman and an executive director of the Company.
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in 120,000,000 Shares
held by Three Gates Investment by virtue of the SFO.

3. During the period, no share options mentioned above were cancelled.

Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange according to
rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

f the Directors (Continued)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December
2021, the following persons or corporations (other than the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests and/or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares

Name of Substantial

Nature of interest/

Number of ordinary

FERRRAQTRAD K AR 5 Y

BakAR

BEEMMN RZE_—F+ZA=+—
B W TATH EZB(RAREEREE
TTEA BEBRAN AR R B 7 sk 48 78 B 1»
THERBEESFRBEEMNEXVBE2R
3D HERETARRIHKARL AR FHKH
EIEP BB BT AGFTENETLMAE
wmR KB IT

REGREBRGZHFE

Percentage of issued
share capital of the

Shareholder Holding capacity shares held Company (Note 1)

L N

BRITREN

TERRER BEtME BREH6 FESEREE Botk(#iFr)

Three Gates Investment Beneficial owner 120,000,000 29.33%
(Notes 2, 3)
EaERA 120,000,000 8% % 17
(Ktit2 - 3)

Gold-Face Finance Limited Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 19.55%
Shares (Notes 3, 4)
HRGFBHERAT BEROEZOAL 80,000,0004% A& 12
(B33~ 4)

Upbest Credit and Mortgage Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 19.55%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
EREEREBERRAT BERODEZOAL 80,000,000 &
(B33 - 4)

Good Foundation Company Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 19.55%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
AR QA BAERMDEROAL 80,000,0004% & 12
(B1i£3 - 4)

Upbest Strategic Company Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 19.55%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
ERRBERDA BERODERZOAL 80,000,000 f% 13
(BtiE3 - 4)

Upbest Financial Holdings Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 19.55%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
BERODEROAL 80,000,000 4% f% 13
(BT 73 ~ 4)
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Percentage of issued

Name of Substantial Nature of interest/ Number of ordinary share capital of the
Shareholder Holding capacity shares held Company (Note 7)
YN
ERTREN
TERRER EEtE BRE 6 fEEBEREE BAL (1)
Upbest Group Limited Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 19.55%
Shares (Notes 3, 4)
XREBEERAQA BEEROEZOAL 80,000,000 & 17
(B33 - 4)
Fung Wing Cheung, Tony Beneficial owner 40,800,000 9.97%
% K EREBA 40,800,000 A& 1
Notes: B it -
= As at the date of this annual report, the Company's issued ordinary 1. RAFEREDY  ARAFANEBRITLTBERRK
share capital was HK$20,457,093 divided into 409,141,860 Shares of 7N 520,457,093 7T+ 5 A409,141,860 % & A%
HK$0.05 each. M f80.05 TTHY B 1D »

2. Three Gates Investment is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. 2. Three Gates InvestmentfA AR A E FRNITE

Wong, who is the chairman and an executive Director of the Company. ERAEZEAEREA R BEXEHERAR
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in 120,000,000 Shares % 38 FT#5 Three Gates Investment 100% % #& 7
held by Three Gates Investment by virtue of his 100% shareholding Three Gates InvestmentFT$5120,000,000/% A%
interest in Three Gates Investment. DHEEER -

3y 80,000,000 Shares held by Three Gates Investment have been charged 3. Three Gates Investment T #80,000,000 A% % 17

in favour of Gold-Face Finance Limited (“Gold-Face”) as security for EEERTFTHRGBER AR (HEERD - bAE
a loan granted in favour of Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, the chairman, RADRBERE THEB BTEEHRERRK
chief executive officer, executive director and controlling shareholder of RERBELIEAERERMEMT -

the Company.

4. As Gold-Face is wholly-owned by Upbest Credit and Mortgage Limited, 4. HRERBEEECGEREBEERARZER

which in turn is wholly-owned by Upbest Strategic Company Limited A MEREERRBERAAAEERE
and Good Foundation Company Limited in equal parts, which in turn are ERARKERFABRBRAGDEZERNSHAE MM
both wholly-owned by Upbest Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn # f Upbest Financial Holdings Limited & & #
is wholly-owned by Upbest Group Limited, Upbest Credit and Mortgage A * fUpbest Financial Holdings Limited &l
Limited, Upbest Strategic Company Limited, Good Foundation Company XEEEBERQAAZERE  BHREZEAFRS
Limited, Upbest Financial Holdings Limited and Upbest Group Limited E&f XEEEREBERAR XE&XR
are all deemed to be interested in the security interest in the 80,000,000 BEAER AR - AMEARAF - Upbest Financial
Shares charged in favour of Gold-Face by virtue of the SFO. Holdings Limited R X2 & B BR AR HHE R
B E R T 9K 6980,000,0008% Bk h A &
HhEas -
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Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors are not aware of any interests and short positions
owned by any other parties, other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company who held interests or short
positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company, which were required to be recorded under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who
was interested, directly or indirectly, in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Eligible participants may be granted share options in line with
the Share Option Scheme. The following is a summary of the
major terms of the Share Option Scheme:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract
and retain the best available personnel of the Group,
to provide additional incentive for employees working
full-time and part-time as well as other eligible personnel
under the Share Option Scheme and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

(b) Eligible participants

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme
include (i) any full-time and part-time employee of any
member of the Group; (i) any consultant or adviser of
any member of the Group; (iii) any director (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group; (iv) any
substantial shareholder of any member of the Group; and
(v) any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of any member of
the Group.

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

BREXHEREN RZEZ—F+=A
=+—H8" %i%%ﬂ S NN N )

NEBEROFPHFEREESRBERED
FEXVERE2R3D AR E A T/ #E
HERBEHWARAESTHIETETHRAE
S EEAEERBENTEMNAIRMAERBR
TEARGRERSEELEENMEER K
REBEI0%KA LEENARGESHE
BITHRABN  BMECHEMATERE
MmN KR -

BRESE

EEMSAEIREERBEAIERE
et o DTRBEREFSZEIZGAME

(a) E#Y
BREFEHEERIEKEBEBAREH
MEHEEAT MEREZBES
FEREFGESAENEMEELRA
TIREBINER IR AERNHE
B

(b) EEKSHEHE
BRESIRTNABR2EER
FEOAEEEMKER TMEﬂiﬁ
LEBES: (WAEEEAKEAR
B (F fa BB B Sk 3 3 A ¢ (i) AN & E F
AREARMEMESE(BIFEHT -
EHRTRBIFATESR)  (VAE
B AR EATMEMEERE: Rv)
AEBEAKEARNEMDHEE -
AR HER - RE BEP ¥
B R RS o



Report of the Directors (Continued)

—_

=

(c)

(d)

(e)

g HmE (B

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined solely by
the Board and notified to a participant of the Share
Option Scheme and shall be at least the higher of: (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant of the option, provided that in the event of
fractional prices, the subscription price per Share shall be
rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof.

Grant of options

An offer for the grant of options shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of seven days, including the day
in which the offer was made. The amount payable by the
grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of the option is HK$1.0.

(c)

(d)

(e)
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Maximum number of shares available for
subscription

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the share option schemes
of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

Subject to sub-paragraphs (iii) and (iv) below, the
maximum number of Shares issuable upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company as from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (excluding,
for this purpose, Shares insurable upon the exercise
of options which have been granted but have lapsed
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the Shares in
issue upon the Listing Date.

The 10% limit as mentioned in sub-paragraph (ii)
above may be refreshed at any time by approval of
the Shareholders in a general meeting, provided that
the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Company) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
limit as “refreshed”. A circular must be sent to the
Shareholders containing the information as required
pursuant to the relevant GEM Listing Rules.
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(iv) Subject to sub-paragraph (i) above, the Company
may seek separate approval from the Shareholders
in general meeting for granting any option under
the Share Option Scheme beyond the 10% limit
under sub-paragraph (ii) and (iii) above, provided
that the options under the Share Option Scheme in
excess of the limit are granted only to participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, the Company
must send a circular to the Shareholders containing
a generic description of the specified persons who
may be granted and the purpose of granting such
options to the specified persons with an explanation
of how the terms of the options will serve the
purpose and all other information required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) under
the Share Option Scheme or any other option schemes
of the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue, unless approved by the Shareholders in the
manner stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing from the date on which
the scheme is adopted and will expire on 24 November
2027.

Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting or the
Board may at any time terminate the operation of the
Share Option Scheme and in such event no further
options of the Share Option Scheme will be offered.
However, those options granted prior to such termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the previous provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

No Share option has been granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Shareholder’s loan agreement between Mr. Wong
and Tseyu International

On 31 March 2020, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and an executive Director (“Mr.
Wong”), and Tseyu International Trading Company Limited
("Tseyu International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a shareholder’'s loan agreement in
respect of the shareholder’s loans provided by Mr. Wong to
Tseyu International. The shareholder’s loans, amounting to
HK$19,171,000, are interest-free, unsecured and repayable in
cash on demand. As the shareholder’'s loans were provided
on normal commercial terms or better and were not secured
by the assets of the Group, the shareholder’'s loans are fully
exempt under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details
of the shareholder’s loan agreement are set out in the circular
dated 16 February 2021.

Loan agreement between Mr. Wong and Guangzhou
Xinhua

On 31 March 2020, Mr. Wong and Guangzhou Xinhua Thread
Company (BMFEREHBRAF) (“Guangzhou Xinhua"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement in relation to the intra-group current
accounts balance in a sum of RMB16,760,277 (equivalent to
HK$18,603,907) due from Mr. Wong to Guangzhou Xinhua. It
was agreed that, among other things, interest shall be payable
by Mr. Wong to Guangzhou Xinhua to be accrued at a rate of
2% per annum on the outstanding current accounts balance
from the date of the loan agreement and the current accounts
balance shall be repaid by Mr. Wong within three years from
the date of the loan agreement. Such loan agreement has
been approved by the independent shareholders based on
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the loan
agreement are set out in the circular dated 16 February 2021
and announcements of the Company dated 8 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

The Directors and the controlling shareholders of the Company
have confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this annual report, none of the Directors,
controlling Shareholders or any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) engaged
in any businesses that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group, or had any other conflict of interest
with the Group.

On 24 November 2017, each of Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert and
Three Gates Investment, being the controlling Shareholders,
entered into a non-competition undertaking in favour of
the Company, details of which were set out in the section
headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders
— Non-competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus. Such
undertakings have been fully complied with and enforced during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.

The Board confirms that as at the date of this annual report,
no other matters are required to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders and the potential investors.

Further, the independent non-executive Directors confirm that
they have reviewed the enforcement of such undertakings and
conclude that there are no outstanding issues regarding the
undertakings that need to be raised with the Shareholders and
the Company.

SANCTIONS UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company provided an
undertaking to the Stock Exchange that it would not use the
proceeds from the Share Offer or any funds raised through the
Stock Exchange to finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly,
activities or business with, or for the benefit of, countries
that are sanctions under international sanction laws, or any
sanctioned government, entity or individual.
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To ensure its compliance with this undertaking and to further
enhance its risk management, the Group will continue to
evaluate any business opportunities with those countries
sanctioned under international sanction laws and will have
delegated members of the senior management of the
Company review the transaction documents from customers
or potential customers from countries sanctioned under
international sanctions laws.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group's related party transactions are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Directors confirm that during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the minimum public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2021

On 3 January 2022 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company
resolved to grant 4,091,418 share options under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 24 November
2017 to Mr. Shane McGrath, an executive Director, to
subscribe for up to 4,091,418 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each in the share capital of the Company (each a “Share”),
subject to acceptance of the Grantee. As at the Date of Grant,
the Company has 409,141,860 shares in issue. The total of
4,091,418 shares to be subscribed under the share options
granted represent 1.00% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company as at the Date of Grant and approximately 0.99%
of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company assuming
full exercise of the share options. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 3 January 2022.
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For the existing principal business of manufacturing and selling
of sewing threads, the Group has experienced difficulties
owing to the outbreak of the coronavirus (“COVID-19")
pandemic and uncertainties due to the ongoing trade conflict
between the PRC and the United States of America (the
“U.S.") as well as the gradual slowdown of the PRC economy.
Although the tension of COVID-19 seemed to be abating, the
Group expects that the trade conflict between the PRC and
the US and the COVID-19 will still continue impacting our
business. The Group will continue to pay close attention to
the trade conflict and COVID-19 and to evaluate its impact on
the financial position, cashflows and operating result of this
business line.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance was appointed as the auditor of the Company.
A resolution for the reappointment of Asian Alliance as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Shen You Holdings Limited
Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
Chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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/ ERN(EE)SHMEBEFAERAE
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

To the shareholders of Shen You Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shen
You Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 87
to 238, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

FAREZEE

ARECEFRETSREEXHAERA
BAHUEAYBRENERRREEN
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our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
HREEXRSE
Impairment of trade receivables

WX S RERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBERTEEBRRERSEENS X

We identified impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables to the Group’s
consolidated financial position and the involvement
of subjective judgement and management estimates
in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL")
of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.
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As disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounting to approximately HK$16,027,000
have been net off with ECL on trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$1,375,000 as at 31
December 2021.

WU ERE MR RMF23MBEE RZF = —
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment

of trade receivables included:

EERERRSGRBERENFGAETZEFBE:

e Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the credit loss allowance
for trade receivables;

e THREHAEEENMAAFERRIINEGEES
18 B e B R 4 1 R B

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as
at 31 December 2021, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with
the relevant sales invoices and other supporting
documents;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
BREXSE(E
Impairment of trade receivables

P& e X 5 SR IE RLE

EREZEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEBERTEERRERSENG E

As disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group
estimates the amount of ECL of trade receivables
based on provision matrix through grouping of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering internal credit ratings of debtors,
ageing, repayment history and/or past due status
of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit-impaired
or with significant balances are assessed for ECL
individually. The loss allowance amount of the
credit-impaired trade receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
with the consideration of expected future credit
losses.
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° Challenging management’'s basis and
judgement in determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 31 December 2021,
including their identification of significant
balances and credit-impaired receivables
and, the reasonableness of management'’s
grouping of the remaining debtors into different
categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each
category in the provision matrix (with reference
to historical default rates and forward-looking
information);
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° Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements; and

e HMHEEAMBHRRMAIHABEHRAELR S
HRIERETEOEE &

° Testing subsequent settlements of credit-
impaired trade receivables, on a sample basis,
by inspecting supporting documents in relation
to cash receipt from trade debtors subsequent
to the end of the current reporting period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
BREEXSBE(E)
Impairment of other receivables
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBERTEEBRRERSENS X

We identified impairment assessment of other
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
management’s estimation in measuring the ECL
under ECL model as stipulated in HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”).
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As explained in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, the balance of impairment
allowances on other receivables was approximately
HK$4,607000 as at 31 December 2021, of which
approximately HK$1,046,000 has been charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the others receivables and the
sufficiency of impairment loss allowance based on
information including credit profile of the debtors,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, ageing of the others receivables, value of
the collaterals and expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances.
eﬁﬁ%#ﬁﬁA%ﬁEﬁR & £ i B Al i
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Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the ability of the
debtors to repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses for the
impairment assessment.& I%J'?T%FETQE%’E &
BABERENGERENOAELEER - bR
@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ%o

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment

of other receivables included:

EERAMERRBERENGMETZEFBE:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's
expected credit loss policy and methodology
for impairment assessment;

s EBMESBEHNEEEBEBRXRKE
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° Reviewing the reasonableness of
management’'s estimation in expected timing
of collection and the credit quality of individual
debtors, including the background of the
debtors and their credit worthiness, collection
history and value of collaterals; and
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° Checking the accuracy of the ageing
classification of the others receivable balances
on a sample basis.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
BREXSE(E

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

ME BERKRBEUAREAEEEMSSRE

EREZEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEBERTEERREERSENS E

The carrying values of the Group’'s property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets ("ROU") as
at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$7,814,000 and HK$3,383,000 respectively.
During the year, no impairment has been recorded
to reduce the carrying value of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to their
estimated recovered value. The carrying values of
these assets are reviewed annually by management
for potential indicators of impairment. For assets
where such indicators exist, management engages
an independent external valuer to assist them
to perform detailed impairment review of the
recoverable amount of these non-financial assets.
EEER - ET-_—F+_A=+—BzZ2VE BE
LR EREELNAR7814000%8 T FREZE ([
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We identified the impairment of property, plant
and equipment and ROU as a key audit matter
because the assessment involves a significant
degree of management judgements and estimates in
determining the key assumptions.
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The significant judgements and estimates and
related disclosures on the movements of properties,
plant and equipment and ROU are included in Notes
16 and 18 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included, among others,
involve evaluating the methodologies used by the
independent external valuer for determining the
recoverable amount, and assessing the discount
rate and market data used in the assessment of
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment and ROU.
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We also examined the underlying data used such as
management projection on the future revenues and
operating results by comparing with the financial
performance of each cash-generating unit (“CGU")
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
examining the business development plans and
historical annual growth of each CGU to evaluate the
growth rate of each CGU used in the projection.
EENEBLEHEE_T-_—F+_A=+—H81I1
FESReEABN(REELEEN DT B RR -
WEB AT A ERESE(DINE E R KRR &S R &S
XENERERAN) ITRhBRAEERAIRER
TELABUMBEFEER  UMEREANFTER
MWEReEFEUERE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

HRELER(A)
Impairment assessing of goodwill
BB E R

EREZEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBERTEEBRRERSENS X

The Group has goodwill with carrying amount of
approximately HK$6,683,000 as at 31 December
2021, which is allocated to the CGU represented
by interior design and decoration business. In
determining the recoverable amounts of goodwill,
the Group engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform such valuation. The valuation is
determined based on the value-in-use model for
the CGU discounted to their present values and
it requires the use of key assumptions, including
the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted
revenue and gross margin, taking into account the
financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company based on the management’s experience
from interior design and decorations business,
and also management’'s expectations for the
market development. During the year ended 31
December 2021, impairment loss of approximately
HK$12,103,000 had been recognised on goodwill.
E%@@ifg:_¢+_ﬂ_+ HOMERE
18 #) %6,683,000/8 7T * 7 2 4 LA = AR 5t M K #
EBRRKRBCGU - Eﬁmﬁ@MT%@iﬁkv
EEEREEVEXMEMETZMEE HERR
BCGUMRIMNENERAEEREBEN  ©F
EERERETRE KRnEREX BEKAFNER
FHEANBERBR VTEERERANESREBEERRE
EEARANMEHERE T ENLRILENT K E
E ULEEEYMBEERNBAE BE_T=—
FH+ZA=T—HLEE ERRAEEREEEY
12,103,000/ 7T °

We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter due to its complexity
and the inherent subjectivity arising from the
significant management judgment.
E#W@ME%ﬁuﬁﬁﬁgﬁkﬂﬁéimﬁﬁ
FEM EEHREORAETERERBERERS
I8 o

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of the carrying amount of goodwill included, but
were not limited to:
EEHEEBEREEET
TR :

TREMGEERANETFEER

° Understand the Group’'s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model performed by the independent qualified
valuer, basis of allocation of goodwill to
the CGU, the preparation of the cash flow
projection (“Cashflow Forecast”) and key
assumptions adopted in this Cashflow Forecast
through enquiries with the independent valuer
and management’s review process of the work
of the independent valuer with respect to the
valuation of CGU,;

. THMESENRAENHRBIE BEBEVAEME
L%ﬁm%ﬂ@ﬁﬂ‘maw PECE B AR -
BBREBYMEMOARNERBHBE A
F%m%ﬁI¢M§¥ﬂ&’ﬁ%ﬁim;
BA(RERERINDMNREREFEAPERA
R R R

° Evaluating the independent valuer's
competence, capabilities and their experiences
in conducting valuation of similar goodwill;

e HEBUGEMHEBRUNBETHENEE -
BE AL 5

° Checking the respective independent valuation
reports and discussing the valuation of
the carrying amount of goodwill with the
management, and together with our own
external valuation specialists, where necessary;

e REZEBWNEVHERSE UREEREETHY
EEMEMNGE YEXNERETZEECHIN
HHEER i
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
HRELZEEH(A
Impairment assessing of goodwill

72 8 Rl {E R L
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
& St B R i (AR

EREZEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBERTEEBRERSEENS X

Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
models, the preparation of the Cashflow
Forecast and assumptions based on the
industry knowledge;

THEEREENEEE BETEANERER

BeRERBAMER:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
key inputs in the Cashflow Forecast by
independently checking to the relevant external
market data and/or relevant historical financial
information including budgeted revenue and
gross margin, and terminal growth rate by
considering the approved financial budgets and
the available industry and market data;

WBE LR EHEEIN TS BB AE A
FELEMBELS BEBERAMENE UK
ZRLENMBAENA ANITEMNT IS &
BORmERE FHReRERAFEHREE
ABBRHEEM:

Comparing the historical cash flows forecast
against the performance of CGU to test the
reasonableness of projections; and
BELHEESREENECGUMEEEITHLE -
ORI A& M &

Checking the mathematical accuracy of
valuation calculations.

BEGBEAENRSERNK -



Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
HREXSE(E
Valuation of biological assets

EYEEME

EREZEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBERTEEBRRERSENS X

As at 31 December 2021, biological assets
measured at fair value are classified as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy, amounted to approximately
HK$17,571,000.

HE-ZTE-_—F+-A=+—H UAAhEEHF=E
NENMBEERAABESRATHBEEREIR AR
17,571,000 7T °

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net fair
value gains on biological assets is approximately
HK$969,000.
HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HULEFE £WEE
B A B U 5 89 /969,000 7T °

In determining the fair values of biological assets,
the Group engages independent professional valuers
to perform valuation of the aforesaid biological
assets.
EXEERTEEMEEN D AER -
HEMEY ERAEMEELETHE-

EEBLEXE

Key audit matter (Continued)

Our procedures in relation to valuation of biological
assets included, but were not limited to:

BEFRAEVEEHRERENEFERETRR:

° Obtaining understanding of the valuation
models and the processes through
enquiries with the independent valuers and
management’s review process of the work of
the independent valuers with respect to the
valuation of biological assets;

J ABEBYGEMOAB UREBEEHBEV
HEMEEMEEGFEFEANIENETESRIE
THREAEREMRRE

° Evaluating the independent valuers'’
competence, capabilities and their experiences
in conducting valuation of similar biological
assets;

e HHEBUGEMEBAUAMEEETHED
BE  wAMKSH:

° Checking the respective independent valuation
reports and discussing the valuation of the
biological assets with the management, and
together with our own external valuation
specialists:

e REXENBUMERT VHEEENR4E
MEEMNME TEEZFNIIFHESK L

A

— Evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation models and assumptions based
on the industry knowledge;

— BETEABTHMEEERNRZDHE

Bt
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BEREZSEE)
Valuation of biological assets

EYEEME

EREZEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBERTEEBRERSEENS X

We identified the valuation of the aforesaid biological
assets as a key audit matter due to the degree of
complexity involved in valuing biological assets,
the significance of the judgment and estimates
made by the management in determining the inputs
used in the valuation models and the subjectivity in
determination of level 3 fair value given the lack of
availability of market-based data.
HREEYEEETHESIIRNERREREE  URE
MRBRZERNTSNEE  EREEREMEREE R
ERANBABBERMEOHBENEANEZT - A
NREBMTESEIMMAAERHTHLE  EFHF L4
MEENGERTABEBEERZEE -

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Evaluating the appropriateness of the key
inputs by independent checking of the
relevant data and/or relevant historical financial
information;

BBBURESHEBNDTIS BB LEB
B GBEE T HBAREASBNHEE T

Checking the mathematical accuracy of
valuation calculations; and

MEREAENHEERE: R

Making inquiry for the background of the
contracted parties and obtaining direct external
confirmations from the contracted parties
to understand the relevant investments and
identifying any conditions that were relevant to
the valuation of biological assets.

AP ANER WRHETHFTESFEEEMNI
HER ATHREERE  YHETEEDEE
M EE @O E GG -



Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information in the annual report of the Company, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

H & #

ErRES(EEDHEBENER - H
MWEMBEERRFRME—DNEFR IE
TEEEAMBERARESFHEZR L ZZ
BENH & -

MERRRER
EERBREMTY

RESHEAVBRRNEBERMNE - &

METEMREEBLER - ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@é
HERRGAMBRRIABFEERT
EENEMBEST  HUTFEEMTE
FEBREXERLE HEBSERERET
%Iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁMEHTEEK%fﬁ
MR BEEAREZEE - HEHE

EEREAEE D_r/%%#-&i °
EENAEEBHGREVBRRNER

EZREREBEEASH 2 EEMNE
B BEREENREBDGEO M H E R
ERBEEAARMBENNGE T HHRE
WEEEZEEEESRAVNENEBRAIIES -
WHEREREE Hﬁﬂ‘%iﬁ?\%%?f%—t.ﬁ"
FFERMEBBMNE RAER M

RERAVBHRRE BEFRETEHESR
BRELENRN  EEERRER E%
EHBEER LR E%@ﬁ‘\‘%%/
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

BRBAMHERES

BB HmERNELL
(&)

e RBUEBEURBELERGEZ
BEENGER YREESHNER
BEMTREGFHAEAECTESER
FEEBRNELEERRENENH
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Lam Chik Tong

Practising Certificate Number: P05612

8/F., Catic Plaza
8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEanMEAEMETERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

Notes
B it
Revenue I &= 5
Cost of sales iz DN
Gross profit E
Other gains (losses), net HEmlhm (BE)F8E 7
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX
Administrative expenses THAX
Impairment loss on financial assets, @A EREEBEFHE
net
Impairment loss on non-financial e mEEME
assets, net B 18 FE
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREERE 19
Other expenses Hib X
Finance costs b & B AN 8
Loss before tax B i Bl & 18
Income tax expense FrEBHAX 9
Loss for the year FREE 10
Other comprehensive income His 2 EK A
Items that may be reclassified KA & B ] 7] ¢ & #r 77
subsequently to profit or loss: HBEEHIEE
Exchange differences arising on MEBFIINEFZHE R
translation of foreign operations =F
Other comprehensive income forthe Z2FHME2MEEK A 2
year, net of income tax MERFTE R
Total comprehensive expense for ZF2HEBBAEHE
the year
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF KATEBEAER
THE COMPANY
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARK#ECEW) 15

2021

—_E_—F

HK$°000
FERT

73,365
(58,573)

14,792
4,269
(7,023)

(23,356)

(1,520)

(12,103)
(1,634)
(666)

(27,241)

(27,241)

(25,737)

(25,737)

2020

—7—7

HK$'000
TAT

44,984
(34,537)

10,447
(1,077)
(5,745)
(13,942)
(146)
(1,465)

(3,302)
(365)

(15,595)

(15,595)

4,090

4,090

(11,505)

(11,505)

(6.22)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

" At31December 2021 R-TE-——#+=-H=+—H

Notes
B it
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERZE 16
Investment properties "EME 17
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 18
Goodwill [ 19
Biological assets EMEE 20
Financial asset at fair value through EAnRBEHAER
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([BAARBEAER]

MemEE 21
CURRENT ASSETS B EE
Inventories rE 22
Biological assets EWEE 20
Trade receivables FEW X 5 K IB 23
Contract assets EREE 24
Deposit and other receivables Be Rk HAMEWKE 23
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHER 25
CURRENT LIABILITIES B & 1
Trade payables FET R 5 5B 26
Other payables and accruals E’r@ﬁ’éﬁmﬁ&

EEtE A 26
Bank borrowings IRITE X 27
Lease liabilities HEAaE 28
Tax payables JE 15 B 18
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBER

LIABILITIES

88 SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

2021
—E_—=F

HK$’000
THET

5,253

34,553

14,050
10,512
16,027

2,823
15,744
27,277

86,433

7,391
11,175
5,809

2,818
804

27,997

58,436

2020
HK$'000
TAT

5,144

12,997

5,510
4,583

1,956
641

12,690

35,453

48,450



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e BRI R(E)

At 31 December 2021 R-_ZFE-—#F+_-_HA=+—H

2021
—E-—F
Notes HK$'000
23 T & T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 28
NET ASSETS EEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAEREE
Share capital fi% A< 29 20,457
Reserves i 1 71,308
TOTAL EQUITY R 91,765

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 238
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
EEE
Director

EF

$87H & $238E 7 ix A
E-__F#=ZA= +£EZ§%$A%&/§&&

BEM AHTINERE

Leung King Yue, Alex

Director

EF

2020
HK$'000
TAET
2,842
45,608
12,000

33,608

45,608

BHHmRE R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

_/”:d’,"-'or the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ—-F - —F+-A=+—HIFFEF

Share Share Merger Share option  Statutory ~ Exchange ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
e RHEE  AGEE BRERE  iERE  ENRE gt it
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR T ThT TR T ThT TR TiEn
o @) o3 (Note b)
Waa) Wiz (W)

At 1 January 2020 R-B-FF
-B-A 8,000 57751 (1,000 = 5,670 6,037 (33,986 42412
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (15,595) (15,595)
Other comprehensive income for ~ 2EEHZERA -
the year, net of income tax BENRAE
Jtems thet mey be reclassified  KERBETEEH
subsequently to profit or 10ss: FEEERH
BE:
Exchange differences arising REBNEBNE
on translation of foreign BEE
operations — - - — - 4,090 — 4,090
Total comprehensive expense for 2 E2EAFELES
the year - - - - - 4,090 (15,59) (11,505)
Issue of shares under rights issues 15 £ &£ & /7R 1)
Note 29) (W#29) 4,000 10,641 - - - - - 14,641
At 31 December 2020 and S g
1 January 2021 A=t-BR=%
—-f-8-A 12,000 68,392 4 i 10,127 (49,581) 45,608
Loss for the year 2 WEE # - - - (27241) (27241)
Other comprehensive income for 2 EEH2EWA -
the year, net of income tax BHNRAER
tems that may be reclassifed  RERBETHEF
subsequently to profit or loss: PEEERHE
g
Exchange differences arising RERNEBNE
on translation of foreign BES

operations

Total comprehensive expense for 22 AFRLE
the year ] (27241) (25,737)

Recognition of equity settled share- B 58 M % £ £

based payment Rzt . 1,155
Issue of consideration shares for BB ZEE
acquisition (Note 31 RO i 2,256 25,628
Issue of shares (Note 29/ ¥k ! 40,026 45,111
At 31 December 2021 RZ8=-£+Z8
=t-A 20,457 130,674 (1,000) 1,155 i 11,631 (76,822) 91,765
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

/\‘/—J_\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

Notes:

(a)

(b)

—H— N7
/ ~ II\EIII\

gHxR(E

The merger reserve represented the difference between the Company’s
shares of the nominal value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and the Company’s cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under
common control upon the reorganisation undergone by the Group.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the companies
registered in the PRC shall appropriate a certain percentage of their net
profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) calculated under
the accounting principles generally applicable to the PRC enterprises to
the reserve fund. When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity's capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset prior years' losses or to increase
capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after these usages. After
making the appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve, the companies
may also appropriate their profits for the year to the discretionary surplus
reserve upon approval by the board of directors or the shareholders in a

general meeting.

CEE

(a)

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

aNRFEDEAEEETEAR  ARAENK
BHBEARMERANHERARFRER K
FEGOHBRARNOKAZMHER -

RETPEBABZEZEZR RPEEAMORTE
BRETECEXEBEANGARUAEND
BAENETE L (REFHETANEFEBRR)
B ﬁ%%O%ﬁ%%%m EHREERER

50% + BRI AT B 15 0R E 2 4 4 & fF T —
i@ﬁ°£i§%ﬁﬁ7ﬁuﬁﬁuﬁig%

BYIRE - A ERENEERKRFERBS
SOREFHEERN2% - FEERBRFEEE

HBERE  AAMAKLEFSRABRRABREX
BLAER  BAFEEMNBEECERBHRE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR RER

" For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & —

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Fair value (gain) loss on financial asset at
FVTPL

Fair value gains on investment properties

Fair value gain on biological assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on early termination of a lease

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
non-financial assets

Equity-settled share based payment
expense

Eo—FF+ A=+ —HIFE

bR 5 B 5 18

Az
AR

IEY N
BAREFABENSRER
2 fo (8 Ol 2%) s 48
SOEWED A ER S

Y A R A 3

M BE LRGN E

EREBERE
HENE BMERXEREZ
SE

AR ILHEEES

e W 32 5 5ROR e H At e W R
BHERZBEEERR
REERAZRERR
RFTRMEERR ZMERRE

DRESEENRNDIMRAX

Gain on disposal of biological assets HEEMEEMKE
Operating loss before working capital RTEEESEHILERFR
changes
Increase in inventories FEEM

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables

Decrease (increase) in prepayments, deposit
and other receivables

Increase in trade payables

Increase (decrease) in other payables and
accruals

FE M3 5 308 (38 00) 5>
B ROE - B RE M BN
B (3 1)
LOESEEED:
LI e
380 (3. )

Increase in contract assets BHEELM

Increase in biological assets EYE EE

Cash used in operations REMARS

Income taxes refund (paid) FEREEER)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHARSFE

ACTIVITIES
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2021
—EBE-—F
HK$'000
FTER

(27,241)

666
(158)

(46)
(61)
(969)

1,946
1,961

1,599

1,520

12,103

1,155
(1)

(7536)
(1,980)
(72)

774
125

2,830
(1,964)
(2,433)

(10,256)
163

(10,093)

2020
—2-%f

—_=

HK$'000
TER

(15,595)

365
(592)

429

1,092
1,674

1,049
(64)

146

(10,031)
(688)
242

(7410)
311

(113)

(17.689)
(494)

(18,183)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

weReRER(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # = —

Eo—F+ A=+ —HIFE

2021
—E_—fF
HK$'000
FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash WHEHRB AR - MkRRE 93
Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL BEROABHFABERZOER
BE -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BELE® (2,655)
Interest received 2 F B 158
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HEDE - BE L& EHFSHE
equipment 237
Proceeds from sales of biological assets EMEEHEK S 791
Purchase of biological assets BEEMEE (15,230)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHMARESEE
ACTIVITIES (16,606)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Proceeds from issue of shares BITROMERE 45,111
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITER (22,831)
Interest paid B FIE 666
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEESE (2,635)
New bank borrowings raised RITERAAE MR 21,445
Proceeds from rights issue A A7 13 Uk &5 -
NET CASH GENERATED (USED IN) METBHEL (AR FHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 41,756
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND B&RBESZEBEYWEMEHD) BE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 15,057
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRERELEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 11,918
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXgHNTE

CHANGES

£]17]

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY CASH
AND BANK BALANCES

FEXREERBEEESEY URER
BTEBHAKR

2020
—R-EF
HK$'000
FHE T

(843)
(243)
592

(471)

(15,033)
(365)
(1,935)

14,641

(2,692)

(21,340)

29,597

3,667

11,918
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GENERAL

Shen You Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman lIslands on 18 August
2016. The registered office address of the Company is
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and selling of sewing
threads and broad categories of garment accessories,
provision of interior design, interior decoration and
furnishing services, and provision of equine related
services and investment in stallions.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the ultimate holding company of the
Group is Three Gates Investment Limited, which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with
limited liability and is controlled by Mr. Wong Kwok Wai,
Albert (“Mr. Wong").

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars ("HK$"), which is also the presentation currency
of Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SR (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”)
of the International Accounting Standards Board issued
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as "“estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 A

WV N
For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

2.

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2
Amendments to

HKAS 8
Amendments to

HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture4

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 20271

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)3

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies3

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

2.

AN & =X (4=
B 15 i 2% BT o (4D
ZEFFF AT —HIFE
APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in
June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework"”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued in
October 2010);

add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed
in a business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IR RN T (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2021)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

— specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the reporting
period, even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date; and (Note)

— clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’'s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a

consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions,
other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

2.
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WV N

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

Except from above, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income/consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

income,

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

3.

A M ERR W e (8)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1) power over the investee, (2) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HmERNE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHHEE)
(Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued) KB AT (&)
Business combinations (Continued) ES G (E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

EUWER  WEMA R EE MK
EWmAERAEARE®ER  BUT

18I ER O

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

i.e. when

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’'s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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WV N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
a performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Combined services of interior designs, interior
decorating and furnishing services

Combined services of interior designs, interior decorating
and furnishing services is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the provision of service at the end
of the reporting period. The progress towards fulfilment
of construction contracts is measured with reference
to contract cost incurred for work performed to date.
Contract cost that related to provision of service are
expensed as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Sales of furnishings

Sales of furnishings are recognised when the Company
has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods.

Sales of biological assets

Revenue from sales of biological assets is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, i.e., when the products are collected by
the customers.

Stallions service

Service income is recognised at the point in time when
a vet certificate is produced for confirming that a viable
live foal was produced. Service income is recognised at
the amount attributable to the Group’s interests in the
stallion.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4 A

WV N

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components and the
aggregate stand-alone price of non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the announcement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risk and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating lease.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Nonmonetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of “Exchange
reserve” (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalization rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at
the earlier of when the Group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when it
recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
Shares/Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and

others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(Continued)

Shares/Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in “share option reserve”
will be transferred to “share capital”. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in “share option reserve” will be
transferred to “accumulated losses”.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale, except for freehold land, which is always presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets and
subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and right-of-use assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or the group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.

& M5 R R M (E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and
at the end of the reporting period at their fair value less
costs to sell, with any resulting gain or loss recognised
in the profit or loss for the year in which it arises. Costs
to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to
the disposal of an asset, mainly transportation cost and
excluding finance costs and income taxes. The fair value
of biological assets is determined based on their present
location and condition and is determined independently
by a professional valuer.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

event,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to
their original condition, as required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure that would be required to restore the
assets, Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables and
contract assets arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVFPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEgIBEXE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SMIA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement of THEECTEREEE(E)

financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if: ETIBERAT  eRHEESEAF
ER 5

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e FTEZEARATEHBALEMIKE:
selling in the near term; or B4

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of o VWBEREBRAAEBREFRE
identified financial instruments that the Group EMAHp BT AEEAEN —
manages together and has a recent actual pattern B BAEZAEBRRHE
of short-term profit-taking; or B 3K

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective e WIHEBTFTHEERAEHE+HIA
as a hedging instrument. HETHE T A o

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a BEoN - AW A LA SE B AN BT 2 8k

financial asset that are required to be measured at the BEARBEFAHMZEREZRER

amortised cost or FVTOCI| as measured at FVTPL if PHMEERTAKRANEFAERER

doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting EERIBEBERLSGER A&

mismatch. & 7] “F A] e fE R 4R E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for

being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A M ERR W e (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHHEE(E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SR T E(E)
Financial assets (Continued) EeREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEEHEE)
(i)  Definition of default (Continued) (i) EHEZ(E)
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers TR EMBEROMN REBER
that default has occurred when a financial asset B HemEESHBARNT
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group XOBBHNELEE BRIER
has reasonable and supportable information to SEHREAREEEREBENEH
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is AR EHERBENENEEERE
more appropriate. BEE -
(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets (iii) 15 BB 1889 L Bt B &=
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or ERLE-—"HAZHEESREE
more events that have a detrimental impact on the i ARKRBREREETFFE
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset MEMHFR SREERREE
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is BE - cHMEELREERE
credit impaired includes observable data about the MEBEBIEAER NI SEHHA
following events: BB
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or (a) BEITASIBERABARE
the borrower; B 7% R &
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past (b) EXH HlUEHNBHE
due event; i
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or (o) ERAMERABRB@E
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s RATFEREHLERE
financial difficulty, having granted to the Z’J@E&aﬁﬁmﬁm/\ﬁtﬁjfﬁ
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) HATERITEENER:

would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower (d) BERARJEEMR E sk #ETHE
will enter bankruptcy or other financial b BFFE E A Bk

reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that (e) B R EZ S M
financial asset because of financial difficulties. EEMEERMSEITHET
£ o

136  SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

3.

& B %5 R R MY A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESBEE)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRIA(E)

Financial assets (Continued) SREE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEEHEE)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) ) TEHEZEEBmGERER

(%)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all —BmME EHEEBEDR
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in BEARERNASEBE Z2MBEEN
accordance with the contract and the cash flows HemneslAEEEHKRZ
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at FFEReRnEe (RVBERSE
the effective interest rate determined at initial EWMERFEAE) cHZEHE -
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows BEWHEEREMS  BRE
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the TEHEEFEENRER=EN
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable RIEE BB ®EERF165%
in accordance with HKFRS 16. ARFTERKEERENR S

ME—H -

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract BERWAKENEHNEENS
assets are considered on a collective basis taking HEHGCEBFELEERAR
into consideration past due information and HERMIAEEEZEEEE R
relevant credit information such as forward looking EHBEEEERNIRERAEE
macroeconomic information. B o

For collective assessment, the Group takes into REBAMEME  XEBF
consideration the following characteristic when BRI E B AT B e

formulating the grouping:

e Past-due status; o EHEAR R

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and e EBAMME - - REMIT
ES53

e External credit ratings where available. o INEEEFR(MATA) -

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management BHIFFKEREET RS

to ensure the constituents of each group continue LARE (R & 48 B A 9 # Zfﬁﬁ*ﬁ

to share similar credit risk characteristics. LUIEERBEG -

Interest income is calculated based on the gross MERAZEREENEER

carrying amount of the financial asset unless the B E KRIFkEZemEELR

financial asset is credit impaired, in which case EERE: AFMBEBAZER

interest income is calculated based on amortised BEMNBBEKAGTE -

cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ek E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into a sublease arrangement as
lessor on certain buildings. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting
a major part of the economic life of the buildings and
the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the
buildings, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the buildings
which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group'’s investment properties are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred tax on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes of
the investment properties on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to enterprise income tax
in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").
Judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future, which is a key source of estimation
uncertainty especially in the current year given
the significant uncertainty on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve. In cases where
the actual future taxable profits generated are less
or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's
financial assets amounting to approximately
HK$5,253,000 (2020: HK$5,144,000) are measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based
on an independent valuer and the surrender value
of the policy of the financial assets. Judgement and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value
of these instruments. Further details are contained
in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statement.

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables

Trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables with significant balances and credit-
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets which are not assessed individually using a
provision matrix. The provision rates are based on
aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical
default rates and forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables are disclosed in Note 33.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and ROU assets

Property, plant and equipment and ROU assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment and ROU assets
based on higher of fair values less cost of disposal,
and value in use (“VIU"). The carrying amount of
the relevant assets do not exceed the recoverable
amount and no impairment has been recognised
(2020: impairment provision of HK$1,465,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(f)

Fair value measurement of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair
value less costs to sell. The fair value of biological
assets is determined based on either (i) the market-
determined prices as at the end of the reporting
period adjusted with reference to the species, age,
growing condition, costs incurred and expected
yield to reflect differences in characteristics and/
or stages of growth of the horse; or (ii) present
value of expected net cash flows discounted at
a current market-determined rate, when market-
determined prices are unavailable; or (iii) the cost
when appropriate. Whilst the Group considers
these valuations are the best estimates, the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in
greater market volatility and may cause further
disruptions to the Group, which have led to higher
degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations
in the current year. Any change in the estimates
may affect the fair value of the biological assets
significantly. Independent professional valuers and
the management review assumptions and estimates
periodically to identify any significant change in
the fair value of the biological assets. Details of
assumptions used are disclosed in Note 20.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

4.

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(g)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit (or a group of
cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss
or further impairment loss may arise. Furthermore,
the estimated cash flows and discount rate are
subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties
in the current year due to uncertainty on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group’'s interior design and
decoration operation.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$6,683,000 (2020: Nil) (net of
accumulated impairment of HK12,103,000 (2020:
Nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in Note 19.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4., EESTTHERMGTTEEHEN
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION FERF(E)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

b 5T E MR E EHOR (&)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(h) Estimation of fair value of investment (h) REWELABENMEE
properties
Investment properties are stated at fair value KEWMETDRES ﬁ%fﬁfﬁ
based on the valuation performed by independent B 1T B TE”&/ME | B
professional valuers. The determination of the EEAAE 5&&511&17?)?%?3’]
fair value involves certain assumptions of market TSGR E L RE -

conditions which are set out in Note 17.

In relying on the valuation report, the Directors E2REERSE  AQAE
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied EEELHE - TERGHEEA
that the method of valuation is reflective of the FZERBERTR - BEASE
current market conditions. Whilst the Group ERAEZEMEBRZEME
considers valuation of the Group’s investment BEMN09BREEREES
properties are the best estimates, the ongoing RTERONMHSKE - AJaed
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in greater BMAEBEBE - PE - K
market volatility depending on how the COVID-19 MERARFENMG TEE:EET%
pandemic may progress and evolve, which have BENTHEEM - ZFREK
led to higher degree of uncertainties in respect Bt BESBEERREL -
of the valuations in the current year. Changes to FEZREREBEARTRE -
these assumptions, including the potential risk REZERBE L& B AN
of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and EHMEREN BREFE R K
social changes or other unexpected incidents as a BEHRERNELERMERT
result of change in macroeconomic environment, %R B - BUSK  M& IRUE A A
travel restrictions implemented by many countries, é\.“ bk EfEIINEHNE
increased complexity in international trade tensions CBERAEEKREDME
geopolitics, changes in policy direction and/or El’\J LTE?"E“ bt W4 E
mortgage requirements, or other unexpected i /\%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂi%\%qﬂi&

incidents would result in changes in the fair values ENERSHETHERE -
of the Group’s investment properties and the

corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or

loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Directors have performed internal assessment EFCDRBHAEEREDE
on the risks of change in macroeconomic TR M ‘79? HRBEE
environment through performing sensitivity analysis REGHEREITAE TG -

in relating to the Group’s investment properties.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of BHE-_ZT-_—F+=RAR=1—

the Group's investment properties is HK$4,361,000 A AEEEREYENEREARAE

(2020: Nil). 734,361,000 T(Z 2 -2 F:
|®) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

5.

B 75 R R My ()

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

(i)

REVENUE 5. W=

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) REEFEFEHANKZIE
with customers
Segments 2021 2020
55 —B-—F —E-FHF
Types of goods or services HK$000 HK$'000
EmSREER F#& T FET
Manufacture and selling of sewing BOMREE

threads 54,517 44,984
Interior decorating and furnishing EANRMEREA

services ﬁ &R 14,824 s
Interior design services A% E R 7B 1,430 ot
Sales of furnishings 1?«15: iR 1,803 =
Equine service 5T R 791 =
Total e 73,365 44,984
Geographical market — location of #¥EHE — FEF L E

customers
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEESRE) 30,938 26,081
Hong Kong A 22,175 3,822
Middle East R 15,401 12,582
Mauritius E B2k 4,718 2,345
Others H 133 154
Total wE 73,365 44,984
Timing of revenue recognition R R
Overtime — B —
At a point in time 7 — R ] Bh 44,984
Total #at 44,984
Sales Channel HERB
Wholesale & 54,517 44,984
Retail =& 791 —
Corporate NS 18,057 —
Total HBEt 73,365 44,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HmERNE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the industrial products and payment is
generally due within 30-90 days from delivery.

Combined services of interior designs,
interior decorating and furnishing services

Interior design services, interior decorating and
furnishing services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. Revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
using input method.

The Group's service contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
design period once certain specified milestones are
reached. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits range from 10% to 30%
of total contract sum, when the Group receives a
deposit before design service commences, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start
of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount of the
deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related
to the same contract, is recognised over the
period in which the design services are performed
representing the Group's right to consideration
for the services performed because the rights are
conditioned on the Group's future performance in
achieving specified milestones. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional upon meeting the billing
milestones.

5.

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

Wy 3 (4&)

(ii)
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MEE BASEHLCZSER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

- —Ff A=+ —HIFE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Sales of furnishings

For trading of furnishings, revenue is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been delivered to the specific
location and confirmed by the customers. There
is no credit period given on billing for trading of
furnishings.

Equine services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
completion of trading of bloodstocks and stallion
services and payment is generally due within 30
days from delivery.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or
less. As permitted by HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

6.

& M5 R R M (E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

During the year, the Group commenced the business
engaging in interior design and decoration service along
with the acquisition of Diamond Motto Limited and
its subsidiaries (as detailed in Note 32), together with
the equine services, they are considered as the new
operating and reportable segments by the CODM.

The Group now has three reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires
different business strategies. The Group has three
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

Manufacture and selling of sewing threads

— manufacture and selling of high performance
sewing threads and broad categories of garment
accessories

Interior design and decoration

—  provision of interior design,
furnishing services

interior decorating and

Equine services

— provision of stallion service, trading and breeding of
bloodstocks

6.

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RMEE)

N

_ " For the year ended 31 December 2021 #F - T - —#F+-HA=+—HIFFEE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEESR
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) D EPURFZELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AT &2 12 7] 3R & & o Af
and results by reportable and operating segments: ZN I AN 1= R i
For the year ended 31 December 2021 ﬁ%ég —#+=ZHA=+—H

Manufacture
and selling
of sewing
threads
BAKRNHE
AHE
HK$'000
TER
Reportable segment revenue from RANBEFPHARE
external customers LR LON 54,517
Reportable segment profit (loss) ARE D HHE(ER) (6,979)
Corporated and unallocated expense TERAIRAS
Group's loss before tax FEERBAEE

Interior
design and
decoration

ER R
&35
HK$'000
TERL

Equine
services

EMRE
HK$'000
TET

Total
5

HK$'000
TER

791 73,365

(380) (5,360)

(21,881)

(27241)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE-_ZH5+=-A=+—H
ILtEE
Manufacture
and selling Interior
of sewing design Equine
threads and decoration services Total
ROGMRE EARE :
nEE REE SRS e
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
FHT FEL TATL FHEL
. _____________________________________________________________________________________]
Reportable segment revenue from RANBEFPHARE
external customers R LON 44,984 = L 44,984
Reportable segment loss DEEET 3 (3,704) = = (3,704)
Corporated and unallocated expense TERAIRAS (11,891)
Group's loss before tax FEERBAEE 15,595)
The accounting policies of the operating segments ZEESPH S BREENE
are the same as the Group's accounting policies BFTAR R E ) & 5 BRERARR o
described in Note 3. Segment profit (loss) sElaE(BR)ZEETDE
represents the profit earned by/loss from each PREEKA - ESHHMG
segment without allocation of central administration BRAMBRT - #5185
costs, directors’ emoluments and finance costs. BEM s FEDELD
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the BB ERRERSDEMEXN
purposes of resource allocation and performance & {& i /A CODM ¥R 45 /9 15 16 ©

assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
rates.
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets

and liabilities by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Reportable segment assets
Corporate and unallocated assets

Manufacture
and selling
of sewing
threads
#AORBH
RENHEE
HK$'000
THER

42,482

Reportable segment liabilities
Corporate and unallocated
liabilities

(13,949)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b) PHMEERER

Interior
design and
decoration

R
RES
HK$'000
THER

26,709

(11,487)

BEEx_F_2Ff+=-A=1t—-H

services
B

HK$°000
TR

21,457

(3,038)

Total
@t
HK$'000
THERT

90,648
30,338

120,986

(28,474)

(747)

(29,221)

IEFEE
Manufacture
and selling of Interior
sewing design and Equine
threads decoration services Total
BOREE EARF
LES REE BERHK @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FTHET FTHET FTHL
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
Reportable segment assets RENDEE 49,730 = = 49,730
Corporate and unallocated assets AJ &5 HAEF 11,410
61,140
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE (13,833) — — (13,833)
Corporate and unallocated rERADEEE
liabilities (1,699)
(15,532)
MERRARAT /2021% 10D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RMEE)

N
/‘JFor the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ—-F - —F+-A=+—HIFFEF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. EBER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) P HBEERERE(H)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between

segments:

o all assets other than certain of the Group's

property, plant and equipment,

right-of-use

assets, other receivables, financial assets at
FVTPL and cash and cash equivalents are
allocated to operating segments; and

° all liabilities other than certain of the Group's
other payables and lease liabilities are
allocated to operating segments

(c)

Other segment information

(c)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Amounts included in the
measure of segment
profits or loss or segment
assets:

Addition to property, plant and
equipment

Addition to right-of-use assets

Addition to biological assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Fair value gains (losses) on
financial assets at FVTPL,
net

Impairment loss recognised
on trade and other
receivables, net of reversal

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Manufacture
and selling
of sewing
threads
BOBEE
REZ
HK'000
TEL

Interior
design and
decoration

ER KT
R#E
HK'000
TR

AT ERBEMN
tBUEIER
INWEE:

wmANE  BE
B4
MAEREEE
MALEMEE
nE BERRE
e
EREZENE

BRAAEFMARS
MEREEND
AEREFE

ERR S HER
Hth e A
RZREBR
NE&E

HENX BRER
RERECBR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
MBEBRRME(E)

4T A

I

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6.
(c)

E=

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating
decision marker but not included in the measure of

segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets
— goodwill

Impairment on goodwill

Government grant

Interest income

Finance costs

Other gains (losses)

Manufacture
and selling
of sewing
threads
ROREE
REZ
HK'000
TERL
MAERBEE —
5k
HERE
B 4 B
MEKA
A (B8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

Interior
design and
decoration

B
R#E
HK'000
THEL

18,786
12,103

381
n

(&)

Hih T ER (E)
BE-_Z_—+=-HA=1+—H
IEEE (&)
TFTHREREBELETZEEREER
TEEESBREXEEBRD
HMEENGTETHNL5E:

Unallocated

AIBY
HK'000
TER

services

EMRE
HK’000
TEx

BE-®-EF+=-A=+-8
LR

Manufacture
and selling Interior
of sewing design and Equine
threads decoration services Unallocated Total
BB EE EWRE
k&5 REE BERS KA EE F
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FEL FET FEL FEL FEL
Amounts included in the AR ERBEN
measure of segment tEUERER
profits or loss or segment ZNHEE:
assets:
Addition to non-current assets AR HEE 243 = = 1,15 1,358
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BER
and equipment RENE 1,059 = = 13 1,072
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREAENE
assets 1,674 — — = 1,674
Fair value gains (losses) on AR EAER
financial assets at FVTPL, MEBEENR
net REKE(ER)
%ﬁ%ﬁ 73 - - (502) (429
Impairment loss recognised ~ BERR S FER
on trade and other H’rﬁlﬁ“l&l B
receivables, net of reversal ﬂfﬁ% B
M%ﬁ@ 146 - - - 146
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment REEECER 1,049 — = - 1,049
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RMEE)

" Forthe year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ_-F-—fF+_-H=+—HIFFEZF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DIER(E)
(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c) HftbypIEFR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z-_Zf+=-HA=t+—8H
(Continued) IFFE (&)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating THREAGTEZEERRER
decision marker but not included in the measure of TERES K S EEXRD
segment profit or loss or segment assets: HEEMNGTEFHNES5E:
Manufacture
and selling Interior
of sewing design and Equine
services decoration services Unallocated Total
EogEE EANRG
kg5 REE BIERS RAEH B
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

TET TETL TET TER TETL

Government grants B 7 B 324 - - 135 459
Interest income M EW & 592 - - - 592
Finance costs REMK 360 - — 5 365
Other gains (losses) s (B8 847 - - 2,383) (1,536)
(d) Geographical information (d) HEER

The Group's operations are located in the PRC, AEBMNEBMANFE - BX
Australia and Hong Kong. Information about the FlIEMEE - NEERKBFI I
Group's revenue from continuing operations from EFNBEKERANERR
external customers is presented based on the RIBLEH BT RE - NREE
location of the operations. Information about the ERBEENERNEREEE
Group's non-current assets is presented based on BB B D RAY ©

the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets*
KERBNBEF ERBEE*
2021 2020 2021 2020
=t _T_TF PRl T _TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL THERT TET

PRC 30,938 26,081 4,974

Hong Kong N 42,427 18,903 10,584 1,160
Australia M - — 7,059 =
73,365 44,984 22,617
* Non-current assets excludes financial instruments and * ERDEETBRESHRIA -
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7=

(e) Information about major customers

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

AR ()

(e) FREEEFEFHNEHR

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of BASEBEBIKETRB0% I £
the total revenue of the Group are as follows: MEFPHKZENT:
2021 2020
—E=—F —E_THF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Customer A BEPA 15,401 12,663
7. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES), NET 7. HilzR(B8E) FH
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Rental income el A 1,169 916
Fair value gains (losses) on EARBEFTAEENS /M
financial assets at FVTPL, net BEMNRAABERZ
(B HB) %% (429)
Fair value gains on investment HEMEN LA AABR S
properties o
Exchange gain (losses), net SNEE W 2= (B5 1) - JFER (3,082)
Fair value gains on biological EMEENRAABERT
assets =
Interest income F B YA 592
Government grants (Note) XS 4 8L (M 72) 459
Gain on early termination of right- AT ILF A#EEEW S
of-use assets 64
Others H 403
(1,077)
Note: Bt iF -
The amount represented the subsidy received from the Hong Kong ZEeBEBERDRRETBRTOMA - HEFRK

government. There was no unfulfilled condition and other contingency

attached to the receipt of subsidy.

I o

MZBEmM A RERNIREREMERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

" For the year ended 31 December 2021 &=

8. FINANCE COSTS

—F
—Z

S FFCASF—AILEE

8. RMIBEA

2021 2020
s ZEZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHE T
Interest expense on bank borrowings R 17 & 3 Fl B F X
and overdrafts RiE X 104
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABEBNERX 261
Total finance costs B & P AN B RE 365
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FBHIMEX
2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current income tax BN HA B 15 Bt e
The Group is subjected to income tax on an entity basis AEBEBEEREBEERELELIRR
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions K BB AR MR ERE R
in which subsidiaries of the Group are domiciled and EEEENR ﬂ BAFTEH RE

operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group which is qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the
year of assessment 2020/2021. The first HK$2,000,000
(2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

No provision for corporate tax has been made for the
Group’s operation in Australia as such operation incurred
loss for taxation purpose for the year of assessment
2021 (2020: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B HmRMN T (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, the subsidiaries which operate in the PRC

are subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 256% on
the taxable income.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled from
the loss before tax from continuing operations per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Bk % Bl &5 1R

Loss before tax

9.

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

P& i ()

RETBEFASEHREZEREERE RN
FEAMKEZHME AR AR ESR
%RH&Z)\E’]%%%MNJL%FE B e

AEEHEHESAEBERREM
rAEKEZREE
BIEEEENT:

BREEBHRH

Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate %% & T8 R 5t E &Y

i 58
Expenses not deductible for tax E A0l 53
Income not subject to tax AR U A
Utilisation of tax losses i 18 B 18 1) F) A
Tax losses not recognised KRR IEE A
Income tax charge for the year FRMEH Y

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$9,478,000 (2020: HK$3,925,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of
HK$22,323,000 (2020: HK$21,017,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect
of these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
(27,241) (15,595)
(2,511)

1,549

(183)

1,145

AEBRBEBAEENH B ES B
9,478,000/ 7T (ZZ =F 4 : 3,925,000
B ERBAAREEELEABEY
NE] R R E RS F o

AEBEFBHEENTEERA
22,323,000 7T (ZEF =% : 21,017,000
BIL) BE—ZERFAEIE - UK
R FER T U &= -

2N N i = R T I =
VEARHAERERELERAEE -

HEERERAR /20214 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

10.

11.

re ISRk M R (8)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10.

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration % BAm Er B

Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKR

— Manufacture and sewing of threads — 4 448 £ &

— Interior decorating and furnishing —ZFRE&HKEER

services PR 5% AR 75
— Sales of furnishings —REHE
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BENEE
equipment e
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE
Lease payments not included in the Tt AT EBETE
measurement of lease liabilities ZHERE
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEVE - BELK
and equipment HBEEZEE
Employee benefit E 8@ A

Impairment loss recognised in respect FL % 5 U 1E & &

of trade and other receivables 8 IR IR R R
A BB
Impairment loss recognised in respect #t 22 2 2 5 (8 &
of goodwill B

Impairment loss recognised in respect Ft¥W ¥ - =N &K E
of property, plant and equipment WRZBABEEBE
Impairment loss recognised in respect i AEEERRZ

of right-of-use assets B B 1R
STAFF COSTS 11.
Employee costs (excluding Directors B &K A (T B #EEE
and chief executive's remuneration) AT IR 48 5 5 )
Wages and salaries TERF

Pension scheme contributions Eﬁ(iﬁ‘ ER
Severance payments EEE

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

FRER

FRAEBRCHEK TSR

2021
—E-—F
HK$°000
FaER

1,11

44,723

2,519
1,092

1,946
1,961

349

1,599
19,263

BIRAE

2021
—EBE_—F
HK$°000
FET

15,824
3,287
152

19,263

2020
HK$OOO
THET
1,774

34,537

1,092
1,674

127
1,049

14,475

146

563

902

2020

THE R
HK$'000
F& T

12,406
1,847
222

14,475




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

I

e MR REE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

12.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12.

SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basic
salaries and
Name Director fees allowances
#E EZhe EXHEoMER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR
Chief Executive and BEUTER
Executive director: HITEE:

Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert =& &% 4

Executive directors: HTES:

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch ~ RIBR %4 (# i)
(note (a))

Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex R EHE4E(H 7))
(note (b))

Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah ~ BEX &4 (HZ(g)
(note (g))

Independent non- BURTES:
executive directors:

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming ~ RESL 4

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold R i Bt % & (47 #11))
(note (f))

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel ~ AR E &£ (# #(f)
(note (f))

Total: @it

BEE 1T

RIEE M LR R KA F G AT

HABEREEHMH

BHNFRAESREEFMOT:

BE-_ZE_—F+-A=1—HLFE

Equity settled
share-based
payments
DEREE
WRH X F
HK$'000
TER

Retirement
scheme
contributions Total

RUTRER EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER

HEERERAR /20214 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AU BEHRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. E - THRABKRESHM(E)

BE_Z_SFt-A=t—HLFE

Basic Retirement
salaries and scheme
Name Director fees allowances contributions Total
#E BEHE ELHLANEE S ES N @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TER
Chief Executive and Executive EEHTERHTES:
director:
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert BEELE - 2,081 18 2,099
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch BRBEREEWiHE)
(note (a)) — 415 16 431
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex REREEM#0)
(note (b)) — 280 11 291
— 2,776 45 2,821
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Mr. Gao Biao (note (c)) BREEW #) — 120 — 120
— 2,896 45 2,941
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Zhang Guofu (note (d)) EREREW 2 W) 90 — — 90
Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John GREBE(WiEeE)
(note () 165 — — 165
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming REBLE 180 - - 180
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Amold BBk H)
(note (f)) 105 — - 105
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BRBREM (1)
(note (f)) 105 — - 105
645 - - 645
Total: @t 645 2,896 45 3,586
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

12.

& M5 R R M (E)

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 19 February 2020.

(b) Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 4 June 2020.

(c) Mr. Gao Biao retired as an non-executive director of the Company
on 26 June 2020.

(d) Mr. Zhang Guofu retired as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 26 June 2020.

(e) Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 December 2020.

(f) Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 4 June 2020.

() Mr. Ma Pok Man, Josiah (“Mr. Ma") was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 13 May 2021.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and
subsidiary.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company, if any.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Ma,
an executive director, was granted share options, as
incentive to Mr. Ma to join the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company. Since 2009, Mr. Ma
has involved in the horse breeding industry and is a
shareholder of various stallions in Australia and manages
various syndicates which own broodmares, yearlings
and racehorses in Australia. Mr. Ma is also the Hon
Secretary (Racing) of the Hong Kong Racehorse Owners
Association Details of the share option scheme are set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Board foresee with Mr. Ma’s experience in the horse
breeding industry, the Group can the equine services
business in a more efficient and smoothly.

12.

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

B TRARRESHM(E)

(a) REERAEALENR-_Z_TE_At+AAHE
ZEBARAATES -

(b) REMEER_ZT_ZFEANBEZR
ER/ERRBAATES -

(c) BRAEER-ZZE-ZEFNA=-+AR
EARARBIFERATEERS -

d EBEBEEEXER-_ZE_ZTFXA-t+RXEA
REARRBIFFATEZRS -

() BREBER-_ZT-_TF+_RA—B#
EARARBILFATESTEE -

(f) REMELERBARBEER-Z_FF

NAMBEZERARRBLIFATE
= o

(90 BEXEE(BEXEEDR-_ZT-_—FFH
At=ZBEZERATESE -

FHRATEZTZHME IR BREFEE
BARARAMRASEEZHEBNREM
S e

LA TEFTCME 5N F AR
EEARALEMNBERAREH AR
AR %5 M < e

FRBIHRATETZIMEARSE
REEARBEREBORE (ME)
[IEANE

FAMEZE TN ITHREAHNESF
ERETMEMAOLTHE -

HE-_T-—F+-A=1+—HL#HF
B BEAEEREARRDFERKRE
FEmMASEREORGER TE
g - B-FTTNFUKR BEREN
HREECERITE NDRMNSERES
TEMNBRE TRRMNEBHERE
BEEE -  —BREREFHNSEAS -
BEENAEEFTEIHENEBWE
(BERFEK) EHBRESENFE
BHREEMBE®mREMFAIIN - EFE
BER BRESBLIECESCEEEBITE
MER AEBRUNESH  BIES
i 5 R S UE AR 7S TS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re ISRk M R (8)

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2020: two) Directors, details of whose
emoluments are set out in Note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIMH R

CEMREDREAN

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

TRREHHAL

FAAEEREESHFHALZRIE
MB(ZEZEF - MB)ESE HF
MBS RN EXHFEI2 FAHT
—H(CEZEF =R )EaFHNE

B(UHEAARNEERTRER) M
m

FEER

The number of the highest paid employees who are
not the Directors whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
1237
36
1,273
FHBRUATEINE=SEHWNES (K
WIHEF)ABHBT:
2021 2020
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
—E-—F§ —E2-F
BAEE & A &=
3

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, except as described in note 12 and above, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
Directors, chief executive and supervisors or any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4T A

N
For the year ended 31 December 2021

14.

15.

B 75 SR R My (8B

BE_F_—F+_A=+—HIFE

DIVIDENDS 14. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary REZEZTE-_—F+=-A=+—HL
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 FE UWE ﬁ AKRQFE®ERRERIR
December 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed 55k R R E ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁiﬂﬁﬂii
since the end of the reporting period (2020: Nil). R £ [ IR B (_ S-TFE) o
LOSS PER SHARE 15. EREE
Basic losses per share BRELRER
2021 2020
—B—fF —_E_THF
HK’000 HK'000
T & T FHET
Losses ]
Total loss attributable to owners of the & QA A A E(h
parent E 18 18 5 (27,241) (15,595)
Shares B’ 5
Weighted average number of ordinary AUFFEEREAREBEN
shares for the purpose of basic loss I AR b RE T
per share 366,825,000 250,858,000
Basic and diluted loss per share FRERKE EEE
(HK cents) (note) (GBI (K7 52) (6.22)
Note: Bt aF -
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the weighted average number BE-_T-_ZTZF+-_A=+—HLEFE AR
of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share FEEREAREEBBE 2L BRMETY
has been adjusted for the effect of rights issue on 12 June 2020 ETFTURAE URBR-_ZFE-_ZFTFA+=H
and the share consolidation on 25 August 2020. Details of the share E’J@il‘& KZZ-_ZTFN\A=-+HEBERHEHZ
consolidation and rights issue are set out in Note 29. VE - BMRNEHERHERZFBHRNW
29 °
The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and HEZZT - §RkR=-ZFT=TF+=ZA=+—H
2020 was the same as the basic loss per share as all the potential HFENSRBESEAERERNEEER -
ordinary shares were anti-dilutive. WIERBEEELTERARBESE
BmEERAERAR /2015% 167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re ISRk M R (8)

/‘{’For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ—-F - —F+-A=+—HIFFEF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings
BT
HK$'000
THL
31 December 2021 ZEZ-FtIf
=t-A
At 31 December 2020 and at s
1 January 2021: =t-Ak
“2--%-f-H
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAME
impairment
Net carrying amount EH%E

t 1 January 2021, net of accumulated R=Z=—%-7-8-

2irgfE
Additions hE
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary  WEMBLAFE
Disposals HE
Depreciation provided during the year R FRHENE
Exchange realignment ERHE
At 31 December 2021, net of RZBZ-£+Z5
accumulated depreciation and =+-8 K2
impairment MEARERNF
g
At 31 December 2021: i St 25 g
=+-H
Cost A 4,193
Accurulated depreciation and ZHMERFE
impairment (519)
Net carrying amount BEFE 3,674
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16. Y% - KEKRZE

Production Office Leasehold
machinery  equipment improvement Vehicles Total
LERA  BAERE HENE ot Azt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TEn T

31,415 : ] 35,586

(27872) ] J (31,496)

3,543 4,090

3543 36 4,090
1,413 m 2,655
- 820 4,725
(1,366) (434) (1,836)
(760) (598) (1,946)
m - 126

31,568 2,523 924 1973 41,181

(28,627) (2,162) (323) (1,736) (33,367)

2,941 361 601 237 1814



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF -

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥13% - BMERR & (&)

(Continued)
Production Office Leasehold
machinery equipment improvement Vehicles Total
FEER WAERE HEMw# HE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER ThET TER TER TER
31 December 2020 i g 3 Y
=1-H
At31 December 2019and  R-E-AEF+-A
at 1 January 2020: =+-8k
—E-%%
—A-H
Cost & 38,792 2,161 57 2,086 43,096
Accumulated depreciation  Ef 4T E R E
and impairment (33,548) (1,876) (12) (1,485) (36,921)
Net carrying amount REEE 5,244 285 45 601 6,175
At 1 January 2020, net R-B-ZF
of accumulated —Hs e
depreciation ZAMEEE 5,244 285 45 601 6,175
Additions NE 137 4 40 62 243
Disposals HE (967) (20) (44) (41) (1,072)
Depreciation provided RENFRTE
during the year (730) (135) - (227) (1,092)
Impairment w1 (487) (19) (5) (52) (563)
Exchange realignment L 346 20 — 33 399
At 31 December 2020, \ZZZTFFZA
net of accumulated =t+-8 Nk
depreciation and ZAMERNRE
impairment BEFE 3,643 135 36 376 4,090
At 31 December 2020: e e
=+-H
Cost R 31,415 2,122 69 1,980 35,586
Accumulated depreciation  E:f4TE R HE
and impairment (27872) (1,987) (33) (1,604) (31,496)
Net carrying amount FHFE 3,543 135 36 376 4,090
REZRERAT /202158 109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRHE (&)

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over term of lease
10% to 20%

20% to 30%

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%
20% to 30%

Buildings

Production machinery
Office equipment
Leasehold improvement

Vehicles

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the carrying
amounts of certain property, plant and equipment have
been written down by $HK$563,000 to their recoverable
amounts.

The Company's buildings with carrying amount of
HK$3,674,000 (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil) has
been pledged to secure the Group's bank overdraft and
borrowings (Note 27).

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

TERRBEKEFEN  LEME
MERSTAKESERYE BER
REBORAPHEEERE - AR
BERERFMERMT

g REHA

A EES 10% £20%

N 20% £30%

HEWHERE ZREEFHR20%
WmEPREE

"B 20% Z£30%

@i—?—?iﬁ—i— ﬁ + El
TME BMEEK ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaw
J563,0008 T2 Eaf E £ FE -

A &) BR T {8 £3,674,0000 T B 2
EYHE_E_EF+_A=+—
BHEE S8)EHERUNEREIER
B R 1748 S A& 3k (P 3£27) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4T A

I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

16.

B 75 SR R My (8B

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Impairment assessment

Following a review of the business, which takes
into account the deteriorating outlook for the textile
industry business, and the Group's future business
plan, management has reassessed the carrying values
for all the property, plant and equipment and ROU
assets (Note 18) as at 31 December 2021. During the
year, the carrying amount of the relevant assets do
not exceed the recoverable amount and no impairment
has been recognised (2020: impairment provision of
HK$1,465,000).

CGU1 (note)
CGU2 (note)

CGU1 (K aE)
CGU1 (K aZ)

16.

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

M - BERRE (&)

BB

¥ DEZE EEIHEENSE
N RESEBKHA S B/LMAK
EEMRKREKTE  BEEBEHN
FETR-E-_—FE+=-A=+—H
WA EYE BMERZEALER
BEEMKREAMFES - FR A
HMEERBETEBBYKE £
EfERRBECE_ZF: }AE
B 1#1,465,000/8 7T) °

2021
—E_—F
HK$°000
THET

2020
—E-EF

HK$'000
TAET

938
527

Less: provision for right-of-use assets

B E A E R

1,465
(902)

Provision for property, plant and
equipment

ME - BERK

GEE

563
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 A

WV N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

16.

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

CGU1T and CGU2 represent the Group's product line for
polyester threads and nylon threads. The recoverable
amount of CGU was determined at VIU and fair value
less costs of disposal as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively. VIU and fair value less costs of disposal
are categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and are measured based on the independent valuer and
latest available market data sourced from an independent
second-hand machinery and equipment agent as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The recoverable amount of polyester threads and nylon
threads product line as at 31 December 2021 was
determined based on value in use calculation and based
on certain key assumptions. Value in use calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the management of the Group covering a
five-year period, which is taking into account the useful
lives of plant and machinery. The discount rate used for
the value in use calculations is at 10.50% (2020: 11.26%.
Cash flow beyond the five year period were extrapolated
using a 3% (2020: 3%) steady growth rate. This growth
rate was based on the relevant growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long term growth rate for
the relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of CGU1 and CGU2 are
HK$4,222,000 (2020:HK$5,024,000) and HK$2,274,000
(2020: HK$2,829,000) respectively as at 31 December
2021.
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16.

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

M= - BERRE (&)

(B T Ak ()

ReELEBEMNIRE € E £ B 12
BASEKRGERERBEER -
R —FR_FT_FTF+ A
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17.

A B HmRMN T (8)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

17. REMFEHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

At 1 January mn—H—8
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B A &)
Fair value gain AN I=RL &

At 31 December Bn+ZA=+—8”

The Company’s investment properties are held for rental
purpose and classified and accounted for as investment
properties. The investment properties have not generated
rental income for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

The Group's investment property is situated in Hong
Kong under medium-term lease.

The Group’s investment property with carrying amount of
HK$4,361,000 (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil) has
been pledged to secure the Group’s bank overdraft and
borrowings (Note 27).

The fair value of the Company’s investment property at
31 December 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by the independent professional
qualified valuer not connected to the Group.

ARARREMENLHABENTA
THBZERRENEF -BE-T
T+ A=t—BLFE KE&

MEREEHSRA(ZE_ZF:
")

RRABOEEYEM
HEQTE -

REB TP

AR BRHEE A4,361,0008 T (B =
—E-EF+ A=+ —BHUIEFE:
EINREMECWERUAERASE
ERRITE I MERME27) -

KRR REMER_T=_—F+=A

St—HHNAREREBILEES
RIGEMETHENER ESHD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

17.

A M ERR W e (8)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the management has
(i) verified all major inputs to the independent valuation
report; (ii) assessed property valuations movements
when compared to the prior year valuation report; and (iii)
held discussion with the independent qualified valuer.

The fair value of the owned properties was determined
based on the market comparison approach by reference
to historical sales price of comparable properties on
a price per square foot basis. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the investment properties
which included the location, size, shape, view, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively. The
fair value measurements are positively correlated to the
discount on characteristic of the property.

The Company believes that any possible changes in input
values would not cause significant changes in fair value
of investment property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z_-F-—F+_-H=+—HIFFE e~—
18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EHREERE
2021 2020
—E-—F§ —EF-F
Total Total
#at @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
As at 1 January Hn—A—H 5,530
Additions NE 1,115
Acquisition of subsidiaries @ Nl =R/NG]|
Disposals k= (388)
Depreciation charges e (1,674)
Exchange realignment PE i 3 & 82
Impairment loss (Note 16) WA BB (M E16) (902)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,763
Expense relating to short-term leases R HEENRAX 127
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHBEE 2,062
Additions to right-of-use assets FTRAEEERE 1,115
The Group leases various buildings used in its operations. AEEHELKLEPFTRANSERE
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2021 is Yo HEGHUBEBE —FEMEST
one to two and a half years (2020: two to four and a half NEA(ZE_ZF - MEENFZE
years), with extension and termination options. Other ANMERAMEBEEBHRII BEARE
equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or HER®E#EEE EREOHEBR
less and/or is individually of low value. Lease terms are —RAATZM@EAK AT R,KIHE
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different AlAEKER - HEERIHEHRERHE
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and WrEm 2ETERER RGN -
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the REETMEB R AR HECHR
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines B AEEERGANER  UET
the period for which the contract is enforceable. A g S MITELR R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

19. GOODWILL 19. HE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost A
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZ-Z-_ZTF—A—H ZZ=-ZTF+=-A
and 1 January 2021 =+ —BAfMz=—ZE=—F—fF—H —
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries B U B M B AR mE A 18,786
At 31 December 2021 R-—ZFB=-_—-%+=-A=t+—H 18,786
Accumulated impairment losses ZBEESE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZ-ZE_ZFEF—AF—H Z—ZT_FTF+_A4
and 1 January 2021 =t+—BM=—FT=——F—H—H —
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE (12,103)
At 31 December 2021 R=—ZB=-_—-%+=-A=+—H 6,683
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2021 R=—ZB=—-%+=A=+—H 6,683
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_TF+_HA=1+—H bl

Goodwill arising on acquisition of Diamond Motto Limited
(“DML") and its subsidiary, LMP International Limited
(“"LMP"), collectively, the (“DML Group").

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generating units that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to the
cash generating units as follows:

I 8 Diamond Motto Limited ([DML]J)
¥ H Kt B 2 7 LMP International
Limited ([LMPJ) (%t 78 & [DML&E H |)
EENEE-

Em%’\ﬁqﬂﬁ MEREKER
DEBREMRZEESHPREN
BeELAEMN BHENEKREEED
A ELEMN ARWOT:

2021 2020
—E--F —E_FTF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Operation of interior design and RET RN M EE
decoration business EI’M%% =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

19.

& B %5 R R MY A ()

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill
Interior design and decoration

On 9 February 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the
equity interests in DML at a total consideration of
approximately HK$25,628,000. Management considered
that the DML Group represents a separate CGU for the
purpose of impairment testing. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of HK$12,103,000 in relation to goodwill allocated
to the DML Group for impairment testing purpose. The
goodwill arising from the acquisition of the DML Group
represented the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group's interest in the provisional fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the DML Group.

In connection with the acquisition of DML Group,
67,441,860 consideration shares were transferred at the
issue price of HK$0.215 each were issued and allotted
to the vendors to acquire the 100% equity interest in
DML Group. The difference between (i) the grant date
fair value of the consideration shares for the acquisition
of DML Group as determined based on the closing
price of HK$0.38 per share of the Company on the
completion date and (ii) the issue price of HK$0.215 per
consideration share pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of DML Group, has
resulted in unexpected increase in the total consideration
transferred for acquisition of DML Group from
approximately HK$14,500,000, being the consideration
as stipulated in sale and purchase agreement for
the acquisition of the DML Group, to approximately
HK$25,628,000, being the fair value of the consideration
having been transferred.

In accordance with HKFRS 3 "“Business combinations”
issued by the HKICPA, the cost of this business
combination was determined using the fair values at the
date of the business combination of these instruments
issued by the Group. The Group has performed an
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of the
CGU (including goodwill) based on VIU calculations.

19.

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

BE(H&)

EERERR

ERARFTRERS
RZE-_—F_AhLB  KEFN
B8 125,628,000/ JT g B DML £
100% 0% - EERERAE  BLEEA
HAME DMLEEBEREXR—EHEBEHN

BeEAEN - REE-_T-_—F
+-A=+—BLEEFE A5EEER
o= DMLE E A R A & &
2 H R AR E B 812,103,000%
T WEDML EBELANEERKE
WEARNBRATEELDML £ET
KAREENMABENBEAAEFRD
W25 o

LU DML Groupim & ' 67,441,860
BREBRGEEEITESR215E
TEZE O UWEME R ETREE
LA Uy B8 DML £ B /9100% J% #E © (i)
REHBEHEBDMLEE YR EE =8
REBRGZARERERTHKBH
ARA SRR MODWKTEISE T
T E (i) E EDMLE B U BE £ 18
ETEEHZSRARERKD.215F
THBTEZEZESEHREDML
EEWBEEEENBARE &
14,500,000 ;o (AIDMLE B W B8 =
EMEERZEATHARE) ZINEM
£/25,628,0008 T(ANE #EE AR E
NI IEDIC

REZESFAMIERMANEEY
BHRELEUFES RIXHEH] AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

19.

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Interior design and decoration (Continued)

Management expected the operation scale of the CGU
after the acquisition would be further expanded by
incorporating the resources of the Group. However, such
expectations are not incorporated as assumptions in
preparing the cash flow forecasts for impairment testing
purpose as they are not clearly supported and therefore
not included in the VIU calculations. Since the carrying
amount of the CGU (including goodwill) is significantly
above its recoverable amount, the Group impaired
the amount of goodwill of HK$12,103,000 on date of
acquisition of the DML Group.

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill is further tested
for impairment for this CGU by the management by
estimating the recoverable amount of the CGU based
on value in use calculations. The Group engaged an
independent qualified valuer to perform the valuation.

The key assumptions for the VIU calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
relevant periods. Management estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on the
estimates made by the management on the industry.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.

The Group prepared cash flows forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management for a five-year period. The CGU's cashflows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. The financial budgets and growth rates
are estimated according to the stage of operation with
reference to the development curve of the industry. The
rate used to discount the forecast cash flows for the
CGU is 15.4%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

19. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Interior design and decoration (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of
the DML Group calculated based on VIU exceeded its
carrying value. No further impairment of goodwill was
required.

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

A subsidiary of the Group is holding quality stallions
and provides horse breeding services in Australia, and
another subsidiary of the Group is engaged in the rearing
of breeding and trading of bloodstocks in Australia.

The quantity and value of stallions and bloodstocks
owned by the Group at the end of the reporting period
are shown below.

As at 31 December 2021

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

19. BHE (&)

20.

AR E R (&)
ERARTREE ()

BE-T-—4+-A=+—-8"
DML % B 1 i P8 {8 {6 3t % & 7 g
CEBBEEAM  TEEE—F
AR -

EMEE
AEEN-—RMHBRRATERMNESR
BEESYRESTEERS - M
REBNR— R B AR AT RN
HEAESHRARNEE -

RBEHK AEEEENEER
MESHEREENT -

As at 31 December 2020

REZBZ-F+ZA=1T— 0 [y gl ety gl 5
HK’000
FTER

No. of horses

ENEE

Current assets REBEE
Biological assets EYEE
— Mares — &5
— Colts — N
— Fillies — 5
Total bloodstocks 41 1& 5 #2 &1
Non-current ERBEE

assets
Stallions B
Total biological EMEEBE

assets

17,571

HK'000
TAT

No. of horses

SHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

Bloodstocks represent female thoroughbred, colts and
fillies held primarily for trading purpose and are classified
as current assets.

Stallions represent adult male horses that have not been
castrated and are held for breeding purpose. The stallions
are classified as non-current assets as the Group has no
intention to sell these stallions in the foreseeable future.

Six live foals (2020: Nil) were born during the year and
there is no other output of biological assets during the
year (2020: Nil).

The movement in value of biological assets during the
reporting period were as follows:

" For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z - ZE_-—F+_-HA=+—HIFFZ

20. £EMEE(HE)

MESREIZARZENMIERN
MERS  NENES 2BERRD

EEEENAEIERNREEENZK
E/_\% LM%@%A@#’J;EML@JQ

Xﬁ%m%&%

FALETAEETNER(ZZE=Z
F E) FRLEEGBCEMEEN
EH(ZE_ZTF &)

BRERRNEMEEBEEZHBERN
s

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

15,230 —
2,433 ot
(780) e
969 —
(281) s

At 1 January Kn—H—H
Acquisition W B =18
Increase due to natural increase 8 A3 b0 2 o0
Decrease due to sales 5 & oA 2>

Fair value changes NAERAE
Exchange realignment & 5, 38 &

At 31 December W+=—A=+—H

17571 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

20.

& M5 R R M (E)

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)
Financial risk management strategies

Biological assets are exposed to domestic, disease
and other nature risks. The Group engages an external
veterinarian hospital to provide professional veterinarian
services to the Group’s biological assets to minimise the
risk and take care on the health of horses. Depending
on the emergency, the veterinarian arrives at the farm
around 10-45 minutes, or delivery to veterinarian
hospital within 15-30 minutes. The biological insurance
coverage for 19 (2020: Nil) bloodstocks and 5 stallions
(2020: Nil) for the year are approximately HK$9,905,000
and HK$7,203,000, which covered 94.8% of bloodstocks
and 100.0% of stallions book value respectively. In the
opinion of management, the above policies are effective
and sufficient against the financial risk arising from
bloodstocks and stallion. In the opinion of management,
the above policies are effective and sufficient against
the financial risk arising from bloodstocks and stallion.
There is no restriction on the title of bloodstocks owned
by the Group and there is no commitment for acquisition
biological assets at the end of reporting period. The
management is regularly reviewing the portfolio of
biological assets to maximise the return.

The fair value of the biological assets measured at the
reporting date on a recurring basis, categorised into
level 3 fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The
level into which a classified fair value measurement
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

20.

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE
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Bt 765 [ B B SRR

EYMEEMBREE RBMEME
AR - AEBERFINDERE B

ABAEEEWEERHBIEEER
% UAEmANEEHE 1EEH IE”EE
BICHERE - W#%M . B B8
RKETFE10-46D BEREEZERE - k&
E15-300 $E MK B EAEE B8 fr o N4
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SLES(ZCZEZSEF - B)EELED
RE2FT A € 8 9 5 4 59,905,000%
JC 7,203,000 7t * KAl MGAES
MiE SR M®EE94.8% &100.0% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

20.

A M ERR W e (8)

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

Financial risk management strategies
(Continued)

The qualification of valuer

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bloodstocks
were independently valued by Magic Millions Sales Pty
Limited (“Magic Millions”), which is an Australia’s
leading bloodstock sales company, a major market
place and key actor of the global horse economy. The
professional valuer in charge of this valuation is Mr. Clint
Donovan, Bloodstock Manager of Magic Millions, who
has appropriate qualification and relevant experiences
in various appraisal assignments involving biological
assets and has worked in the industry of thoroughbred
bloodstock and provides regular bloodstock valuations
in Australia. In addition, this valuation report has been
consulted with the following experts:

— Dane Robinson (Magic Millions' Bloodstock
Manager)

— James DAWSON (Magic Millions’
Consultant)

Bloodstock

— Georgia Everingham (Magic Millions’” Bloodstock
Consultant)

— Ben CULHAM (Magic Millions’
Consultant)

Bloodstock

— James Hetherington (Magic Millions" Bloodstock
Consultant)
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20. EYEE(E)

B 7% LB i IR SRR (48

HEMBER

BHE-_Z-_—4+=-A=+—H &
% @ 1 40 7 55 A Magic Millions Sales
Pty Limited ([Magic Millions]) % 37
HE ZRAREBAFEELNE
BESHEHERR R2HREEEERN
FTEMHBMNFTELEE - BEARAR
& (B /) F £ {5 8 B & Magic Millions
) 4 7 55 4 32 Clint donovanit 4 - i
EPREMEENSETHEBLF
BEBEEEMEBRMEALR  YBXE
MEBSTEIE  WHERKFER
HTEHMMLEEMGE - B - NfE
BEREEHEHTIINER:

— Dane Robinson (Magic Millions

AR S KIE)

— James DAWSON (Magic
Millions #9 4% 7& 55 B8 f)

— Georgia Everingham (Magic

Millions Ay 45 & 55 B8 )

— Ben CULHAM (Magic Millions#y
S ER)

— James Hetherington (Magic

Millions Ay 4% & 55 B8 )
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20.
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BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

Financial risk management strategies
(Continued)

The qualification of valuer (Continued)

All experts are full time members of the bloodstock
department of Magic Millions and member of the
Federation of Bloodstock Agents Australia Limited. Magic
Millions through its experts, has conducted a number
of yearly stock valuations for major global and domestic
bloodstock entities.

The valuation methodologies adopted are consistent
with those described in accounting standards HKAS
41"Agriculture” and HKFRS 13.

Based on the above qualification, history and various
experiences of Magic Millions, the Directors are of the
view that Magic Millions is competent to determine the
fair value of the Group's bloodstocks and stallions.

Bloodstocks

Valuation methodology of bloodstocks (including
Mares, Colts and Fillies)

In the process of valuing the biological assets, Magic
Millions has taken into consideration the nature and
specialty of the above bloodstocks and considered
that the market approach would be appropriate and
reasonable in the valuation of the fair value less costs
to sell of the bloodstocks by making reference to the
requirement of HKAS 41 and HKFRS 13.

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

20. £YEE(H)

B 7% LB 3R SRR (48

fHEMBOER (&)

Fr 5 & K 8 & Magic Millions 4 &
ENNE2BKE th2BRKXF a4

BEREABRSEMKE - Magic
MillionsiE B EHF X » ¥ 2 R A B K
FTEMAESERETTIZRFE

EME -

RAWMMEENDZETESTEAUR
MREXEINEEM B RS ENSR
IBEHAANEETE K-

£ % Magic Millions &) £ it & &
JE A EE KR EF R A Magic
Millions BEE N E AR EE R A E S
MEBFHRARME-

HESBESSE
HESE

NEMILEF) B

EFHEMEEMNBERESP - Magic
Millions B Z & £ it 48 7& 55 &9 1 & A1
BHEE W2 B2 L0 FEH
M EBNBEREENEIITOE
X RETSEZEFBAEESHOA
ARERELEXABZEE AR
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20.

A M ERR W e (8)

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)
Bloodstocks (Continued)

Valuation methodology of bloodstocks (including
Mares, Colts and Fillies) (Continued)

The valuations are arrived at based on market approach
to estimate the fair market value of the biological assets.
In determining the fair market value, the valuer has had
regard to the price that a buyer could be reasonably
be expected to pay and a seller could reasonably be
expected to accept if the assets were exposed for sales
on the open market for a reasonable period of time with
both buyer and seller being in possession of the pertinent
facts and neither being under and compulsion to act.

Where available, publicly observable information has
been used to the maximum extent possible in deriving
valuations. In the absence of such information, or where
such observable information is believed not to derive a
fair value measurement at measurement date, the valuer
has adopted valuation techniques with inputs that valuer
believes are reasonably based.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued) 20. £MEE (&)

Bloodstocks (Continued)

Valuation methodology of bloodstocks (including
Mares, Colts and Fillies) (Continued)

With respect to the valuation of horses, the valuer
adopted a stand-alone basis of valuation. In this regard,
each horse is valued having regard to the price that the
horse could be realised for at auction less the costs of
disposal. Such valuations are determined by considering
large number of qualitative and quantitative factors which
including:

1. The economic outlook in general and the condition
and outlook of the specific industry in particular.

2. The nature of the asset.

3. The earning capacity of an asset.

4.  The residual value for breeding of an asset.

5.  The age of the asset.

6. The market price of in the same or a similar line
of business having their stocks actively traded in a

free and open market.

74 Based on circumstances unique, additional factors
have been considered.

These factors vary for each valuation depending on the
unigue circumstances of the general economic conditions
that exist at the effective date of the valuation.

In the rare event that a market based value cannot
be derived, initial cost of acquisition may be used to
approximate fair value, particularly where the horse was
acquired within the past year.
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20.

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)
Bloodstocks (Continued)

Valuation technique and major inputs
Breeding Stock

Valuation of broodmares takes into account the age of
the individual, its race record and if applicable its cover
status and its progeny record, both commercially and
on the track. Magic Millions watched as well the last
price it was sold for in the scenario the individual had
been exposed to a public market in recent years, and to
compare this profile to a similar profile that went through
public auction in the past year.

Weanlings and Foals

Valuation of weanlings and foals takes into account the
assessment of market trends, the depth of the pedigree
of the individual (i.e. the black type performances
through the female line), the race record and the age of
the first dam, and if applicable the progeny record of the
first dam as well as the stallion’s commercial trends.

As the valuation results of bloodstocks are subjective
based on the experiences of Magic Millions and current
market conditions which are unable to be quantitatively
measured, accordingly, the Directors consider that no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Stallions
Valuation methodology of stallions

The fair value of each stallions was individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on
an income approach and used revenue projections based
on historical service fees income of the stallions and
also takes into account the stallion’s prior activity, his
age, his average live foal ratio, his progeny racetrack and
sales results. The Directors with reliance on the valuation
performed by an independent valuer covering a two to
three years period depending on the age of the stallions
to determine a value and pre-tax discount rate of 5.6%
per annum.
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20.
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BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)
Stallions (Continued)
Valuation methodology of stallions (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant.

If the service fee is 10% higher or lower, the fair value of
the stallions would increase approximately AUD56,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$315,000) (2020: NIL)
or decrease approximately AUD56,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$315,000) (2020: Nil) respectively.

If the useful live is increase or decrease by 1 year, the
fair value of the stallions would increase approximately
AUD252,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,426,000)
(2020: NIL) or decrease approximately AUD252,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,426,000) (2020: Nil)
respectively.

If the average live foal ratio is 10% higher or lower, the
fair value of the stallions would increase approximately
AUD56,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$315,000)
(2020: NIL) or decrease approximately AUD56,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$315,000) (2020: Nil)
respectively.

If the fertility percentage is 10% higher or lower, the
fair value of the stallions would increase approximately
AUDb56,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$315,000)
(2020: NIL) or decrease approximately AUD56,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$315,000) (2020: Nil)
respectively.

If the discount rate is 10% higher or lower, the fair value
of the stallions would decrease approximately AUD4,940
(equivalent to approximately HK$28,000) (2020: NIL)
or increase approximately AUD4,691 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,000) (2020: Nil) respectively.

20.

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE
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B 75 ¥ K P 5 (48)

B =

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL:

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

21. BEAREFABENEREE

BAREFARZED

CREE:
Unlisted equity investment, at fair EARBEFENRLET
value (note a) f& 4% & (it a)
Life insurance policy, at fair value EARBETENSR
(note b) B(H7iEb)
Notes: i

(a)

188 SsHENV

The unlisted equity investment represented the Group's equity
investment in a private entity established in Australia. As at 31
December 2021, the fair value of the investment is reference to
the valuation conducted by an independent qualified professional
valuer based on Level 3 hierarchy by using market approach.

In the opinion of the Directors, the investment would not be
disposed within the next 12 months and was therefore classified
as a non-current asset.

On 25 January 2016, the Group entered into a life insurance policy
with an insurance company to insure an executive director. Under
the policy, the Group is the beneficiary and the policy holder. The
Group paid upfront premiums for the policy and may surrender
the policy any time by making a written request and receive
cash based on the surrender value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is calculated by the insurer. In the opinion of
the Directors, the surrender value of the policy provided by the
insurance company is the best approximation of its fair value,
which is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
life insurance policy was mandatorily classified as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are
not solely payments of principal and interest.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group's life insurance policy

would not be surrendered within the next 12 months and was
therefore classified as a non-current asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF T~
22. INVENTORIES 22. &8

2021 2020
—E=-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FHET
Raw materials R+ & 4,212
Work in progress & m 2,055
Finished goods K & 5,803
12,070

BERRERAR /202128 189
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

23. EWRZF

Notes
B iz
Trade receivables JEW R 5 HIE
Less: Allowance for credit HEEEEERE
losses
(a)
Other prepayments H 5K IB
Loans to a vendor m e E R (b)
Deposits and other receivables % & & £ fth & U 5k 18
Less: Allowance for credit BIEEEERE
losses
Notes: Kiat -

a)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally from one to three months.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. The Group had significant concentrations
of credit risk as 14% (2020: 26%) of the trade receivables were
derived from one (2020: one) customer as at 31 December
2021. The trade receivables from such customer were within the
credit period. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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a)

RIE & H b FEUWRRIR

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
17,402 10,367
(1,375) (333)
16,027 10,034
2,240 2,181
2,456 3,542
15,655 11,959
20,351 17,682
(4,607) (3,561)

15,744 14,121

FAEEREFHORGEREEEREE -
FEEHRER—ZE=ZHEA -EFFAHR
EEREEE - ASEBNHAEER
WHRIERFREESR  UEBEREEE
B mhEEETHEXOREH -
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8"14% (=
TZTF 26 MERZHHERER

— W (ZEZTF: —()EBEF A%
B EEEREFERS - BRZER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

E=

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

a)

(Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance of
ECL as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month
1 to 2 months
2 to 3 months
Over 3 months

Te—@EA
—E=mEA
WE=18HA
BE=M@A

ZF—FFZA= —HIFE T~

23.

EWRRSZE
(#8)

RIE B E Aty FE WK TE

B it -
a) (&)
RBERRERBEAHRABERR

BORKRZSRACHNBRBRAEEES
BEH OKRRITOT :

Less: Allowance for credit losses

B EEBERE

2021 2020
—B-_—-F —E-ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
6,299 5,759
4,937 3,664

493 671

5,673 273
17,402 10,367
(1,375) (333)
16,027 10,034

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

1 to 3 months
Over 3 months

RE TR E
—==@A
B =18 A

YEMPIXARRRREREZEBEZ
SHRBZREDTWT

2021 2020
—E-—F ToEF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEx F# T
8,462

1,572

10,034

Loans to a vendor bear interest at rates 5.00% (2020: 5.00%)
per annum, secured by certain machineries of the vendor and
repayable in one to two years (2020: two to three years) with

demand clause.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 33.

b) MEEHERIESTF5.00% (2T =%
F:5.00%)MFEGE - UHERE T
%%f’ﬁ%%ﬁﬁvﬁéﬁi?ﬁgﬁ:ﬂ%ﬁ# E

ME(CE_ZTF - WME=ZF)ER

¢ & W 22 5 5 TR e E A 8 AR R OR RO R B A
i 5 B E M FE33 o
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS

192

Contract assets B E

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

24. EREE

2021 2020
—E2E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET

As at 1 January 2021,
contract assets.

the Group did not have any

Contract assets amounted to approximately HK$859,000
resulted from the acquisition of DML Group on 9
February 2021.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's
retention receivables and unbilled revenue.

Retention receivables included in contract assets
represent the Group’s right to receive consideration
for work performed and conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain
period as stipulated in the contracts. The contract assets
are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, which is typically at the expiry
date of the period for the provision of assurance by the
Group on the service quality of the works performed by
the Target Group.

Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents
the Group’s right to receive consideration for works
completed but not yet billed because the rights are
conditional upon the satisfaction by the customers on the
works completed by the Group. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time when the
Target Group obtains the certification of the completed
works from the customers or when the Target Group
entitled to issue invoices for the completed work to the
customers.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are
set out in Note 33.
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25.

26.

52 A B K 3R % I 3 (48)

BE_F_—F+_A=+—HIFE

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25. BERBITER
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following FMERERRITESRTIUNTEE
currencies: wE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Denominated in — RMB NARKEEE 300 372
Denominated in — HK$ LA TTET B 25,894 11,546
Denominated in — AUD VOB TR E 1,083 .
27,277 11,918
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITHESEBESBHRITFERAE
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited TEMEBHMEGE - RITEHRTD
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. EFREERTELHERER LEHN
RAT ©
TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. XK EMENRERRNETEH

Trade payables EBNRSNE

— from third parties (note a)

—RBE=F KB (A ita)

Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities (note b)
Other payables and accruals

BHRAB(HiEDL)

HittENRERESER

H Al B XA N B AT B B

Hit B RER
FE St B

Total other payables and accruals

The other payables and accruals are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on an average term of three months.

2021
—EBE_-—F
HK$°000
FERT

11,175

2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
FiE T

5,510

28
4,555

4,583

HMEMNREAREAERAS BRI
TEtE - FHEXHMA=M@A -

HEERERAR /20214 3K
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

26. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS  REEEMEARRANESTER
(Continued) (%)
a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at a) MNEMEHR BARXZHIE

the end of each reporting period, based on the
transaction date, is as follows:

Within 1 month ~E—1EA
1 to 2 months —E=WE A
2 to 3 months WZE=1EA

Over 3 months Bid=MEA

The credit period in purchase of goods is generally
from one to three months.

As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted
to approximately HK$57,000.

Contract liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$2,483,000 resulted from the acquisition of the
DML Group on 9 February 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
approximately of HK$337,000 (2020: approximately
HK$57,000) of revenue recognised related to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

Contract liabilities include (i) short-term advances
received to deliver sewing threads and garment
accessories; and (ii) upfront deposits from
customers. The increase in contract liabilities
during the year was mainly due to the acquisition of
subsidiaries. For details, please refer to Note (31).
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ER XZBEHNKREDTAT

2021 2020
—E_—F
HK$’000
THET

—E-EF

HK$'000
THET

1,714
1,448

878
1,470

oo

BEH DZ{_\_EHH FR—E

[1]
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m

S’;

—E-TFE—AF—H: AHE
& & #157,000/ 7T °

T -FZ-ANBKEDML
SEEENENRENSR
2,483,000/8 7T °
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FTFEE BEEBEANEBERH
Z BRI A A337,000% 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF e—

26. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. XZKkHMENRAMETEHR

(Continued) (&)

b)  (Continued) b) (&)
The following table shows the revenue recognised TERIWRTAFHROELESE
in the current year relates to carried-forward EHBEMRBAOHKR ARG
contract liabilities and the amount related to HRETHNBEARBHEENESEE -
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

Manufacture and
Interior design selling of sewing

and decoration threads
ERFRE H#ARN
R#E® HENHE

HK'000 HK'000

TER TET

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ_-ZE=-—-%+_A#

=+-BLEE
Revenue recognised that was included ~ REPFALALEELERH
in the contract liability balance at the BERE:

beginning of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-ZF-E&£+=H

=+-HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included ~ RE 4] nJrJ\A?OE BERE

in the contract liability balance at the BREANE:

beginning of the year — (57)
27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. BITER

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank loans, secured IRITEZ - HIEE S
Bank overdrafts — secured RITBEX — BE A .
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re ISRk M R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

27. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The bank borrowings and bank overdrafts are at floating
interest rates that are market dependent and the carrying
amounts approximate the fair values. The range of
interest rates for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

Bank borrowings, secured

RITEX

Bank overdrafts, secured

B

B

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

27. RITER(H)
RITHERRIRITEXRIORR T B
MEBMEFEAEAERELIDR
H-BE-F-_—FR-_F_FF
TZAST-AMMEBEMT

2021 2020
—E-—F T -THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET

P-1% to P-2.25% =
P-1% Z£P-2.25%

P+1.75% —

All the interest-bearing bank borrowings were repayable
on demand as at 31 December 2021.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 ranged

between 2.75% to 6.75% per annum.

As at the end of reporting period, the summary of assets
pledged and guaranteed borrowings are as follows:

The bank borrowings are secured by:

(a) Personal guarantees provided by a director of the
Company;

(o)  The Company's building with carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,674,000;

() The Company's investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,361,000; and

(d) Charge of deposits made by a director of the

Company as determined by the bank from time to
time.
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27.

28.

52 A B K 3R % I 3 (48)

BE_FE_—FE+_A=+—HIFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. RITERE)
HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements ERCHMASEMNEERESES
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that RUBEBRERZER—ERFTEEE
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause issued by BREERERRAZEHERZD
the HKICPA requires that a loan which includes a clause HRE EXRAFARTBMRRIERA
that gives the lender the unconditional right to call in BEEETERT B EEKRGER
the loan at any time (“repayment on demand clause”) EREEERNBKAR(REREER
shall be classified in total by the borrower as current in RDZERBESERIE - RZF
the statement of financial position. Interest-bearing bank ——F+ZA=+—H8 RBREEFHE
borrowings of the Group in the amount of HK$4,805,000 HHE PEREREEERRNR
as at 31 December 2021 include a repayment on demand SEFERITEKA4,805,0008 7T -
clause under the relevant loan agreements, among ERpR-ZTE_—F+-A=+—H#
which balances amounting to HK$807,000 that are AT —F 1R AE B 2 £ #807,000/8 1T
repayable after one year from 31 December 2021 have EsfARBEBE B LAom
been classified as current liabilities. For the purpose EORSEERAANBBEFRAT
of the above analysis, such loans are included within BER UM ABEBEZEREENIE
current secured bank borrowings and analysed into bank ITER -
borrowings repayable on demand.
LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HESGS®E
Lease liabilities payable: EAHEHERE:
2021 2020
=B —F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —F R 2,818 1,956
Within a period of more than one year %R —F BT %R
but not exceeding two years 3ol 1,224 2,170
Within a period of more than two ZRMEBRTZR
years but not exceeding five years AFHEA 672
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 4,798
Less: Amount due for settlement with J& : 128 B A B/ Hi & B 1y
12 months shown under current RIE Y ARBEE
liabilities 1,956
Amount due for settlement after 12 MR 12{@ A& B H& B FE -
months shown under non-current NWRIERBAE
liabilities 2,842
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

28. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. HHEASE(E)
Lease liabilities payable: (Continued) EAEERE: (F)
The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities RIBIEE BT B HREER F16
recognised under HKFRS 16 ranged from 3.85% to iﬁﬁﬁm MEEaBEZEEERAX
8.80% per annum (2020: 4.75% to 8.80% per annum). N F 5 F3.85%%E880% (=T =F
F:HF475%%£8.80%) °

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies NHEBEEER 2 NEEE AN
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group EMTENHEEBDT
entities are set out below:

HK$'000

FAET

As at 31 December 2021 RZB-_—F+ZA=+—H 2,369
As at 31 December 2020 R_B_ZEE+_A=+—H 3,683
The Group as a lessor AEEERBLEEA
The Group subleases certain building in the PRC under AEERBLKEHELH LR HE
an operating lease arrangement, of which the remaining M EEY AhFBpEERA
lease term is one to two years from 31 December 2021. B2+ -A=Z4H—HE—=
The terms of the lease generally require the tenants ﬁi iz oN:0R fKL%EIfﬁﬁi
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent NRES UTRBEERAOMEHIB
adjustments according to the then prevailing market HErTHHAEES - $¢E$$l
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group HRHMES U A AE1,169,0008 T (=
during the year was HK$1,169,000 (2020: HK$916,000), T £ :916,0008 7T) * FIHHRE
details of which are included in Note 7 to the B EHRERMFET -

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A I ERR M (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z -~ FE - —4#+ - F=+—HIFFE T

28. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. HEGSE(E)
The Group as a lessor (Continued) AEEEREHEAE)
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8H K&
receivable by the Group in future periods under operating BERARBERELCEHEREA
lease with its tenant are as follows: PREKMHREEEREBRT:
2021 2020
—E-—F T -THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 914
Within a period of more than one year %R —F BT %R
but not exceeding two years w4 HA 8 W AR 937
Within a period of more than two ZRMEBRTEZRN
years but not exceeding five years hFHPEARF 485
2,336
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A M ERR W e (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. [RA
Number of Number of
shares shares Amount
HERH HERH 8
Ordinary shares HK$0.01 each HK$0.05 each HK$'000
LER OIATMERR 005ETMLER TEL
Authorised: EE:

1 January 2020 R_Z-FF-f-H 5,000,000,000 — 50,000
Share consolidation (note (b)) B& i3 & B (H7# (b) (5,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 £
At 31 December 2020, 1 January R-F-F&+-A=+-A -ZB=-%

2021 and 31 December 2021 -A-BRZEZ-%+ZR=1-H — 1,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: Eﬁ”&ﬁﬂ'
At 1 January 2020 RZB-FF—-A—H 800,000,000 — 8,000
Issue of new shares by way of rights & B 4 R 21T k1 (4 2 (2))

issue (note () 400,000,000 — 4,000
Share consolidation (note (b)) Rt & Bt (3 (b) (1,200,000,000) 240,000,000 A

— 240,000,000 12,000

Issuance of new shares for WENBARNTRERW #)

acquisition of subsidiaries (note (c)) — 67441,860 3,372
Issue of ordinary shares (note (a)) BT LR Fd) £ 48,000,000 2,400
Issue of ordinary shares ffnote ) %17 LB (M #(e) - 53,700,000 2,685
At 31 December 2021 RZB--£+ZA=t-H — 409,141,860 20,457
Notes: Bt at -
(a) On 12 June 2020, the Company completed a rights issue and (a) RZFEZFTFANA+TZAH ARATK

issued 400,000,000 new shares with par value HK$0.01 each
at a subscription price of HK$0.043 per rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held,
and the net proceeds of the Rights Issue, after deducting the
related expenses, were approximately HK$14.6 million, which
were mainly used for the Group's working capital and business
development. Detailed terms of the Rights Issue and its results
were set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 May 2020
and the announcement dated 11 June 2020 respectively.

(b) Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
which was held on 21 August 2020 and the resolutions of the
share consolidation of the Company involving consolidation of the
number of shares on the basis that every five issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each be consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.05 each were approved, with effect from 25
August 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/—J_\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

& B %5 R R M (8

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

On 18 August 2020, the Company and the vendors entered into
the sale & purchase agreement for an aggregate consideration
of HK$14,500,000, which shall be satisfied by the Company
by way of allotment and issue of an aggregate of 67,441,860
consideration shares at HK$0.215 per consideration share. The
allotment and issue of shares has been completed on 9 February
2021. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 13
January 2021 and announcement dated 9 February 2021.

On 19 January 2021, the Company entered into (i) a subscription
agreement with a subscriber to allow and issue 24,000,000 new
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.30 per subscription share; and
(ii) a placing agreement with a placing agent to place 24,000,000
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.30 per placing share.
Total net proceeds of approximately HK$13,950,000 from the
subscription and placing were raised and used as general working
capital of the Group and/or possible investment(s) in the future
when opportunities arise. Such subscription and placing of shares
was completed on 11 February 2021.

On 29 June 2021,
agreement with a subscriber to allow and issue 6,700,000 new

the Company entered into (i) a subscription

ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.60 per subscription share; and
(i) a placing agreement with a placing agent to place 47,000,000
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.60 per placing share.
Net proceeds of approximately HK$31,161,000 after net of with
legal fee amounting HK$159,000 were raised and used (i) as
to approximately HK$19,320,000 for the development of the
existing business of the Group and/or possible acquisition of and/
or possible investment in business(es);
HK$5,800,000 for the development of horse breeding business;
and (iii) as to approximately HK$6,200,000 for the general working

(i) as to approximately

capital of the Group. Such placing of shares was completed on 22
July 2021.

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

29. KA ()

(c)

(%)

—E-ZHFNA+NB - ARFHEE
% 5] T # Y (E14,500,0008 THME B
W ARAENEHE02I5BTTM A
B 2 1 3 7767,441,860% B & 17 © E2
BMBITRHENR=_ZT=_—F=_FNA
T BEHRFMEEE F2HEARQAA
HAE-_T-_—F—-—A+t=HMBREA
HAEA-Z-_—F_ANBAMQE -

—TE-—5—-A+ABR ARAER
BARFTORBIHE A FMENT

24,000,000k T EBKR - BRAER
7B % A0.30/% T & & (i) 2 E &R
BARREHE UEBRESERH
0.307 7T #) {8 1& A 524,000,000 A% # &
AR -RENEEASHNAFRED
13,950,000 TEEE T HEAEEH
f&M ﬁ%&/&hxﬁ%@%m
BEIRE - RONIBNEEE R
:_¢7ﬂ+_anﬂ°

—E-Z—HfXAZthNA AQAH
REBEBAEITOREBEBSE  AFTRED
6,700,000k ST E @K - FRARBER
B AB060E L RINVERERE AR
FikEEWmE AERAE SR 7M0.60%
7T Y 8 #& B % 47,000,000 % 3 & i@ iR -
£ BR159,0008 T AR B A% 4
31,161,000 B TH F M R H EFER -
(i) #919,320,0008 T AR E R A& E K
BEEBR KAl B R LA eR
BEHIET (i) 495,800,000/ T AERE
UL & ¥ 75 &) 496,200,000 7T A
EAEE—REELES - ZRHEEE
RZBEZ—FtAZ+ZHEX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WV N

For the year ended 31 December 2021

30.

ira B HRR M A

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTION

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s Directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group and the Company's shareholders
in the Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 24 November 2017 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time unless
the Company obtains approval from its shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules and must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 7 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option shall be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and in any event, such period shall
not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular option is granted in accordance with the
Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR EE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 30. UEREERBIRRZ (&)

TRANSACTION (Continued)

The subscription price shall be determined solely by the
Directors, but may not be less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share on the date of offer.

The Company, by resolution in a general meeting or
the Directors may at any time terminate the operation
of the Scheme and in such event no further options of
the Scheme will be offered but those options granted
prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the previous provisions of
the Scheme.

On 13 May 2021 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company
resolved to grant 3,500,000 share options (each a
“Share Option”) under the Scheme to Mr. Ma, an
executive Director, to subscribe for up to 3,500,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of
the Company, subject to acceptance of Mr. Ma.

As at the Date of Grant, the Company has 355,441,860
shares in issue. The total of 3,500,000 shares to be
subscribed under the Share Options granted represent
approximately 0.98% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Date of Grant and approximately
0.98% of the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company assuming full exercise of the Share Options.

ABEEAREF2RET ETF
BERTIHESE: WARABRNRE
HEREASM(ALSLEER)EB A
BHBERABZIETE: (RO
ERRLBRERHMOELERE
B BERERARFHYHE:
RNBEOHRELBRERR 2EE -

ARAEBRRARELBERERK
EFTHERERLEAEMNERE ME
EERTAEBRLFAEIZEME
B EZERURLEARKZE
BERBFEZEMEXEERX
RATATE -

RZZEZ—FAAT=ZBREA
M EsezAREBEREE
((BRESE DB EE(EREAL:
17 $) & H3,5600,00017 & &
([BRE]) UARBARABRAP &
%3,500,0008% & B% M 180.05/% JT
Tk ([RGB HEEFARAER
BIAEE -

RIEHBEE - AN R % A355,441,860
BEEHTHRO EXEEREET
& ¥ 2 B A ££3,500,0000% A% {7 48
ERAQRARFELBEHNSHITR
RH10.98% K ARDNEI K KB AS BT
B A< 490.98% (B &% B A% #E E R 81T
) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 A

WV N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

B 75 #R R M At (8

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Details of the option is as follows:

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

30. LESESEROGIRRS (&)

(a)

R ERAMEHET

Outstanding

as at
31 December
Date of grant Exercise period 2021 Exercise price
R-Z2-FH
+t=ZA=+—-H
Option type BREEL BHBEH T i AR AT 6 THEEER
2021 2021 13 May 2021 13 May 2021- 3,500,000 0.57
12 May 2024
—E-—F R AT=
hAA+=H BE-T-_MFH
A+=H

All of the share options vesting conditions are
immediate from the date of grant. No share options
are exercised for the year ended 31 December
2021.

MERRERBGRMHAEBRTZ
FRERVEAEHR BE-_T - —
FTZA=+—BILEE - T17
BB RHE -

The following table discloses movements of the (b) TREZBTHZrEEE—FH
Scheme during the year: B E B
Weighted
average exercise
price in HK$ per Number of
share shares
MEFHITEE
Date of grant FEBE: SRER BaoHE
At 1 January 2021 RZE—_—F—H—H = —
Granted during the year FREF D 0.57 3,500,000
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB=-—F+=A
=+—H 0.57 3,500,000
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

B 75 SR R My (8B

30. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTION (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted on 13 May 2021 is approximately
HK$1,155,000 and is measured based on a binomial
lattice model. The inputs information of the model
were as follows:

1TEE

Exercise price

Annual risk free interest rate

Expected volatility FEH R B X
Expected option life TEHEES®

Expected dividend yield

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$1,155,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil) in relation to share option granted
by the Company.

Share options were granted on the grantee's
acceptance.

FE & R A X

T HA AR 0 3

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

(b)

30. EREERN RS (H)

(&)

TE-_-—FREA+=ZHETHE
B # &) A S B AT 4 A1,155,000
B DER BN BEER
FFE - RAMNHAERNOT :

Share options
granted on

13 May 2021
RFHBERE
—E-—fF
ERA+=H

HK$0.57
0.577% 7T
0.29%
139%

3 years

3F

EHRBEREREL KRR
BREHEONBEFIRGS

wErE)  YREBELAFAEFEREX
2RO B R 5 (o] T BR B (b 1T

HE - BHBREERESLRE
Iéﬁiﬁ ABRRHELTEE S Y

RRER/RAELEEATE -
AEEBERBE_T_—F

+-A=+—HIEE(Z-Z=
TEE)E AQRRRTHE
fEHEEEBEMHEERA1,155000
BT o

B R
iy o

ARARIBRERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 A

WV N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

31.

B 75 ¥ R I 5 ()

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 August 2020, the Company and 4 vendors
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, to
acquire the entire issued share capital of DML at a
consideration of HK$14,500,000 by way of allotment
and issue of 67,441,860 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Consideration Shares”). The acquisition was
completed on 9 February 2021, and at the same date,
the fair value of Consideration Shares, which determined
using the closing market price at the date of the
completion of the acquisition, amounted to approximately
HK$25,628,000.

DML Group is engaged in the business of interior design
and decoration services. The DML Group was acquired
so as to allows the Group to tap into the business of
the trading of furnishing as well as the provision of
interior design, fitting out and decoration services and it
is beneficial for the Group to seek suitable investment
opportunities from time to time to diversify its existing
business portfolio and to broaden the Group's source
of income. The acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of business using the acquisition method.

Consideration transferred:

Consideration Shares at fair value

AR T

31.

—E - —FF A=+ —HIFE

W BB AR
—Z-ZE\A+N\RB: ARAR
AREEEET TERG S - ARE

MEEIT AR A)67,441,8600 L & MK
(THERHB] M A X BA14,500,000
BT EE WEDMLE 2 HE &
TERARIREEIHER - WER
—ET-—F-_fFAhABxEKBA " MN
WEESKANKETEETNYEE
A% {7 B A S (B %) /525,628,000 7T °

DMLEBE R EZARTMEHRSG
X% o WHE DML Groupﬁﬁb$$l
EEFREEIFUAREH-REAR

HEREMREES ﬁﬂﬁ/\ﬁig
THESEAENERERS  UEt
BEREEKHERBEALAEED
WARR - WEBEIEARBKES
FHEBWBETSHER -

FrigE (& :
2021
—_E_—F
HK$’'000
Fa T
BETEREERMN 25,628
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A B HmRMN T (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
ROU assets

Trade receivables

Prepayment and other receivables
Contract assets

Cash and bank balances

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings

—F - FF A=+ —HIFE Th~—

31. BB T (&)

ERBRAUBNEENERNEBE
s
9 February 2021
—E-—F
—AhAB
HK’000
FHT
REWE
ME - BERE
EREEE
& W 2 5 ;R IE
Ta Rt E E&ﬁm%%
BREE
e RRITHEER
J& 32 5 50 IE & At
JE 1~ 3R 18
HE&E
RIT AR

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

RARBHEGTHR

Goodwill arising on the acquisition: WEEENEE:
2021
—_E_—F
HK$'000
FHExT
Consideration transferred Fres 8 25,628
Less: Net assets acquired WA WEBHNFEE (6,842)
Goodwill arising on the acquisition (Note 19) W E A& (i 19) 18,786
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. KB BAT (&)
(Continued)
Goodwill of HK$18,786,000 arose from expected future 18,786,000/ LM 2 R EDMLE E
development of the DML Group. The consideration paid MEHRARRER - BEHINHY
for the combination effectively included amounts in BEERLLBEEDMLEER/TE B
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue BRE- - WAKEE - RRMHHE
growth, future market development and the assembled MBEENETHBENESE - ELF
workforce of the DML Group. These benefits are not HIMRENHRBEREENRERE
recognised separately from goodwill because they do not E o REETHEFEES>RABER AKX
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible WEEENEERE a‘l‘ T ER W b
assets. The goodwill arising from this acquisition is not Mk o
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
Analysis of net cash inflow on acquisition of DML Group: WEDMLEEM FRERA DN :
Purchase consideration settled in cash NWIRSEENBEHE
Cash and bank balances in subsidiaries acquired KWENBATMRE RIRTT

4“8

Cash inflow on acquisition of a subsidiary

WENBARNZFRERA

The DML Group contributed revenues of approximately
HK$18,057,000 and net profit of HK$1,999,000 to
the Group for the period from 10 February 2021 to 31
December 2021. Had the acquisition of DML Group been
completed on 1 January 2021, the Group's consolidated
revenue and consolidated loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$77,560,000 and approximately
27,615,000 respectively.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, Mr.
Leung Tat Chi (“Vendor A”) irrevocably warranted and
guaranteed to the Company that the audited net profit
after tax of DML as shown in its audited consolidated
financial statements for the 12-months period
commencing after the completion date (the “Guarantee
Period”) shall not be less than HK$2,000,000 (the
“Guarantee Profit").

In the event that the actual consolidated audited net
profit after tax of DML for the Guarantee Period is less
than the Guarantee Profit, Vendor A undertakes to pay to
the Company an amount of 7.25 times of the shortfall,
which the shortfall is calculated as Guarantee Profit
minus the net profit of the Guarantee Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e HmERNE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31.

32.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable
related to the acquisition of DML Group, at the
acquisition date of 9 February 2021 is considered
immaterial in fair value is based on the valuation report
issued by an independent professional valuer by using a
discounted cash flow model. As at 31 December 2021,
the Directors estimated the probability of meeting the
Guarantee Profit is high and therefore the fair value of
the contingent consideration receivable is considered as
immaterial.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group also monitors the current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that sufficient
working capital and adequate committed lines of funding
are maintained to meet its liquidity requirements. Upon
the discovery of any default, the Group would negotiate
immediately with the relevant lenders for proper
arrangement in order to maintain sufficient working
capital. Upon the expectation of any cash insufficiency,
the Company would seek new source of funding so as to
maintain sufficient working capital. The capital structure
of the Group consists of net debts (which include lease
liabilities and bank borrowings), net of bank balances and
cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. Details of
which are disclosed in respective notes.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as issue of new debt
or redemption of the existing debts. The Group’s overall
strategy remaining unchanged from prior year.

31.

32.

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE
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HE - HE_E-_—F+_-_A=+—
H Z2FHAEINERMNBOTEE
MEREE ALERKARENAR
BEHEEAETEK -

EXEREE

AEEEIEHETEANRRAEE
CEREAHELE LEBEN
EHREREBRARTERRAD
% -

AEBENERBALRERRBDES
FE UBREFATENZEEERD
RERNEAREERE  UENH
RBESHE RERTAENE -
AEBTANEBBERAEBELET
BER EHEERBRAZEESR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

(a)

B 75 R R My ()

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of Financial Instruments

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

33. ERTH

(a)

Financial assets at FVTPL BRARETFABEN
SREE
Unlisted equity investment RETRAEKE
Life insurance =13
Financial assets at amortised cost: R#HE R KT EH
EMEE:
Trade receivables FE W X 5 5K IA
Contract assets EREE
Deposit and other receivables e Rk E A RKHKIE
(excluded prepayment) (TBRFEEMKE)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY
Financial liabilities at amortised BEBERETEN
cost: cRBERE:
Trade payables BT R 5 IE
Other payables and accruals H e FRIE R EET
£ A
Bank borrowings RITER
Lease liabilities HEBE
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TRTRE

2021
—_E_—=F
HK$'000
TE T

16,027
2,823

13,504
27,277

59,631

2020
—TTF
HK$'000
TAT

329
4,815

5,144

10,034

11,940
11,918

33,892

5,510

4,655

4,798

14,863



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

& M5 R R M (E)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other
receivables, contract assets, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units and
financial assets in currencies other than the
units’ functional currencies. The Company’s
exposure to currency risk is through certain
transactions that are denominated in AUD and
RMB.

BE-F_—F+A=1—HIFE

33. e ITE(E)

(b)

Mg E kR EEEERBER

REBsTEcRmIABRER
ARABEFABEGZEZERMEE -
& W 3Z 5 3k I8 B A fth g W kI8
ERNEE RekReSEY -
FEEhL?C%/TJ\IE&ﬁﬁﬂFEhLW\
KEGTER: ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ
BE ZE2MITAFBENA
O REZE - EzEeiT
EFWEMRERAEEMSRER -
m%ﬂﬁ MERR FER
RBESER - T XH7T
mﬂhﬁ%%ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%
f%ﬂ‘yﬁaﬁjiﬁtﬁﬁfﬁﬂf@
NEREFERETEHERE

(i) E¥ERE

AEEERZHEEREKA
ZSRBRRELEEEMMNU
BuUkEMEEFNEER
KONEBETEEME -
AEEHBEOEBEERE
EFBETURTRAR
BitENRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
WS ER R KI5 (&)

4 A

N

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change by
5% in the HK$ exchange rate against RMB and
AUD, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's loss before tax due to changes in
the translated values of monetary assets and
liabilities.

If HK$ strengthens against AUD
If HK$ weakens against AUD
If HK$ strengthens against RMB
If HK$ weakens against RMB

P

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

33. @I E(E)

(b)

WAETHBRITRZE
WAETHBITRE
HETHARBERE
WAETLTEARBEE

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate loan to a vendor
and lease liabilities as set out in Notes 23 and
28 respectively. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
its variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings as detailed in Notes 25 and 27.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the Directors
monitor interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating interest
rate.
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M EREZEEERBEE)

(i)

(ii)

ERER (&)

TRETEMRA EME R
BRETCZEZ2BERT &
THARBZERGEA
RN W AEBKB T

MEBMREREER

Eﬁ% HEBEZZHHHN)
ZHREDH o

2021 2020

—EB-—F L F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

(145) 16

145 (16)

385 1,364

(385) (1,364)

A R E

7 & B A e B MY 523 K ft
X285 Bl AT & M £ FE 7 1R
HEEF X E XK &ﬁf%
B A A o B R @
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RIRTHEHBRBITERE
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R M FE25 M B 5E27 o
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BR-AM EFHER
MERRE AKRERTE
RERHPERFERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rate of 100 basis points, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’'s loss
before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

If interest rates decrease by 100
basis points EE
If interest rates increase by 100
basis points A2

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

fis F1 2= T BE100 &

fi& A1 & £ 7+10018

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unquoted equity
securities measured at FVTPL. Price risk was
monitored by the management of the Group
who will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

33. e ITE(E)

MK EREZEEERBEE)

(ii)

M= (&)

TRETE S B
i’j{%%.rﬂ‘%:%z,rz\;ﬂ—'? . F

& 12 A 8 & B)1001E &
%ﬁ%$%@ﬁ?ﬁﬁu)§ﬂé(;\_

BEHZEBERNEE)ZH

R DA o
2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET

(iii) HtE&RR

AEERAREERANLE
HFABRGECERER
REFH A RAERR

o BB A B
BEER TEAARE
BEEY AR -

(iv) SERERRBEFGE

FERAREAEENRS
BFROMEBAEER
XMBRRNER - K&
IZFEH@‘EﬁEW
R 5 R B R E b UK
M&ﬁi&ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ
7 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of financial assets at
amortised cost stated in this note represented
the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risk
associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’'s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
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(b)
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(iv) 1= & & B & m B 57 14 (&)

AN B 5E BT 2 12 B H K
A EZERMEEZRE
B - R AKFHEAR
FHFREBTEH TS
T AEEREMBERX
ZERMEEMBZIRAE
EE & o

AEE Y E R AT MRS
an 3¢ E b 5 A 3R T 45 5
NBRERESHEEMH
MEERER -

BRXEHEREHNEE

AEBEERAYIARESR
EHNE=ZFTETRS - K
SEERRAE  IARRK
EEGRARINEFHA
BBERBEZER ° UL
AEBEFESEREFREA
AR PTEER 22 R R
WAERK e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. €RiT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEMREEEZERBK(E)
policies (Continued)

(iv) 1= & & B & Om B 57 14 (&)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The Group's concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations is mainly in HK
and PRC, which accounted for 58% and
30% (2020: 6% and 68%) of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021
respectively. The Group has concentration of
credit risk as 14% (2020: 26%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the financial department has been
delegated by the management of the Group to
be responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures and the review of the recoverable
amount of each material individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate provision for impairment losses is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition,
the Group continuously monitors its trade
receivable balances so as to ensure that the
Group will not be subject to material bad
debt risk. Since the Group only trades with
third parties recognised to be creditworthy,
management considers that the credit risk in
respect of the Group's customers is limited.
Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables are disclosed in Note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment for trade
receivables and contract assets under ECL
model. Impairment of HK$474,000 (2019:
HK$333,000) is recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.

BURXEHBERENEE
(&)

AEEBZEFERRBRIZME
NMEBFEZEEFRFAE R
“E_—H+-RA=1—
HERBURZREREZ
D BIE8% K30% (—ZE - =&
F:6% K68%)° K £ &
W%EHMK$#$EI

MEKRZSRBBELY
M%(_7:7¢ 26%) T35
EUWAEBEZERKEFNRK

H e AEREREEERR -
REEEIEEXENB I
BEEETEERSE 8
B R HEMEEAERE I
BERNSHREHRENS
BEAENEHHTKE S
B HRATAREKSE
IR R RBEBEEE -

o REEFEL IR
WRPRIBE B BIRA
EETEEBREARAZRR
o AN AEEEHERA

BEEEANE-FHENTXR

5 BEERRELRKHE
BEFEBENEERBRAR -
EBASBERERRERR SR
HolBizEERRBRFEME
EHEREGEE M BRI
FE231 5B o

AN - AN EE IR & TE B E
EEEREANGEABLE
HEKZIFBEREGHNE
EHETHRE AFEER
474,000 L (ZE—F
333,000 L)W RE - B
BEERBE L ELFBER
BT X FE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The contract assets primarily relate to the
Group’s rights to consideration for work
completed but not billed at the reporting
date. The contract assets are transferred
to receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The contract assets have
substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the ECL rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
the contract assets. Since the contract assets
are still in performing and the payment is not
due. The expected loss rate of contract assets
is assessed to be the same as that of trade
receivables neither past due nor impaired
and the impact to be insignificant to the
consolidated financial statement of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The
Group assessed 12m ECL for cash and cash
equivalents by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default
of the respective credit rating grades published
by external credit rating agencies. Based on
the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank
balances is considered to be insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Deposit and other receivables

Where applicable, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default and
expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference
to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. In calculating the
expected credit loss rate, the Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data. For the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group have assessed and concluded that the
risk of default rate for the other instruments
are steadily based on the Group assessment
of the financial health of the counterparties.

The Group’'s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following
categories:

Internal credit rating Description

—E - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

33. e ITE(E)

(b) B R EEERR B (&)

(iv) 1= & &k & m B 57 14 (&)

BERAMEKNE

WEA REITIRE
REAHEBEEENN
AREME T MIEHEER
BREALK2ERAEENR
AEBECEEESBREARAE
BEREGE - ZEBEXE
B 38 2 LA R B E AT AR R
Ko SR TR A AR 2 T8 R
(nER) - RETEFEEE
EEBEXRE AfES=E
EELBIERIRERK
REEEHBELAE -
BHE_ET-_—pR-_T
EE+-_A=1+—HIE
B AEEBETHRH Y

FeUHBERRARERE
TERFEHEERRB B EAM
TAZEDXEARBRE

AEBEHABEERRG
RFHEBEATER:

Trade receivables Other financial assets

S ERTAR R EW X5 HE HttemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
default and does not have any past- credit-impaired
due amounts
15 = B XEHUFENRRE TECTAOE 2HEHEEEE— 2EARBEESHE
8 BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
but usually settle in full credit-impaired
BELE EBALERIBE 2B BHBER PHRHBEERE— NEAEBEEER

EEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. eI HE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BA#&EBREEEZE R BUER ()

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment (iv)] EERERBETEE)
(Continued)
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
RS ETR B3 FEW % 5 58 HttemEE
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired

through information developed
internally or external resources

BE3 RENBAEEAXINFER 8 2HEHCEBE 2HEHCEER
[ B B ¥ 40 B SR DA SR AR 2 52 —EFERE —BEBHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
credit-impaired impaired impaired
B FEBBTEELBREENE CHENCERRE 2HEBEGCEER
—EERE —EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
88 FEREBETEBABABRENBRE  MEeHE miEes
EASEYEKEFIENERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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I

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 75 SR R My (8B

BE_F_—F+_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The

tables below detail the credit risk

exposures of the Group’'s financial assets,
which are subject to ECL assessment.

33. €I E(E)

(b) MBEMREEEFERBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B & Rl 8 &F & ()

TRFAFMANEBEETE
HEEBEETANemE
EEFERR -

External Internal 2021 Gross 2020 Gross
Note credit rating  credit rating  12m or lifetime ECL CEIINCETIITIE  carrying amount
EERS Z8C-f& Z3C%F
WE HNEEERE ABEENS BRGEER BE&E gk
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEL
Financial assets at amortised costs
BEENAHENEREE
Cash and bank balances 2 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 11,918
ReRBILs rER NEAEHEERE
Deposits and other receivables 23 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 15,501
EeRARERTE TER (W) NEABHEERE
Trade receivables 23 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 10,367
[Provision matrix)
EURSHE AER W2 CHEEHEEEE
(BEER)
Contract assets vz N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL -
(Provision matrix)
ANEE TER Hi2) cHEAGESE
(BEER)
Notes: ok:3

The credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be low risk when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be
doubtful.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

M 2WMEEYRBHATE
AREXHeMmEEE NS
BRUNKBEREEERRAKX
BEEMOBERT  HE
EEERAAERAR - &
B - eWMEENEREER
WA DA R

20 HERXZRERAHE
EmMF ASBEEERE
BRMBREENFIRMNG
ErEBRzHEHEES
BEtEEBEBEE -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ aging to assess
the impairment for its customers in relation
to its operation because these customers
consist of a large number of small customers
with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables which are assessed on
a collective basis by using provision matrix
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

Set out below is the information about the
credit risk exposure on the Group's trade
receivables using a provision matrix:

2021
%

Average Trade
loss rate receivables
El
FHEBE RHRA
HK$'000
TR

Current 1K . 5,874
Past due @%ﬁ
— 110 3 months =& A ! 6,030
— 3to 6 months i/\1lﬂ
963

—Over3months  —BB=MA
4,535

Subtotal et 17,402
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33. eI E(E)

(b)

ECL
M
FEER
HK$000
TER

M EEEERRERBER)

(iv) 15 & & B & 58 &7 & ()

EAAEBEERRER
B —3R - ANEEF B E K
R AEEEXBKA
2B P ETREN G
RARZEEFPIHHUE
REMNEEERARX
MmREEAR A RBREER

BANKTEERAEDH
ENEEENNHFRR
B -TREHRBBERENK
RHpFBAEERRBNER
ZEERDEREHES
EFEEBFEREEERRE)
W R TR R AT
fi e

TREINAEEERBEB
EEFENEKRRSHRA

iz B Rk &R :
2020
S 3
Average Trade
loss rate  receivables ECL
& Yt EH
FHEREX  RHFE  CEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THR FHL
1.8% 8,617 155
9.9% 1,750 178
N/A
il —~ —
N/A
TE R — —
10,367 333
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

33. €I E(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BAF&EpREEEZE R BUR ()
policies (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment (ivi EERMRBENEE)
(Continued)
The estimated loss rates are estimated based HEBEEEREBAE
on historical observed default rates over the ﬁﬂi%ﬁlﬁi@ﬁ&ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ FE
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted WEMGF - YR BEND
for forward-looking information that is available T Z pK 7N 5 55 7 B AT ER
without undue cost or effort. BrAEEERETHAE -
The following tables shows the movement THRETDRESLTE
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for RERRXGIRERRNE
trade receivables under simplified approach: HEHEESENEE:
HK$'000
F&T
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-—A=+—H 205
Changes due to financial instruments ER—A—HERES M
recognised as at 1 January TEMEBEHES
(non-credit impaired): (mEERME) :
— Impairment losses reversed —EBRERESE (205)
New financial assets originated or FREXBEANT 7
purchased BE 333
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+=-—A=+—8”

Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January

ER—A—B®ERSHE
TAMmMEBENE S

(non-credit impaired): (Z=ERME) :
— Impairment losses reversed —EBERORESE
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B /&8 2 =
New financial assets originated or FRESXEANT €7
purchased BE
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+-A=+—
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" Forthe year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-FT-—F+-H=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. £ TE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BiERESEEAZERBUEK (E)

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade
receivables are mainly due to:

Settlement in full of trade debtors B S &K A 2 H X

Acquisition of subsidiaries Ik B BT B A A
New trade receivable FEWR S IE

2272 SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

(iv) 1= & & B & m B 57 14 (&)

WS RBEERRES
HEXEHARN:

2021 2020
—B_—£F —EEF
Increase in Decrease in
lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
not credit- not credit-
impaired impaired
2HEHE > HEHE
EEEE M BEEBERD
BEEERE BEEERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FHET

(333) (205)
568 —
807 333
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AV BEEHRRW

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

at ()

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables shows the movement in
ECL that has been recognised for deposit and
other receivables:

TE - —Ff A=+ —HIFFE

33. e ITE(E)

(b) MBEMREEEFERBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B & Rl 8 &F & ()

12M ECL

12BREHE
EFRE
HK$'000
FEL

TRERRESREME
s LB
AR :

Lifetime
ECL (credit-
impaired) Total
ZHES
FEER
(EERE) #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

As at 31 December 2019 RZFE-NE+ZA
:+ B 1,484 2,059 3,543
Changes due to financial RZZE-ZTF—-H—H
instruments recognised as ~ HREMIAMHRE
at 1 January 2020: #) & 8
— Impairment losses — BRERRE
reversed (6) = (6)
New financial assets BREXBANN SR
originated or purchased BE 24 - 24
As at 31 December 2020 R-F-_FBF+T_-H
__-k = 1,502 2,059 3,561
Changes due to financial RZZE-ZTF—-H—H
instruments recognised as ~ HREMIAMHRE
at 1 January 2020: iof=d
— Impairment losses — BERRE
reversed (280) = (280)
New financial assets BEIBANN SR
originated or purchased BE 1,326 — 1,326
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—-%+=A
=t+-A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RMEE)

" Forthe year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-F_—4F+-H=+—HIFFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. £ TE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BiERESEEAZERBUEK (E)

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment (ivi EERMRBEFTMEE)
(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for deposit and Ze kH M EKRFIEEE
other receivables are mainly due to: BEZHETEHN:
2021
—EB-—F
Increase in Increase in
12M ECL Lifetime ECL
12 A EH = HFEH
FEFEEN SEFEAEM
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Impairment reversed B # B 5 A& (280)
Impairment for new deposit and ¥k & & H b fE Uk 5
other receivables TE @ B 1,326
2020
—E_THF
Increase in Increase in
12M ECL Lifetime ECL
1218 A 78 58 % HA 78 B
FEEBEEN FEEBEBELM
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Impairment reversed 28R E (6) S
Impairment for new deposit and  F1i& & & H ff 8 L 51
other receivables TE R B 24 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BB HRERM T (E)

/\‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policies are to regularly
monitor the current and expected liquidity
requirements, and to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and available
banking facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

- —Ff A=+ —HIFE

33. e ITE(E)

(b)

MRk EEEERBER

(v)

(&)

RBETER

AEBEBRRERRTHEREE
ARFEHRBEST R
BRACHESHE LA
PHARTHERTEAR
ﬁ/ﬁﬂfmﬁﬁiﬁ‘ﬁ*

TRFLRAEEEH &
BEMNRBEAEHOTFH - %
KRR BEBRAEBEHE
KXERNZEBAHAER
TRHEGEARATREAESRE
mEl e LHZ MWEEE
SKAE B R KA IR 1T 18 BE
ARBEREBEARN @1 TH
MITERTEEENHA
EEEZE  EMIETER
BREEsIBEERBE
ZERXAH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

_//f'For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_-_FT-—F+_-A=+—HIFFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @I AE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEEBREEEZEREE (&)
policies (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) v) "BESLERE)
The table includes both interest and principal ZERERABEENERAR
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows e BEERE c UFER
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is BZEHMEFFEAER K
derived from interest rate curve at the end of RSB IOTBEmREHRR
the reporting period. FIEMGBISH -
On demanded Total
less than Between  undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate 1 year 1105 years cashflow amount
B RER
RE  REXDME 125% ReR Kaf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TR TER
At 31 December 2021 WZZz-%
tZAZ+-A
Trade payables ERRANE N/A
TER 1391 - 7391 1391
Lease labilities HERE 3.85% to 8.80% 2818 , 4125 4,042
Bank horrowings RIOER 2.75% t0 6.75% 5,002 5,951 5,809
Other payables and accruals £ f B 28 |z N/A
EiER TR 1,175 11,175 11,175
26,386 ' 28,542 28,417
On demanded Total
less than Between undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate 1 year 1105 years cashflow amount
N BHAER
HE  REXDME 125% Rei AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEn Tan TAn
L' ' ' ' ]
At 31 December 2020 RZTZZE
tZA=1-H
Trade payables ERRHHE N/A
TEA 5,510 - 5,510 5510
Lease liabilities HERE 475108.80% 2217 2,999 5,216 4798
Other payables and accruals £ BT 58 & N/A
EiER AER 4,555 - 4,555 4,555
12,282 2,999 15,281 14,863
The amounts included above for variable fisf P] 84 R R B 3R S BA R &
interest rate instruments are subject to change E E’J ZEFNERMGEFTR -
if changes in variable interest rate differ to L ESBATES -

those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. eI HE(E)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMITAZAAREE

instruments
Some of the Group's financial instruments are ?yt‘ MBEREENME A&EH
measured at fair value for financial reporting ETeMmIAERAAENE °
purposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- REFALER AEEEH
observable data to the extent it is available. Where AESHMS B RHIE -
Level 1 inputs are not available, the management EWEE—R@ASE B8
would establish the appropriate valuation techniques BERZEXNBRAZHE & 3
and inputs to the valuation model or to engage third N ABEXINEEE=2FTNE
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. A EMETHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re ISRk M R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

TE - —Ff A=+ —HILFE

33. @I E(E)

(c)

FEETHEEZANERRE
EHEEDUQAABE

FEEFMEeREERSHRS
BHREZEAAEE - TXRIEH
EBRUNNETZESREEDR
RE(LHERAERANBERDT
R AN8E) 2 EH -

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021
—=-
Level 1
E—&
HK$°000
TET

used).
n
Financial assets at ERAARBEFAE
FVTPL EHEREE
Unlisted equity REWMBRAKREE
investment
Life insurance policy ShiRE

—F+-A=+—HZ2AEEB#H&
Level 2
FR

HK$'000
F & T

Level 3 Total
E=H ot
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T T & T

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020

RZE-EE+_A=+—HZAAREER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
— & & E=ZR 4B Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T FET FET
Financial assets at ERASEFARE
FVTPL EHEMEE
Unlisted equity R ETBRAEE
investment — — 329 329
Life insurance policy SRIRE — — 4,815 4,815
— — 5,144 5,144
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR RMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E Z_—F-—F+_-H=+—HIFFE ~—
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. €M T HE(E)
(¢c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMITARAZAAREBEFE(E)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that AEEETHMEEZAABRER
are measured at fair value on a recurring EMEEUAAETER)

basis (Continued)

Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and
Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
tREE ME MESR HEENRBERARE  EATUBERAHE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
—E--£ - 2

ToRZT-F

Life insurance policy, at Approximately Approximately  Level 3 Based on credit rating, ages of  Surrender value
fair value HK$5,027,000 HK$4,815,000 life insured persons and
the discount rate (note a)

BRAEHER SRRy 47481500080 2=8 ENERFRIBRIRA  BROE
ERRE ERRERR W)
Unlisted equity Approximately Approximately  Level 3 Market approach fnote b (i) The market price of in the same or
investment HK$226,000 HK$329,000 a similar line of business
(i) Based on circumstances unique,
additional factors have been
\ consid\ered \
REMBRARE 226,000 7 [ESKYANINE-Du. T=F kb)) (I BRSENXHRODEER
i) ERERER ZRTEMER
There were no transfers between different level HE-_Z-_—F+=-_HA=+—H
of fair value hierarchy during the year ended 31 HEFE TEARBAALERER
December 2021. ZHER -
Notes: B3t -
(a) The surrender value of the policy is provided by the (a) REMARREEHRBRABIRME
insurance company.
(b)  The fair value of the unlisted equity investment was (b) FETRERENAABEAB L
measured by the independent valuer based on Level 3 HEMERE=ZBRAEATSE
hierarchy by using market approach. FE e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

re ISRk M R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2-F-—#F+-HA=+—HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(¢) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial instruments on recurring basis:

33. €@ I HE(E)
(c) EMIBZAREFTE(E)

FEHTRHEEZANERRE
EMEENUQAEE(HE)

et

(c)

& F*}

2
jn g;
?é
H
=
m
m
i
=
>

Hs
A

E.'ﬁ

Unlisted equity
Life insurance instruments at

policy at FVTPL FVTPL Total
BARE BARE
FRABR®EZ STAELE™

ERRE REIARD Mgt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET FHET

At 31 December 2019 R-_FE—hh&E+-_A=+—8EK

and 1 January 2020 —ZT-ZT¥—H—H 4,742 — 4,742
Acquisition g = — 843 843
Exchange realignment & 5 3 — (12) (12)
Fair value changes NAERE 73 (502) (429)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZTF+ZA=+—HK

and 1 January 2021 —T=—%—A—H 4,815 329 5,144
Exchange realignment & 5 3 & 76 (13) 63
Fair value changes DRAERAE 136 (90) 46
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=-A=+—8H 5,027 226 5,253

Included in profit or loss is an amount of approximately
HK$46,000 fair value gains (2020: loss of HK$429,000)
relating to the financial assets at FVTPL held at the end of
the current reporting period.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

E=

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities,
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

including both cash

34.

—E - —FF A=+ —HIFE

MEETHELENEEYHER

TRFULUAXEEREFTHEENE
B gPEERaRIFRSE
g o Qﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁiﬂéimﬁﬁﬁbﬂﬂx
SBEEFEERENERS2EAME G
@Jﬁﬁ ReEnhEnKEanediBsg
DEHRRBEERE

activities:
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITER HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZFTF—H—H 15,033 6,024
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE — (1,935)
New leases FHE — 663
Interest expense MERXZ 104 261
Exchange realignment ME 5 38 & — (215)
Repayment of bank borrowings EREITER (15,137) —
At 31 December 2020 R-_ZE_THE+_HA=+—H — 4,798
Acquisition of subsidiaries g B8 BT B A 7] 6,829 483
New leases FHEE — 1,017
Interest expense FERH X 366 300
Proceeds from borrowings &R S W = 21,445 =
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE — (2,635)
Exchange realignment E X % — 79
Repayment of bank borrowings BEEBITHENK (22,831) —

At 31 December 2021
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4 A

N

For the year ended 31 December 2021

35.

36.

B 75 ¥ K P 5 (48)

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$1,017,000
and HK$1,017,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings (2020: HK$1,115,000 and
HK$1,115,000).

On 9 February 2021, the Group has completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in DML by the
allotment and issuance of an aggregate of 67,441,860
consideration shares with par value HK$0.05. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9
February 2021 for details.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) During the year, saved as disclosed in elsewhere of
the consolidation financial statements, the Group

entered into the following material transactions with
related parties:

35.

36.

BE-—_F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF

FRERB
TR ASEEREDHEELH

H TRAEEERHEEBEBED
JE IR & 12 N o B A1,017,000%
gt %1,017,000%8 t(=Z T = T F:
1,115,000 7T 1,115,000/ JT) °

R-TE-_—F-_ANE AE@EE
BB KRBT A H£67,441,86008 & &
EEOSB THHER M TRK
FEDMLM100% /%1 - BREAFF4AEE -
BELMARRBHAE_ZT_—F_A
NAERRE -

BBt RX 5

(a)

FA BEAEMBERREME
DWEIN AKE BB E
TATERRS

2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-FF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FTET FHET
Amount due from Mr. FTEEEND
Wong: S '
Balance as at 1 January/31 #HZ—HA—8/ (1)
December +=—A=+—
H& R %R =
Maximum amount FREREEN (1)
outstanding during the Eme 8
year 20,346
Note: b a7 -
1. The Group made advance payments to Mr. Wong during 1. REEBRBEE-_ZTS=-—FM=F

—EF+-A=+t-BLFER
BAEINTEMNR EXEH
AMR—_T-_—F+=-—A=+—H
M—ZT-—TF+=-A=+—RHZ
MEdEE - TimErEX M
WENMRAEERR 2ELHE
EER—E=ZMAHMEE -

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, which were
all repaid by Mr. Wong before 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020, respectively. The aforesaid advance
payments to Mr. Wong were unsecured, interest free and
repaid by Mr. Wong in a period ranging from one to three
months.
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AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BB S X Z (&)

(Continued)
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEAESFHMH
REBHERHTEETNEEE

B A B # B RS R M
EAVESI

Details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group, who are the executive
directors, are disclosed in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

AR EEMBARFE

REERRARAEERLREERSE
BB ARFBEEIIMT:

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

out below:
Place of
incorporation and Issued share
type of Principal activities and capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name legal entity place of operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Company
ARAILER BRARE/
%8 FARREY  IERDREEMY ifEx MERERFERRENLA KAERENRARNLS
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
43 B E# B&

—F - FF A=+ —HIFE Th~—

Strat Tech Holdings Limited BvI Investment holding USst
AERLEE  REER %7
Shen You (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$10,000,000 =
RE(PE)ERAA RERESE  REER 10,000,000 &
Tseyu International Trading Hong Kong Trading of sewing threads HK$60,000,000 100%
Company Limited and broad categories of
garment accessories
ERERERERAT RERESR  RUSNAERZERES 000000087
Newchamp Industries Limited ~ Hong Kong Trading of sewing threads HK$30,000,000 100%
AnEEERRLT HERESE #8710 30000,000% 7
Cheerful Keen Limited BvI Investment holding Usst 100%
EERERDLA AERLEE  REER %7
Clolab International Limited Hong Kong Fashion design and trading of HK$10,000 100%
garment accessories
fRABRERAT HZREsE  BHRIREREHER 10,0007
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AR E(E)

/‘JFor the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_-_FT-—F+_-A=+—HIFFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. KXAREEMBATE (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and Issued share
type of Principal activities and capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name legal entity place of operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Company
HRAILER BERE/
i FAEBEY  IERIREERY e FAAERNFERERNLH LOEEEEYS Lilid]
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
84 A& E# L
2021 2000 2021 2000 2021 2000 2021 220
Z8o-F kg CRC-f Eebleld Cfo-f Bkl C30-F Eekimdd
Thril Rank Company Limited BYI Investment holding US$100 100% 100% - 100% 100% -
AERLEE  RERR 10£7
Diamond Motto Limited BvI Investment holding US$300
AERLEE  RERR 00%7
LMP International Limited Hong Kong Provision of interior design, HKS1 - - 100% N/A 100% N/A
fitting out and decoration
Services
THERERAA REAESE  RUESARE RERES 137 TER TER
k%
Better Dynasty Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$10,000 - - 100% - - - 100% -
hiZAESE  REER 10,0008 7
Harbour Equing Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$100 - - 100% - - - 100% -
Formerly known as Prime
Dynasty Limited)
Harbour Equine Limited (B~ MEAESE RERR 0% 7
Prime Dynasty Limited)
Harbour Equing Pty Ltd Australia Horse breeding AUSS100 - - 100% - - - 100% -
(Formerly known as Hong
Kong (8377) Pty Ltd)
Harbour Equine Pty Ltd (%8~ %l SrEE 1047
Hong Kong (8377) Pty Ltd]
Harbour Stallion Pty Ltd Australia Horse breeding AUSS100 - - 100% - - - 100% -
(Formerly known as Hong
Kong (8377) Stallion Pty
Ltd)
Harbour Stallon Pty Ltd (%~ & El3E 10027

Hong Kong (8377) Stallion
Pty Ltd)
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IPAN
%l\ Eﬁ%#&%m¢ FI_II_(/H/\>
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z-F-—F+-_HA=+—HIFEF
37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. AQREEM B AT (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Place of
incorporation and Issued share
type of Principal activities and capital/ Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name legal entity place of operation registered capital held by the Company held by the Company
HRAILER BREARS/
i1 FAEBEY  IERIREEMY ifgs KAARERFRRRENLA KNERENRARNLA
Dirgctly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# B ik L
Harbour Racing Limited Hong Kong Equine management service HK$100
& ELERRH 10087
Guangzhou Xinhua thread PRC Manufacture and selling of HK$64,250,000 100%
Company Limited (% 45 sewing threads an broad
EREERAGN categories of garment
accessories
Guangzhou Xinhua thread #E BOSNEERZEHEE  GA20000%T
Company Limited (B M3 RES
ERZRRLE)
RERELE(LB)AERRT: PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 100%
("Shen You Chenxin') *
REREPE(LE)ERAT: 4E REER 10,000,000 7
(wBRE)"
MR R2ERAT PRC Sellng of sewing treads RMB500,000 100%
and broad categories of
gaiment accessories
NFREZERAT e BOSNEERZEMES  ARES00000T
kg%
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities BHEFEFRE - BENB AR ZXITHEM
at the end of the year. BREE o
* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. * BEFBELEERFMAITBELE -
BEERARAT /2021455% 23D
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4R A

WV N

For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 75 ¥R R M o (48

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The event after the reporting period is as follow:

a)

On 3 January 2022 (the “Date of Grant”), the
Company resolved to grant 4,091,418 share options
under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 24 November 2017 to Mr. Shane
McGrath, an executive Director, to subscribe for up
to 4,091,418 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
the share capital of the Company (each a “Share”),
subject to acceptance of the Grantee. As at the
Date of Grant, the Company has 409,141,860
shares in issue. The total of 4,091,418 shares to
be subscribed under the share options granted
represent 1.00% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company as at the Date of Grant and
approximately 0.99% of the enlarged issued share
capital of the Company assuming full exercise of
the share options. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 January
2022.

For the existing principal business of manufacturing
and selling of sewing threads, the Group has
experienced difficulties owing to the outbreak
of the coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic and
uncertainties due to the ongoing trade conflict
between the PRC and the United States of America
(the "U.S.") as well as the gradual slowdown of the
PRC economy. Although the tension of COVID-19
seemed to be abating, the Group expects that the
trade conflict between the PRC and the US and the
COVID-19 will still continue impacting our business.
The Group will continue to pay close attention to
the trade conflict and COVID-19 and to evaluate
its impact on the financial position, cashflows and
operating result of this business line.
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BE2_F-_—FF+_HA=1+—HIFEF
38. #E

&

o

HBREE
HEREBRMT:

RZE-_—_F—A=B(REA
B RRABZERBERAFTR
—+FE+—A-+tHBEHEHK

& B8 % #E 51 £l (7 Shane McGrath
EENERRAl TER)E
it 4, 091 4181‘ g Ix (B R
] REARARAF &
%4,091 418H & Ik @ {50.05/8
JC R R (TR ) » M 2B FF
BABERBITAEET - RED
HH) - N F % F409,141,860
REETRMG - B & ERKE
HTKTRERNSG £4,091,418
R MHEERARARELA
HRRAED TR AIN% &
AARMEERBEETRALD
0.99% (fr 3% 5 W% #& % & 817
ﬁ)ﬁ%%%E@~%%ﬁ$
NEBHA-_ETE-__—H=H

RN

REBARARREREEE

BEBHME RN HBEEARRB
SRE(HEERFE]EE -

PEARLME(HE] & E
NBAaRE(XRA]) 2 HFE
B85 E R &P ELEZRH R
BERLBRTHERER A%
M EBRMmS - — LW
BEFLERARENERRD
UFEREEN  AEBEEHF
EZEHBBREFTEBMRESH
BEETERMNER  -A&H
KHETYHEEE %@ K #h
BERBRELY YA EZEH
EMEZEBEOTBRR
BHemkeE E%FEZ@‘ °
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AR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  39. KRARB BN K ExR

CE - —Ff =1 —HIFFEF T~

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
s ZEZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 377 =
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 510 =
Financial assets at FVTPL AR EFABEEN
TREE 226 328
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBRANEKE 16,573 3,647
17,686 3,975
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NEIE ] 46,708 28,360
Prepayments, deposit and other ENRE e kHE
receivables b, & Uk 5K I8 276 272
Cash and cash equivalents RELRESEEY 25,284 10,556
72,268 39,188
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAth FE T 5/ & FE 5
2 H 1,667 1,512
Lease liabilities HEAE 386 =
2,053 1,512
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 70,215 37676
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERRBER
LIABILITIES 87,901 41,651
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EREBEME
Lease liability HEAE 135 =
NET ASSETS EEFRE 87,766 41,651
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGEE
Share capital & 7 20,457 12,000
Reserves 8 67,309 29,651
TOTAL EQUITY DA 87,766 41,651

The Company's statement of financial position was e _ET-__F=A-_+HB#
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 25 /EITﬁ% HBEARQ ﬂ Hﬁﬁxﬂkﬂ%
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: WHATEERERSE

Wong Kwok Wai, Albert Leung King Yue, Alex

EEEEE REWREE
Director Director
4 EFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

" Forthe year ended 31 December 2021 HZ=F-—F+-HA=+—HIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  39. AARMBMRKFER (&)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves RATIEEEE
Share Share Share option Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
EXER BROEE BRERE BB @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 January 2020 “Z-%4-f-H 8,000 57751 — (25,726) 40,025
Issues of shares under rights issue $Ef)§ﬁi(ﬁx¥? Hﬁf’ 4,000 10,641 - at 14,641
Loss for the year FHNER — — — (13,015) (13,015)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZ-%F
1 January 2021 TZA=+-8k
—-A—-H 12,000 68,392 i (38,741) 41,651
Issue of consideration shares for ~ IR EBEEEHT
acquisition Gl 3,372 22,256 - e 25,628
Recognition of equity settled share- B3 A1 4 & B
based payment RHZH - - 1,155 - 1,155
Issue of new shares under generate 1815 — B F 17
mandate o7 5,085 40,026 = = 45,111
Loss for the year EREER - = L (25,779) (25,779)
At 31 December 2021 RZB_-%
+-A=+-8 ’ 130,674 1,155 (64,520)
Note: i -
a) The amount due from subsidiaries represents fund transfer for the a) FUEHMBARNRBREEEZAEERE
Group's daily operation. The amount is interest-free, unsecured EEZE® ZERERTHE EX
and repayable on demand. HRBRERERE -
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Five Year Financial Summary
hFTHFHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

TXEINAEERBELBAYRFEZ
XEUREBEERBEHMEZ  DHREEBCA
MHEERWBRR TEEEEY &

oM

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:

BE-_F_—fFF A=+ —HIFE T~

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
= el —T-TF  —T-AF  ZE-N\F ZE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THT TET FET FTEr
RESULTS £
REVENUE I & 73,365 44,984 58,746 64,510 74,371
Cost of sales HERAK (58,573) (34,537) (47416) (51,232) (48,853)
Gross profit EH 14,792 10,447 11,330 13,278 25,518
Other (losses) gains, net ~ Ef (F18) %5 F 8 4,269 (1,077) 2,039 2,037 642
Selling and distribution HERDHAX
expenses (7,023) (5,745) (7,393) (7579) (6,408)
Administrative expenses T X (23,356) 13,942 (13,508) (16,456) (9,831)
Impairment loss on SREEREER
financial assets (1,520) (146) (3,103) (499) —
Impairment lossonnon- & MEEREEE
financial assets, net FE - (1,465) — — —
Impairment loss on HEREBR
goodwill (12,103) — — — —
Other expenses Hih % (1,634) (3,302) (4,709) (2,301) (20,108)
Finance costs BERKA (666) (365) (1,313) (886) (2,291)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE  Br%iAI (E518) /& A
TAX (27,241) (15,595) (16,657) (12,406) (12,478)
Income tax (expense)/ ek (EY)/He
credit - — (2,562) 1,551 (712)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 2EEAR (27,241) (15,595) (19,219) (10,855) (13,190)

HEERERAR /20214 3K



Five Year Financial Summary (Continued)
hFRFHE(E)

" Forthe year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ_-FT-—F+_-H=+—HIFFEZ

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HL%EE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
el —T-FF  —B-NF ZE-\f Z—B-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TEL FTiET FTEL FTEL
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 120,986 61,140 79,493 92,631 129,359
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEAH 29,221 (15,532) (37021) (29,525) (51,275)
91,765 45,608 42,472 63,106 78,084

Note: /’Wﬁ‘? P

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2016 was extracted #HE-ZT—XNF+_A=Z=+—BILFENFEE R
from the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2017. The summary S BEARAFEH AT —LtF+—A=Z+HHHA
above does not form part of the audited financial statements for the yearended B ER - Ll ESAFTEXBE-_ST - F+ - A
31 December 2020. S+-—HBLEFENLKEZHBREN—HD -
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